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PART |

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 198Bovides a "safe harbor" for forward-looking stages. This report contains certain forwdwdking
statements and information that are based on thefdef management as well as assumptions madmbyinformation currently available to managemértie statemen
contained in this report relating to matters that ot historical facts are forwafdeking statements that involve risks and uncetigsn including, but not limited to, ¢
reliance on certain key customers, reduced U.Sndefspending, including the uncertainty associai#idgovernment budget approvals, the successfuleercialization c
our products, future demand for our products, tetdgical innovations in the norechargeable and rechargeable battery industréagergl domestic and global econo
conditions, significant fluctuations in our periodiesults and stock price, the unique risks astatiaith our Chinese operations, the impairmenowf intangible asse
business disruptions, including those caused &g fiour resources being overwhelmed by our grondbpacts, residual effects of negative news relatezlr industrie:
loss of top management, raw material supplies, etitign and customer strategies, government andr@mmental regulations, the process of U.S. defgmeeuremen
finalization of nonbid government contracts, changes in our busirtesegy or development plans, capital deploymemd, @her risks and uncertainties, certain of wkitd
beyond our control. Although we base these forwaodihg statements on assumptions that we believeeasonable when made, we caution you that fonkaoking
statements are not guarantees of future performandehat our actual results of operations, finanobndition and liquidity and the development fd industries in whic
we operate may differ materially from those maderisuggested by the forwaldeking statements contained herein. In additimeneif our results of operations, finan
condition and liquidity and the development of theustries in which we operate are consistent withforwardlooking statements contained in this document,etresult
or developments may not be indicative of resultderelopments in subsequent periods. Given thelse aisd uncertainties, you are cautioned not toeplaiue reliance
these forward-looking statements. Any forwémdking statements that we make herein speak anbf ¢he date of those statements, and we undantakéligation to upda
those statements or to publicly announce the iestiliny revisions to any of those statementsfteatsfuture events or developments. Comparisorresilts for current al
any prior periods are not intended to express amyré trends or indications of future performanaeless expressed as such, and should only be viewdudstorice
data. When used in this report, the words “anttefhdbelieve”, “estimate” or “expect” or words oinsilar import are intended to identify forwatdeking statements. F
further discussion of certain of the matters désttiabove and other risks and uncertainties, sis& factors” in Item 1A of this annual report.

As used in this annual report, unless otherwise @tdi; the terms “we”, “our” and “us” refer to Ultifel Corporation (“Ultralife”) and includes our whgtbwnec
subsidiaries, Ultralife Batteries (UK) Ltd., ABLE New &gy Co., Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary ABINew Energy Co., Ltd, and our majorityvned join
venture Ultralife Batteries India Private Limited.

Operations of RedBlack Communications, Inc. (“RedBI® our divested company and certain components of UKraipns are reported as discontir
operations.

Dollar amounts throughout this Form 10-K Annual Reéjpoe presented in thousands of dollars, excepidoshare amounts.
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We offer products and services ranging from poetgidwer solutions to communications and electrosystems to customers across the globe in the gowvatt
defense and commercial sectors. With an emphasistrong engineering and a collaborative approacproblem solving, we design, manufacture, installl maintai
power and communications systems including: recrale and nomechargeable batteries, charging systems, commntiorisaand electronics systems and accessorie
custom engineered systems. We continually evaluate to grow, including the design, developmentsald of new products, expansion of our sales flrgenetrate ne
markets and geographies, as well as seeking oppiesito expand through acquisitions.

We sell our products worldwide through a varietyrafle channels, including original equipment macufgers (“OEMs”),industrial and defense supply distribu
and directly to U.S. and international defense depamts. We enjoy strong name recognition in ourketarunder our Ultralif® Batteries, McDowell Researé¢h, AMTI
™ and ABLE™ brands. We have sales, operations and productajgweht facilities in North America, Europe and Asia.




We report our results in two operating segmentsteBat& Energy Products and Communications Systefite Battery & Energy Products segment inclu
lithium 9-volt, cylindrical and various other noaehargeable batteries, in addition to rechargdaderies, uninterruptable power supplies, chargirgjems and accessor
The Communications Systems segment includes: RHifearg power supplies, cable and connector assiesitamplified speakers, equipment mounts, cas@egent, man-
portable systems, integrated communication systemdixed or vehicle applications and communicasioand electronics systems design. We believe #adriing
performance at the gross profit level is the bediciator of segment performance. As such we reggrngnt performance at the gross profit level aretating expenses
Corporate charges. (See Note 10 in the Notes todlidated Financial Statements.)

Our website address is www.ultralifecorp.com. We meakalable free of charge via a hyperlink on our sieb(see Investor Relations link) our annual repo
Form 10-K, proxy statements, quarterly reports om&0-Q, current reports on Formkg-and any amendments to those reports and staterasréoon as reasone
practicable after such material is electronicailgdf with or furnished to the Securities and Excla@pmmission (“SEC”)We will provide copies of these reports u
written request to the attention of Philip A. Falimgasurer and Secretary, Ultralife Corporation, 2086hnology Parkway, Newark, New York, 14513. Our fiéingth the
SEC are also available through the SEC website at weosgov or at the SEC Public Reference Room atF18@eet, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 or by calling§00-
SEC-0330.

Battery & Energy Product

We manufacture and/or market a family of lithiumnganese dioxide (Li-MnQ) and lithium manganese dioxide carbon monofluofiglerid nonrechargeab
batteries including 9-volt, HiRate® cylindrical, i@ell®, and other form factors. We also manufaetnd market a family of lithium thionyl chloridei{SOCI , ) non-

rechargeable batteries produced at our Chinesatiges. Applications for our 9elt batteries include: smoke alarms, wireless sgcaystems and intensive care monit
among many other devices. Our HiRate® and ThinCEfl&um non+echargeable batteries are sold primarily to thitany and to OEMs in industrial markets for usea
variety of applications including radios, emergemaglio beacons, search and rescue transpondeedinpifinspection gauges, portable medical devicesaher special
instruments and applications. Military applicatidos our non-rechargeable HiRate® batteries includanpack and survival radios, night vision devicesgésing device:
chemical agent monitors and thermal imaging equigm®ur lithium thionyl chloride batteries, solddar our ABLE and Ultralife brands as well as varipuivate labe
brands, are used in a variety of applications idiclg utility meters, wireless security devicescélenic meters, automotive electronics and geothédavices. We belie’
that the chemistry of lithium batteries providegnsficant advantages over other currently availatdarechargeable battery technologies. These advatagkide: highe
energy density, lighter weight, longer operatingej longer shelf life and a wider operating tempegatrange. Our norechargeable batteries also have relatively
voltage profiles, which provide stable power. Carti@nal nonrechargeable batteries, such as alkaline battdrée® sloping voltage profiles that result in dasieg powe
output during discharge. While the price for athilm batteries is generally higher than alkali@teries, the increased energy per unit of weaghitvolume of our lithiui
batteries allow for longer operating times and fesguent battery replacements for our targetediegpns.

We believe that our ability to design and produgétiveight, highenergy lithium ion rechargeable batteries and dhgrgystems in a variety of custom si:
shapes, and thickness offer substantial benefitouo customers. We market lithium ion rechargeahdgteries comprising cells manufactured by quedificel
manufacturers. Our rechargeable products can likimgewide variety of applications including comruations, medical and other portable electronidais: Our GenS
Enhancer provides energy storage capabilities temgdors and renewable energy sources, therebyagtirmmoptimum efficiencies through the continuolmmging an
discharging of our lithium ion batteries incorpeetinto the system. Our Mulilowatt Module lithium ion battery system is a largprmat battery utilizable for ener
storage, battery badkp, and remote power applications. We believe thatdhemistry of our lithium ion batteries providggnificant advantages over other curre
available rechargeable batteries. These advantagesle: higher energy density, lighter weight,den operating time, longer time between chargesaawitler operatin
temperature range. Conventional rechargeablerlesgttguch as nickel metal hydride and nickel cadméwe heavier, have lower energy and require megqént charging.

Within this segment, we also seek to fund, and lmeen successful in obtaining funding for, the depelent of new products to advance our technoldgiesigt
contracts with both government agencies and thirtigsa
We continue to obtain development contracts foeliettual property that we believe will enhance offores to commercialize new products that

develop. Revenues in this segment that pertaiectonology contracts may vary widely each yeareddmg upon the quantity and size of contractsinbth

Revenues for this segment for the year ended Dese&ih 2013 were $57,077 and segment contributiarsggprofit) was $14,338.




Communications Systems

Under our McDowell Research and AMTI brands, we desighraanufacture a line of communications systemsaaedssories to support military communicat
systems, including RF amplifiers, power suppliesyg@ocables, connector assemblies, amplified speakgrspment mounts, case equipment, rpartable systems a
integrated communication systems for fixed or vighapplications such as vehicle adapters and SATG@8tems. All systems are packaged to meet spexifitome
needs in rugged enclosures to allow for their useximeme environments. We market these productdltbranches of the U.S. military and approved fgmedefens
organizations, as well as, U.S. and internationah@defense contractors.

Revenues for this segment for the year ended Dese@ih 2013 were $21,758 and segment contributiasggprofit) was $8,283.
Corporate

We allocate revenues and cost of sales acrosshibree eoperating segments. The balance of incomeeapénse, including but not limited to research
development expenses, and selling, general andnigtrative expenses, are reported as Corporatenegpe

There were no revenues for this category for ttee gaded December 31, 2013 and our corporate experese $23,245.

See Managemert’Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &es$ults of Operations and the 2013 Consolidatedrf€ial Statements and Notes theret:
additional information on the expenses referrediiove. For information relating to total assetsbgment, revenues for the last two years by segraed contribution
segment for the last two years, see Note 10 in tites\to Consolidated Financial Statements.

History

Ultralife formed as a Delaware corporation in Deceni8930. In March 1991, we acquired certain technpkgd assets from Eastman Kodak Company (“Kot
relating to its 9-volt lithium manganese dioxidenrechargeable battery. In December 1992, we complete initial public offering and became listed BASDAQ. In
June 1994, we formed a subsidiary, Ultralife BagterfUK) Ltd. (“Ultralife UK”"), which acquired certaiassets of Dowty Group PLC (“Dowtygnd provided us with
presence in Europe. In 2012, certain of our UfedllK operations were discontinued. See Note 2 to ems@lidated Financial Statements for more inforomati

In May 2006, we acquired ABLE New Energy Co., LIdABLE"), an established manufacturer of lithium batteriested in Shenzhen, China, which broadene
product offering, including a wide range of lithiutmeonyl chloride and lithiunmnanganese batteries and coin cells, and providddi@thl exposure to new consur
markets.

In July 2006, we finalized the acquisition of samtally all the assets of McDowell Research, Ltd#qDowell”), a manufacturer of military communicatic
accessories located originally in Waco, Texas, whogerations were relocated to our Newark, New YorKifiaaduring the second half of 2007, which enhancex
channels into the military communications area amdngthened our presence in global defense market3anuary 2012, we relocated these operatiormitd/irginie
Beach, Virginia facility in order to gain operatidrdficiencies.

In September 2007, we acquired RedBlack Communitsititnc. (“RedBlack”),located in Hollywood, Maryland, an engineering aedhnical services fir
specializing in the design, integration, and fiediof mobile, modular and fixesite communication and electronic systems. On &&pte 28, 2012, we entered into
closed a stock purchase agreement to sell 100%umntapital stock in RedBlack to BCF Solutions, I&2e Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statemfemtsnore
information.

In March 2008, we formed a joint venture, named Ufeg8atteries India Private Limited (“India JV*)ith our distributor partner in India. The India d¥semble
Ultralife power solution products and manages loedés and marketing activities, serving commeraiayernment and defense customers throughout Infia.hawv:
invested cash into the India JV, as consideratorifir 51% ownership stake in the India JV.

In March 2009, we acquired the tactical communicetiproducts business of Science Applications Intemal Corporation. The tactical communicationsdarots
business (“AMTI") designs, develops and manufacttaetical communications products including: anieig, manportable systems, cables, power solutions and ary
communications equipment, which are sold by Ultealihder the brand name AMTI. The acquisition stiemgéd our communications systems business anddeiwi:
with direct entry into the handheld radio/amplifiearket, complementing Ultralife’s communicationstgyns offerings.




Products, Services and Technology
Battery & Energy Product

A non-rechargeable battery is used until dischaagetithen discarded. The principal competing remfrargeable battery technologies are carbon alkaline an
lithium. We manufacture a range of non-rechargeahbltery products based on lithium manganese dipiithium manganese carbon mafheeride hybrid, and lithiur
thionyl chloride technologies.

We believe that the chemistry of lithium battersvides significant advantages over currentlyilals®e nonrechargeable battery technologies, which incl
lighter weight, longer operating time, longer shéd, and a wider operating temperature range. Ounrrechargeable batteries also have relatively flitage profiles, whic
provide stable power. Conventional n@thargeable batteries, such as alkaline battehiase sloping voltage profiles that result in desieg power durir
discharge. While the prices for our lithium bagsrare generally higher than commercially avadadlkaline batteries produced by others, we belteaé the increast
energy per unit of weight and volume of our batteméll allow longer operating time and less frequbattery replacements for our targeted applicatiohs a result, w
believe that our non-rechargeable batteries aoe pompetitive with other battery technologies quriee per unit of energy or volume basis.

Our non-rechargeable products include the followiragipct configurations:

9-Volt Lithium Battery. Our 9volt lithium battery delivers a unique combinatiohhigh energy and stable voltage, which resulta longer operating life for tl
battery and, accordingly, fewer battery replacementhile our 9-volt battery price is generally héglthan conventional 9elt carbon zinc and alkaline batteries, we bel
the enhanced operating performance and decreas&lassociated with battery replacement make aalt®attery more cost effective than conventidvatteries on a cc
per unit of energy or volume basis when used inreetyaof applications.

We market our %olt lithium batteries to OEM, distributor and rétaiarkets including industrial electronics, safatyd security and medical. Typical applicati
include: smoke alarms, wireless alarm systems, lgooeth stimulators, telemetry devices, blood analyzambulatory infusion pumps and parking metérssignifican
portion of the sales of our 9-volt battery is tojondJ.S. and international smoke alarm OEMs for ustheir long-life smoke alarms. We also manufacture9volt lithium
battery under private label for a variety of comipanAdditionally, we sell our 9elt battery to the broader consumer market throuafional and regional retail chains
Internet retailers.

Although designs exist using other battery confijars, such as three 2/3 A or 1/2 AA-type batteglisc we believe that our @slt solution is superior to the
alternatives. Our current 9-volt battery manufaoty capacity is adequate to meet forecasted custdemand over the next three years.

Cylindrical Batteries. Featuring high energy, wide temperature rangeg kshelf life and operating life, our cylindricatlls and batteries, based on both lith
manganese dioxide and lithium thionyl chloride tegdbgies, represent some of the most advancediittpower sources currently available. We markefide range ¢
cylindrical non-rechargeable lithium cells and bg#s in various sizes under both the Ultralife H&Rand ABLE brands. These include: D, C, 5/4 C, 1/2 88, A anc
other sizes, which are sold individually as wellpaskaged into multi-cell battery packs, includimg leading BA-5390 military battery, an alternatito the competing Li-
SO, BA-5590 battery, and one of the most widely usedebpttypes in the U.S. armed forces for portableiegfions. Our BA5390 battery provides 50% to 100%
energy (mission time) than the BA-5590, and itsediin approximately 60 military applications. Witte recent introduction of our lithium carbon mehmride hybric
chemistry, we now offer a D-cell that has 100% memergy than the competing Li-S-cell. This chemistry has been expanded into CC3/dnd 5/4F A sizes over |

past year, all with class leading energy density.

We market our line of lithium cells and batteriestihte OEM market for commercial, defense, mediaaset tracking and search and rescue applicatonsn(
others. Significant commercial applications in@dygpeline inspection equipment, automatic reclserd oceanographic devices. Asset tracking agjgits include RFI|
(Radio Frequency Identification) systems. Among ftiefense uses are manpack radios, night vision lgegghemical agent monitors and thermal ima
equipment. Medical applications include: AED’s (Amtated External Defibrillators), infusion pumps aalmetry systems. Search and rescue applicatichgle: ELTs
(Emergency Locator Transmitters) for aircraft alRIEB’s (Emergency Position Indicating Radio Beagdasships.




Thin Cell Batteries. We manufacture a range of thin lithium mangardisgide batteries under the Thin Céllbrand. Thin Cell batteries are flat, lightwei
batteries providing a unique combination of higlerey, long shelf life, wide operating temperatuaege and very low profile. With their thin prismafiiem and a high rat
of active materials to packaging, Thin Cell battercan efficiently fill most battery cavities. Weeacurrently marketing these batteries to OEMsdfoplications such
displays, wearable medical devices, theft detectjmtiems, and RFID devices.

In contrast to nomechargeable batteries, after a rechargeable pastelischarged, it can be recharged and reused tiraes. Generally, discharge and rech
cycles can be repeated hundreds of times in reebbhg batteries, but the achievable number of sycgcle life) varies among technologies and isn@portant competitiv
factor. All rechargeable batteries experience allsinat measurable, loss in energy with each cy€lee industry commonly reports cycle life in the rhen of cycles
battery can achieve until 80% of the battery'sahignergy capacity remains. In the rechargeabtgeilyamarket, the principal competing technologes nickel cadmiur
nickel metal hydride and lithium ion (includingHitim polymer) batteries. Rechargeable batteriesuaed in many applications, such as military rsdiaptop computel
mobile telephones, portable medical devices, weardéVices and many other commercial, defense amsliower products.

Three important performance characteristics ofchargeable battery are design flexibility, energygity and cycle life. Design flexibility refers the ability o
rechargeable batteries to be designed to fit @iadf shapes and sizes of battery compartmenta. grbfile batteries with prismatic geometry prowithe design flexibilit
to fit the battery compartments of today's eledtratevices. Energy density refers to the total amad electrical energy stored in a battery dividgdthe batterys weigh
and volume as measured in watt-hours per kilogragnveatthours per liter, respectively. High energy denbitteries generally are longer lasting power saupzeviding
longer operating time and necessitating fewer batecharges. High energy density and long achievaptle life are important characteristics for camipg rechargeat
battery technologies. Greater energy density vaithgt the use of batteries of a given weight orunad for a longer time period. Accordingly, gresteergy density wi
enable the use of smaller and lighter batterieb wfitergy comparable to those currently marketathium ion batteries, by the nature of their electremical properties, ¢
capable of providing higher energy density than parably sized batteries that utilize other chenaistand, therefore, tend to consume less volumenenght for a give
energy content. Long achievable cycle life, pattidy in combination with high energy density, istable for applications requiring frequent batteegharges, such
cellular telephones and laptop computers, and althe/siser to charge and recharge many times beégieing a difference in performance. We belidvat tour lithium iol
batteries generally have some of the highest erdeggity and longest cycle life available.

Lithium lon Cells and BatteriesWe market a variety of lithium ion cells and reafeable batteries comprising cells manufactured dgutable ce
manufacturers. These products are used in a veidety of applications including communications,dival and other portable electronic devices.

Battery Charging Systems and Accessori@® provide our customers with complete power systeiatisns, we offer a wide range of rugged militaryd
commercial battery charging systems and accessadksling smart chargers, multi-bay charging systand a variety of cables.

GenSet Enhancer.Our GenSet Enhancer provides energy storage d#ipahio generators and renewable energy sourtesghly promoting optimum efficienc
through the continuous charging and dischargingusflithium ion batteries incorporated into thetsys. The system is mobile, flexible and scalabdenf10 to 50 kWh ¢
battery storage and will significantly reduce fueinsumption while enabling the primary generatorpower source to be operated at 85%5% of its rated loe
capacity. The switch between the primary energycmand battery power is seamless to the user &nisdior silent and clean (zero emission) operatitien the batterit
are in use. Our lithium ion batteries allow for édonbus monitoring, reduce battery weight by a facbfour to five if comparable lead acid batterége used, and allc
much higher operating temperatures of up to 1460°) without degradation. The resulting beneffttower fuel consumption, extended life expectaegs maintenan
to the primary power source, and silent watch cdipabiake the GenSet Enhancer ideal for militarydsathat generate their own electricity.

Multi-Kilowatt Module. Our Multi-Kilowatt Module lithium ion battery system a large format battery utilizable for energyrage, battery backp, and remo
power applications. This product is a direct repfaent of 2.5 kWh and greater lead acid batterie’4i or 48V applications. It can be connected intipkes to obtail
higher-voltages and is capable of over 3,000 cywlgte maintaining 80% of its capacity.

Technology Contract©ur technology contract activities involve the depehent of new products or the advancement of egiginoducts through contracts w
both government agencies and third parties.




Communications Systems

Under our McDowell Research and AMTI brands, we desighraanufacture a line of communications systemsaaedssories to support military communicat
systems, including RF amplifiers, power suppliesyg@ocables, connector assemblies, amplified speakgrspment mounts, case equipment, rpartable systems a
integrated communication systems for fixed or vighapplications such as vehicle adapters and SATC@temss. We package all systems to meet specifioimes neec
in rugged enclosures to allow their use in extremaronments.

We offer a wide range of military communicationsteyss and accessories designed to enhance and ektegeration of communications equipment suc
vehicle-mounted, manpack and handheld transcei@nscommunications products include the followimgduct configurations:

RF Amplifiers.Our RF amplifiers include: 20, 50 and 75-watt ameiiand 2@vatt accessories and kits. These amplifiers ard tsextend the range of manp
and handheld tactical transceivers and can bearseabbile or fixed site applications.

Integrated System@ur integrated systems include: SATCOM systems; rdgdeployable case systems; multiband transceit®riciefcase power systems; c
transceiver cases; enroute communications casdsadio cases. These systems give communicatiogrsimps everything that is needed to provide ridisihks to suppo
C4ISR (Command, Control, Communications, Compuers Information, Surveillance and Reconnaissance).

Power System®Our power systems include: universal AC/DC power dapplith battery backup for tactical manpack anddhaid transceivers; Rover pou
supplies; interoperable power adapters and chargersable power systems; tactical combat and AC topd®er supplies, among many others. We can provides}
supplies for virtually all tactical communicatiodsvices.

Communications and Electronic®ur communications and electronics services inclinde design, integration, and fielding of portahiegbile and fixedsite
communications systems. Capabilities include eraging, rapid prototyping, and systems integration.

Sales and Marketing

We employ a staff of sales and marketing persoirméorth America, Europe and Asia. We sell our paduand services directly to commercial custor
including OEMs, as well as government and defenseceg in the U.S. and abroad and have contractu@h@ements with sales agents who market our produrct
commission basis in defined territories. While OBd§fteements and contracts contain vollrased pricing based on expected volumes, indusigtipes dictate that prici
is rarely adjusted retroactively when contract vadsnare not achieved. Every effort is made to adjuare prices accordingly, but the ability to @aslj prices is genera
based on market conditions.

We also distribute some of our products through ektio and international distributors and retailésir sales are generated primarily from customechas
orders. We have several lotgrm contracts with the U.S. government and othetarners. These contracts do not commit the cus®toespecific purchase volumes, nc
specific timing of purchase order releases, any ihelude fixed price agreements over various piiof time. In general we do not believe our sakesseasonal, althor
we may sometimes experience seasonality for soroarafilitary products based on the timing of goveemt fiscal budget expenditures.

A significant portion of our business comes fronesadf products and services to the U.S. and forgayernments through various contracts. These actstar
subject to procurement laws and regulations thatlatypolicies and procedures for acquiring goods services. The regulations also contain guidslifte managin
contracts after they are awarded, including conaitionder which contracts may be terminated, in whpla part, at the governmesttonvenience or for default. Failure
comply with the procurement laws or regulations esult in civil, criminal or administrative proceads involving fines, penalties, suspension of paysieor suspension
debarment from government contracting or subcotitrgdor a period of time.

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 20122@hd, we had one major customer, a large defensgpyricontractor, which comprised 25%, 21% and 21
our revenues, respectively in each year. There werther customers that comprised greater th#ndf®ur total revenues during these years.




In 2013, sales to U.S. and nbhS. customers were approximately $49,520 and $89&bpectively. For more information relatingréwenues by country for t
last two fiscal years and long-lived assets forldisetwo fiscal years by country of origin, see &l&0 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statgse

Battery & Energy Product

We target sales of our noeehargeable products to manufacturers of secanty safety equipment, medical devices, search ascue equipment, speci
instruments, point of sale equipment and meterjgieations, as well as users of military equipme@ur strategy is to develop sales and marketilgnaes with OEM
and governmental agencies that utilize our bagdrigheir products, commit to cooperative reseantth development or marketing programs, and recardmer produc!
for designin or replacement use in their products. We areemiing these markets through direct contact bysalgs and technical personnel, use of sales ager
stocking distributors, manufacturing under priviateel and promotional activities.

We seek to capture a significant market share fwrpsoducts within our targeted OEM markets, whichbeéeve, if successful will result in increased got
awareness and sales at the end-user or consuneér\ée are also selling our\@lt battery to the consumer market through limitethil distribution through a number
national retailers. Most military procurements dme directly by the specific government organixest requiring products, based on a competitivelibigl process. F
those military procurements that are not bid, thecprements are typically subject to an audit oé throducts underlying cost structure and associ
profitability. Additionally, we are typically requed to successfully meet contractual specificatamds to pass various qualification testing for thedpcts under contract
the military. An inability by us to pass these sefir our new products in a timely fashion could édna material adverse effect on future growth prasped/hen
government contract is awarded, there is a goverhmreredure that allows for unsuccessful comparie®rmally protest the award if they believe theyrevenjusth
treated in the governmentbid evaluation process. A prolonged delay inr#solution of a protest, or a reversal of an awasiilting from such a protest could ha
material adverse effect on our business, finargiatition and results of operations.

We market our products to defense organizatiortkerl).S. and other countries. These efforts haselted in us winning significant contracts. In teegber 201(
we were awarded a production contract by the Defemsggstics Agency for up to five years, with a maximtwtal potential of $42,100, to provide our BA-5386n-
rechargeable lithium manganese dioxide batteri¢isetd).S. military. Production deliveries begaithia first quarter of 2011. Through December 31,320de have receivt
orders for deliveries under this contract totali6g500. This contract is set to expire in 2015.

We target sales of our lithium ion rechargeabléebits and charging systems to OEM customers, dsawédistributors and resellers focused on ougeamarket:
We seek design wins with OEMs, and believe that asigh capabilities, product characteristics andt&ni integration will drive OEMs to incorporate doatteries int
their product offerings, resulting in revenue growgportunities for us.

We continue to expand our marketing activities ag pf our strategic plan to increase sales ofreahargeable products for commercial, standby, defean
communications applications, as well as haetlt devices, wearable devices and other electyomitable equipment. A key part of this expansimiudes increasing o
design and assembly capabilities as well as buildiurgnetwork of distributors and value added disiigbs throughout the world.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, our backlog relateBattery & Energy Products was $6,069 and $8,98&pectively. The decrease in our backlog relad
Battery & Energy Products is primarily due to cand delays in U.S. government and defense oradersiming of orders for our commercial businessie Thajority of th
2013 backlog is related to orders that are expectstiip throughout 2014.

Communications Systems

We target sales of our communications systems, twiniclude power solutions and accessories to sugonimunications systems such as RF amplifiers,
supplies, power cables, connector assemblies, detbipeakers, equipment mounts, case equipmerihtagtated communication systems, to military OEMd 8.S. an
allied foreign militaries. We sell our productsetitly and through authorized distributors to OEMd o defense organizations in the U.S. and intemally.

We market our products to defense organizations@iElls in the U.S. and internationally. These effagsulted in a number of significant contractsusr Fo
example, in January 2012, we received a significatér from an international customer for RF anilef and accessories in support of force modeinizat




At December 31, 2013 and 2012, our backlog relate@ammunications Systems orders was approximatedyf $hd $3,667, respectively. The decrease i
backlog related to Communications Systems orderxiisarily due to the fulfillment of a large muliear order for RF amplifiers and accessories irpsttpof force
modernization in a foreign country in 2013. Thegority of the 2013 backlog was related to orderd #ra expected to ship throughout 2014.

Patents, Trade Secrets and Trademarks

We rely on licenses of technology as well as ouemtad and unpatented proprietary information, kihmw and trade secrets to maintain and develo)
competitive position. Despite our efforts to protear proprietary information, there can be no emsce that others will neither develop the samsimilar informatiot
independently nor obtain access to our proprieitafigrmation. In addition, there can be no assueathat we would prevail if we asserted our intellettproperty right
against third parties, or that third parties witt successfully assert infringement claims agaissin the future. We believe, however, that oucess depends more on
knowledge, ability, experience and technologicalegtipe of our employees, than on the legal praiadtiat our patents and other proprietary rightg orawill afford.

We hold seventeen patents in the U.S. and foremymtcies. Our patents protect technology that makesmated production more cesfective and protec
important competitive features of our products. Hoevewe do not consider our business to be depemtgpatent protection.

In 2003, we entered into an agreement with Saft Grd@p. to license certain tooling for battery cas€ke licensing fee associated with this agreensebased c
a percentage of the sales price of the individadtely case, up to a maximum of one dollar perebattase. The total royalty expense reflecteddh32and 2012 wi
$1. This agreement is scheduled to expire in 2017.

As part of our employment commencement processemynoyees are required to enter into agreementsding for confidentiality of certain informatiomd the
assignment of rights to inventions made by themevaihployed by us. These agreements also contdaircapncompetition and nonsolicitation provisi@ifective durini
the employment term and for varying periods theezafepending on position and location. There @andassurance that we will be able to enforce thgs=ements. All «
our employees agree to abide by the terms of a @bdethics policy that provides for the confidefitia of certain information received during the cse of thei
employment.

Trademarks are an important aspect of our busindsssell our products under a number of trademawksch we own or use under license. The followine
registered trademarks of ours: Ultralie, Ultralife Thin Cell® , Ultralife HiRate® , The New Power Generatiah, LithiumPowerd , SmartCircuit] , We Are Powef] ,
AMTI O, ABLE O , McDowell Research®, and Max Juice For More Gigs®.

Manufacturing and Raw Materials

We manufacture our products from raw materials amdponent parts that we purchase. Our manufacturuitifitss in Newark, New York are ISO 9001:2008, |
14001, and ISO 13485 certified. Our manufacturingifees in Shenzhen, China are ISO 9001:2008 and 18001 certified. Our manufacturing facilities in imga Beacl
Virginia are 1SO 9001:2008 certified.

We expect our future raw material purchases totdlte based on our knowledge regarding the timingusfomer orders, the related need to build invgnit
anticipation of orders and actual shipment dates.

Battery & Energy Product

Our Newark, New York and Shenzhen, China facilities haeecapacity to produce cylindrical cellsy8k batteries, and thin cells. Capacity, howevsralisc
related to individual operations, and product nfiamges can produce bottlenecks in an individuatatjps, constraining overall capacity. We haveusiegyl new machine
and equipment in areas where production bottlenkake resulted in the past and we believe that we bafficient capacity in these areas. We contiyuavaluate oL
requirements for additional capital equipment, amdbelieve that the planned increases will be adegoaneet foreseeable customer demand.

Certain materials used in our products are avalalply from a single source or a limited numbesofirces. Additionally, we may elect to develop retathip:
with a single or limited number of sources for mitsrthat are otherwise generally available. Altjowe believe that alternative sources are avalabksupply materia
that could replace materials we use and that, iéseary, we would be able to redesign our produatsatke use of an alternative product, any interaupith our supply fror
any supplier that serves currently as our solecsupuld delay product shipments and adverselyctffar financial performance and relationships vatlr customer.
Although we have experienced interruptions of prodigiveries by sole source suppliers, none of sotgrruptions has had a material adverse effeainAll other ra\
materials utilized by us are readily available frorany sources.
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We use various utilities to provide heat, light gomiver to our facilities. As energy costs rise, watmue to seek ways to reduce these costs andhititlte energy-
saving projects at times to assist in this effdris possible, however, that rising energy cosay mave an adverse effect on our financial results.

We believe that the raw materials and componentizedi for our rechargeable batteries are readilgilalile from many sources. Although we believe
alternative sources are available to supply mdsetfeat could replace materials we use, any intéioogn our supply from any supplier that servesrently as our so
source could delay product shipments and adveeddyt our financial performance and relationshiith our customers.

Our Newark, New York facility has the capacity to proelsignificant volumes of rechargeable batteriesthegs operation generally assembles battery pank
chargers and is limited only by physical spaceianwt constrained by manufacturing equipment cépac

The total carrying value of our Battery & Energyofucts inventory, including raw materials, work irogess and finished goods, amounted to approxiy
$15,489 and $22,871 as of December 31, 2013 ang| 28dpectively.

Communications Systesn

In general, we believe that the raw materials andpmorants utilized by us for our communications aseges and systems, including RF amplifiers, p«
supplies, cables, repeaters and integration kitsagailable from many sources. Although we belithat alternative sources are available to suppdyenmls that cou
replace materials we use, any interruption in oyplufrom any supplier that serves currently as sale source could delay product shipments andraéelyeaffect oL
financial performance and relationships with ourteomers.

Our Virginia Beach, Virginia facility has the capacib produce communications products and systerhss operation generally assembles products ahhited
only by physical space and is not constrained byufecturing equipment capacity.

The total carrying value of our Communications 8gst inventory, including raw materials, work in preeand finished goods, amounted to approximatelyS&t
and $7,499 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, résgigct

Research and Development

We concentrate significant resources on research dmvelopment activities to improve upon our tedbgical capabilities and to design new products
customersapplications. We conduct our research and developinéNewark, New York, Virginia Beach, Virginia, Tallassee, Florida and Shenzhen, China. During
and 2012, we expended approximately $5,900 and @7 y28pectively, on research and development, dirdu$403 and $1,200, respectively, on customenspe!
research and development activities. We expedt ridsearch and development expenditures in theuttll be modestly higher than those in 2013, asv produc
development initiatives will drive our growth. As the past, we will continue to make funding decisidor our research and development efforts based sfrategi
demand for customer applications.
Battery & Energy Product

We continue to internally develop non-rechargeablés and batteries that broaden our product offetd our customers.

We continue to internally develop our rechargegisteduct portfolio, including batteries, cables af@rging systems, as our customemséds for portable pow
continue to grow.

The U.S. government sponsors research and developrograms designed to improve the performancesafiety of existing battery systems and to develog
battery systems.
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Communications Systems

We continue to internally develop a variety of coomitations accessories and systems for the glodfehde market to meet the ewdianging demands of ¢
customers.

Safety; Regulatory Matters; Environmental Consideratons

Certain of the materials utilized in our battenmay pose safety problems if improperly used, stooedhandled. We have designed our batteries tanmie safet
hazards both in manufacturing and use.

The transportation of non-rechargeable and rechhigdithium batteries is regulated in the U.S. by Department of TransportatisnPipeline and Hazardc
Materials Safety Administration (“PHMSA”), and imteationally by the International Civil Aviation Orgaation (“ICAO") and corresponding International Air Trans
Association (“IATA”) Dangerous Goods Regulations and thternational Maritime Dangerous Goods Code (“IMPGInd other country specific regulations. Tt
regulations are based on the United Nations Recomatiend on the Transport of Dangerous Goods Model Régos and the United Nations Manual of Tests
Criteria. We currently ship our products pursuamtPHMSA, ICAO, IATA, IMDG and other country specific hagaus goods regulations. The regulations re:
companies to meet certain testing, packaging, ildpearking and shipping paper specificationsdafety reasons. We have not incurred, and doxp#at to incur, ar
significant costs in order to comply with these lagans. We believe we comply with all current U.8d dnternational regulations for the shipment of products, and v
intend and expect to comply with any new regulatittvad are imposed. We have established our owiimgefcilities to ensure that we comply with thesgulations. If w
are unable to comply with the new regulations, howeweif regulations are introduced that limit aur our customers’ ability to transport our produicis costeffective
manner, this could have a material adverse effecun business, financial condition and resultspdrations.

The European Union’s Restriction of Hazardous Sulssr{’"RoHS") Directive places restrictions on the use of certamardous substances in electrical
electronic equipment. All applicable products saidhie European Union market must pass RoHS comglidnile this directive does not apply to battedes does ni
currently affect our defense products, should @mnges occur in the directive that would affect praducts, we intend and expect to comply with aew megulations th
are imposed, however, we cannot assure you thatodteo€ complying with such new regulations would hate a material effect on us. Our commercial chargee il
compliance with this directive. Additional Eur@reUnion Directives, entitled the Waste Electricadl &lectronic Equipment (“WEEE”) Directive and théréxtive "on
batteries and accumulators and waste batteriesanunallators” , impose regulations affecting our-defense products. These directives require thatymers or importe
of particular classes of electrical goods are faiaiy responsible for specified collection, redng|, treatment and disposal of past and future @/@roducts. The
directives assign levels of responsibility to comipa doing business in European Union markets baiseteir relative market share. These directivdisoteeach Europe:
Union member state to enact enabling legislatioogdement the directive. As additional European Unieember states pass enabling legislation our camqi systel
should be sufficient to meet such requirements. €urent estimated costs associated with our comgsiavith these directives based on our current etakare are n
significant. However, we continue to evaluate the icogd these directives as European Union membeessiaiplement guidance, and actual costs couldrdiféen oul
current estimates.

The European Unios’Battery Directive "on batteries and accumulatos\easte batteries and accumulators” is intendedver all types of batteries regardles
their shape, volume, weight, material compositionse. It is aimed at reducing mercury, cadmiweadland other metals in the environment by minimgizhe use of the
substances in batteries and by treating angsieg old batteries. The Directive applies to gllety of batteries except those used to protect Earopember States' secur
for military purposes, or sent into space. To eghithese objectives, the Directive prohibits tlegkmting of some batteries containing hazardoustanbes. It establist
schemes aimed at high level of collection and rérgoof batteries with quantified collection and yeling targets. The Directive sets out minimumesufor produce
responsibility and provisions with regard to labgliof batteries and their removability from equipmeRroduct markings are required for batteries aocmulators 1
provide information on capacity and to facilitateise and safe disposal. We currently ship ourymtschursuant to the requirements of the Directive.

China’s “Management Methods for Controlling Poltuti Caused by Electronic Information Products Re@na (“China RoHS”) provides a twstep, broa
regulatory framework including similar hazardousstahce restrictions as are imposed by the Europe#n’s RoHS Directive, and applies to methods for thetrob anc
reduction of pollution and other public hazardste environment caused during the production, sald,import of electronic information products (FE) in China affectin
a broad range of electronic products and partgre@tly, only the first step of the regulatory frework of China RoHS, which details marking and laigeliequiremen
under Standard SJT11364-2006 (“Marking Standard®),in effect. However, the methods under China Robily apply to EIP placed in the marketplace
China. Additionally, the Marking Standard does apply to components sold to OEM’s for use in otB#?s. Our sales in China are limited to sales to GEdhd ti
distributors who supply to OEM’s. Should our salésitegy change to include direct sales to end-useesbelieveour compliance system is sufficient to meet
requirements under China RoHS. Our current estimetets associated with our compliance with this @i based on our current market share are naffisiant.
However, we continue to evaluate the impact of thgsilgion, and actual costs could differ from ourrent estimates.
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National, state and local laws impose various enwiremal controls on the manufacture, transportatgtarage, use and disposal of batteries and o&io
chemicals used in the manufacture of batteries.oliiihh we believe that our operations are in substiacdimpliance with current environmental regulasiothere can be
assurance that changes in such laws and regulatidneot impose costly compliance requirementsumor otherwise subject us to future liabilities.efiéh can be r
assurance that additional or modified regulaticglating to the manufacture, transportation, storage and disposal of materials used to manufaciurebatteries «
restricting disposal of batteries will not be impdsr how these regulations will affect us or owstomers, that could have a material adverse effeciur business, financ
condition and results of operations. In 2013, 204/&d 2011, we spent approximately $38, $190, arkl $despectively, on environmental controls, inalgdcosts t
properly dispose of potentially hazardous waste.

Since norrechargeable and rechargeable lithium battery céteies react adversely with water and water vapertam of our manufacturing processes mus
performed in a controlled environment with low relathumidity. Our Newark, New York and Shenzhen, Clférdities contain dry rooms or glove box equipmext wel
as specialized air-drying equipment.

In addition to the environmental regulations presgly described, our products are subject to U.Simednational laws and regulations governing ird¢ional trad
and exports including but not limited to the Intional Traffic in Arms Regulations (“ITAR”), the rrt Administration Regulations (“EAR’@nd trade sanctions agai
embargoed countries.

The ITAR is a set of United States government regulatthat control the export and import of deferedated articles and services on the United Steigsitions
List. These regulations implement the provisionshef Arms Export Control Act , and are describechian €ode of Federal Regulations. The Departmentai Rirectorat
of Defense Trade Controls interprets and enforca&lLTts goal is to safeguard U.S. national securnity further U.S. foreign policy objectives.

The related EAR are enforced and interpreted byBilmeau of Industry and Security in the Commerceddepent. The Department of Defense is also invola
the review and approval process. Physical enforoeémeimport and export laws at border crossingpasformed by Customs and Border Protection, an @gen the
Department of Homeland Security.

Products and services developed and manufacturedriforeign locations are subject to the export Bmport controls of the nation in which the foneilpcatior
operates.

We believe we are in substantial compliance withahdmmmestic and international export regulations. elmw, failure of compliance could have a maternibleast
effect on our business through possible fines,alefiexport privileges, or loss of customers. Rearf while we are not aware of any proposed changtsese regulation
any change in the scope or enforcement of exparhport regulations or related legislation could/éna material adverse affect on our business tirangreased costs
compliance or reduction in the international groptbspects available to us.

Our future estimated costs associated with our campd with ITAR, EAR, and the foreign export and imigmntrols we are subject to based on our curralet
volumes are not significant. However, we continuevaluate the impact of these regulations, and bctsas could differ from our current estimates.

Battery & Energy Product

Our nonrechargeable battery products incorporate lithiuetaip which reacts with water and may cause firesoif mandled properly. In the past, we +
experienced fires that have temporarily interruptedain manufacturing operations. We believe thathave adequate fire suppression systems anchie®) includin
business interruption insurance, to protect agaiesbccurrence of fires and fire losses in ouilifees.

Our 9-volt battery, among other sizes, is desigoetbhform to the dimensional and electrical stadslaf the American National Standards Institute} tie 9volt
battery and a range of 3-volt cells are recognimedkr the Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. Componeaognition Program.

Communications Systems
We are not currently aware of any regulatory rezquents regarding the disposal of communicationdymts.
Corporate

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Etiote Act of 2010 Section 1502 (the “Dodd-Frank Aat&quires public companies to disclose whe
certain minerals (such as tantalum, tin, gold amdjsten), commonly known as “conflict mineralare necessary to the functionality or productioa pfoduct manufactur
by a public company and if those minerals origidatethe Democratic Republic of Congo or an adjainbountry. To comply with the Dodérank Act, as implemented
SEC rules, we are required to perform due diligesmee disclose whether or not our products contaith snmerals and from which countries and source (&mjethe
minerals were obtained. The first report is dueviay 31, 2014 for the 2013 calendar year and werapéeimenting appropriate measures to comply with seghirements.

Competition

Competition in both the battery and communicatisgstems markets is, and is expected to remainngateThe competition ranges from development
companies to major domestic and international camigsa many of which have financial, technical, nedirkg, sales, manufacturing, distribution and othesource
significantly greater than ours. We compete agatostpanies producing batteries as well as compgnisucing communications systems. We compete erb#sis ¢
design flexibility, performance, price, reliabilignd customer support. There can be no assuraateotin technologies and products will not be rendievesolete b
developments in competing technologies or servibas are currently under development or that mayléeeloped in the future or that our competitord wilt marke
competing products and services that obtain masetptance more rapidly than ours.
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Historically, although other entities may attemptake advantage of the growth of the battery matket/ithium battery cell industry has certain teclogical an
economic barriers to entry. The development dfiretogy, equipment and manufacturing techniquesthadperation of a facility for the automated pretibn of lithiurr
battery cells require large capital expendituresictv may deter new entrants from commencing praductThrough our experience in battery cell mantifeing, we hav
also developed expertise, which we believe would fiieuli to reproduce without substantial time angbense in the non-rechargeable battery market.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we employed a total of SThanent and temporary employees: 51 in reseathl@velopment, 442 in production and 104 in satel
administration. None of our employees are represey a labor union.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business faces many risks. As such, prospeictastors and shareholders should carefully censadd evaluate all of the risk factors describeldw as we
as other factors discussed in this Annual ReporFeamm 10K and in our other filings with the SEC. Any of tkefactors could adversely affect our businessnfiie
conduction and results of operations. Additionsksiand uncertainties that are not currently kntws or that are not currently believed by usdartaterial may also ha
our business operations and financial results.s&@hisk factors may change from time to time ang im& amended, supplemented, or superseded by spaatee ris
factors contained in periodic reports on Form 18rAgd Form 10-K that we file with the SEC in the future.

A significant portion of our revenues is derivednfra certain key custome

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and,2@&%had one major customer, a large defense prim@myractor, which comprised 25% and 21% of
revenues, respectively in each year. There werether customers that comprised greater than 10%uoftotal revenues during these years. The reductielay o
cancellation of orders from this customer for aagson would reduce our revenue and operating in@rdecould materially and adversely affect our bessn operatir
results and financial condition in other ways.

Reductions in U.S. and foreign military spending dchdve a material adverse effect on our businé@sanéial condition and results of operatiol

A significant portion of our revenues is derivednfr@ontracts with the U.S. and foreign militariesQMs that supply the U.S. and foreign militariestie year
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, approximatel3@82r 66% and $66,200 or 65%, respectively, ofreuenues were comprised of sales made directlydireictly tc
the U.S. and foreign militaries.

We are highly dependent on sales to U.S. Governmmastbmers. The percentage of our net revenue thatdedved from sales to U.S. Government custol
including the Department of Defense, whether diyeatlthrough prime contractors, was approximatel9,680 or 50% in 2013 and $43,700 or 43% in 2012r&fore, an
significant disruption or deterioration of our rédeship with the U.S. Government would significantigduce our revenue. Our competitors continuoesbage in efforts
expand their business relationships with the U.S.eBoment and will continue these efforts in the fatand the U.S. Government may choose to use oth&actors.

Budget and appropriations decisions made by the Go8ernment, including possible future sequestnafieriods or other similar formulaic reductionsfédera
expenditures, are outside of our control and hamg-term consequences for our business. A dedlitie $. military expenditures could result in a retéhrcin the militarys
demand for our products, which could have a matadaérse effect on our business, financial condiéind results of operations.

Our efforts to develop new commercial applicationofor products could be prolonged or could fail.

Although we are involved with developing certain prots for new commercial applications, we cannotigsthat acceptance of our products will occur autind
highly competitive nature of the business. Theeemaany new product and technology entrants intartheketplace, and we must continually reassess #ikainsegments
which our products can be successful and seek tagengustomers in these segments that will adopprmgucts for use in their products. In addititrgse companies mi
be successful with their products in their marketsus to gain increased business. Increased cdmpefailure to gain customer acceptance of patsiuthe introduction
competitive technologies or failure of our custosiertheir markets could have a further adversecéfin our business and reduce our revenue andtopeincome.
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A decline in demand for products using our battedesommunications systems could reduce demand fopradiucts and/or our products could become obso

A substantial portion of our business depends ord¢inued demand for products using our battemescommunications systems sold by our customestding
original equipment manufacturers. Our successrpsignificantly upon the success of those custerpeoducts in the marketplace. We are subject toymiaks beyon
our control that influence the success or failura particular product or service offered by a oo®r, including:

. competition faced by the customer in its particihaustry,

. market acceptance of the customer’s product oiicssrv

. the engineering, sales, marketing and managempabiies of the customer,

. technical challenges unrelated to our technologyroducts faced by the customer in developingrigsipcts or services, and
. the financial and other resources of the customer.

For instance, in the years ended December 31, 20832012, 16% and 14% of our revenues, respectiwadye comprised of sales of ouv8kt batteries, and
this, approximately 13% and 26%, respectively,aeéd to sales to smoke alarm original equipmemtufegcturers. If the retail demand for lohfg- smoke alarms decrea:
significantly or if innovation leads to alternatiseurces of power for lonlife smoke alarms, this could have a material aslvexffect on our business, financial condition
results of operations.

The market for our products is characterized byngivey technology and evolving industry standardigroresulting in product obsolescence or shordpe
lifecycles. Although we believe that our products aomprised of state-of-tret technology, there can be no assurance that etitons will not develop technologies
products that would render our technologies andlyets obsolete or less marketable. Many of the emies with which we compete have substantially greassurce
than we do, and some have the capacity and voldilbesiness to be able to produce their productsrefficiently than we can. In addition, these cones are developit
or have developed products using a variety of teldyies that are expected to compete with our tdolgies. If these companies successfully market fr@ducts in
manner that renders our technologies obsoletewtbigd reduce our revenue and operating income anttidhave other material adverse effects on ouinkss, financi
condition and results of operations.

The global recession that began in 2008 adversi#@cted and may continue to adversely affect ouinlegs and our industries, as well as the industaied businesses of
many of our customers and suppliers.

In general, our operating results can be signifiyaaifected by negative economic conditions, hiigihor, material and commodity costs and unforestamges i
demand for our products and services. The globadssion, and the sluggish pace of the recoveryltessin a significant decrease in customer demadjnishec
availability of credit and other capital, throughdu all of our end markets. The volatile domestitl global recessionary climate could continueaieeha negative impact
demand for our products and services, which maytjreeduce our sales and profitability.

Our quarterly and annual results and the price of oammon stock could fluctuate significantly.

Our future operating results may vary significaritym quarter to quarter and from year to year ddpenon factors such as the timing and shipmesigidifican
orders, new product introductions, U.S. and foreigmegnment demand, delays in customer releasesrohase orders, delays in receiving raw materialsmfvendors, tt
mix of distribution channels through which we selt products and services and general economic tonsli Frequently, a substantial portion of oweraue in each quar
is generated from orders booked and fulfilled dgitimat quarter. As a result, revenue levels afecdif to predict for each quarter. If revenueukts are below expectatiol
operating results will be adversely affected as eecha sizeable base of fixed overhead costs thabtfluctuate much with the changes in revenue. f@usich varianci
in operating results, we have sometimes failed tetpand in the future may not meet, market expiectsior even our own guidance regarding our futperating results.

In addition to the uncertainties of quarterly amth@al operating results, future announcements ecoimgeus or our competitors, including technologicaovation:
or commercial products, litigation or public conte@s to the safety or commercial value of one arenof our products may cause the market pricauocommon stock
fluctuate substantially for reasons which may beelated to our operating results. These fluctuesticas well as general economic, political, contipetiand marke
conditions, may have a material adverse effechemtarket price of our common stock.
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Our operations in China are subject to unique rigksl uncertainties.

Our operating facility in China presents risks imtthg, but not limited to, changes in local regutgtiequirements, including changes in labor lawsal wage law:
environmental regulations, taxes and operatinghiies, compliance with U.S. regulatory requiremeimsiuding the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, undeties as t
application and interpretation of local laws andoecément of contract and intellectual property tsgtturrency restrictions, currency exchange ctstftuctuations c
currency, and currency revaluations, eminent doroaims, civil unrest, power outages, water shortalgésr shortages, labor disputes, increase irrlabsts, rapid chang
in government, economic and political policies, il or civil unrest, acts of terrorism, or thleréat of boycotts, and other civil disturbanceg @@ outside of o
control. Any such disruptions could depress ouniegs and have other material adverse effects obusiness, financial condition and results of afiens.

Any impairment of goodwill and indefir-lived intangible assets, and other intangible ésseould negatively impact our results of operagion

Our goodwill and indefinitdived intangible assets are subject to an impaitntest on an annual basis and are also tested wieegents and circumstan
indicate that goodwill and/or indefinite-lived in@ible assets may be impaired. Any excess goodwidi@anindefinitelived intangible assets value resulting from
impairment test must be written off in the perioddetermination. Intangible assets (other than galbdnd indefinitelived intangible assets) are generally amortizeel
the useful life of such assets. In addition, frome to time, we may acquire or make an investnierg business which will require us to record goobidgsed on tr
purchase price and the value of the acquired téngitd intangible assets. We may subsequentlyriexpe unforeseen issues with such business whictrsely affect th
anticipated returns of the business or value ofititengible assets and trigger an evaluation ofréw®verability of the recorded goodwill and intasigi assets for su
business. Future determinations of significantesoffs of goodwill or intangible assets as a resulapfimpairment test or any accelerated amortizagfoother intangibl
assets could have a negative impact on our restiitperations and financial condition. We are tandy reviewing the costs and the benefits of irgirseveral of ot
current brands, the retirement of which could reBult non-cash impairment charge of the associatefinitedived intangible asset, reducing operating earnimgshe
associated amount or amounts on the balance s&ehave completed our annual impairment analgsigdodwill and indefinitdived intangible assets, in accordance
the applicable accounting guidance, and have cdedithat we do not have any impairment of goodwitl amdefinitelived intangible assets for the year ended Dece
31, 2013. However, due to the narrow margin of pastie testing in 2013, there is potential thatMe®owell - Communications Systems trademark may become g
or fully impaired in 2014 if the projected revertaegets are not met. As of December 31, 2013, thBdvell - Communications Systems trademark had a carryihge\a
$2,400.

Breaches in security and other disruptions, coduididish our ability to generate revenues or contedsts and negatively impact our business in othgsv

We face certain security threats, including threatsur information technology infrastructure, atfs to gain access to our proprietary or claskifidormation
and threats to physical security. Our informatieshnhology networks and related systems are critiwahe operation of our business and essentialutoability tc
successfully perform day-tday operations. The risks of a security breacldisruption, particularly through cyber attack oibey intrusion, including actions taken
computer hackers, foreign governments and cybeortsts, has increased as the number, intensitysaptiistication of attempted attacks and intrusimos around th
world have increased. Although we have acquired @ageloped systems and processes designed to pmtegroprietary or classified information, they ynaot be
sufficient and the failure to prevent these typesvents could disrupt our operations, require ificant management attention and resources, anidl cagatively impact or
reputation among our customers and the public, wtithd have a negative impact on our financial diol and weaken results of operations and liquidit

Our growth and expansion strategy could strain ogrgvhelm our resources.

Rapid growth of our business could significantigst management, operations and technical resauttese are successful in obtaining rapid marketgh of ou
products and services, we will be required to deliaege volumes of quality products and increassels of services to customers on a timely basisraasonable cost. |
example, demand for our new or existing producteliined with our ability to penetrate new markets gedgraphies, could strain the current capacityuofreanufacturin
facilities and require additional equipment andetito build a sufficient support infrastructure. \ténnot assure, however, that our business willvgapidly or that oL
efforts to expand manufacturing and quality congiivities will be successful or that we will be elbd satisfy commercial scale production requiremen a timely ar
cost-effective basis.
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We also may be required to continue to improve @perations, management and financial systems anttot® in order to remain competitive. The failuo
manage growth and expansion effectively could hawvadverse effect on our business, financial comlitand results of operations.

Negative publicity of lithiurion batteries may negatively impact the industaemarkets we operate in.

We are unable to predict the impact, severity oation of negative publicity and how it may impau¢ industries or markets we serve. Ongoing negatteatior
being given to lithium ion batteries that are imtggd into the power systems of new commercial dirarad electric motor vehicles may have an imparctte lithium ior
battery industry as a whole, regardless of the desigisage of those batteries. The residual eftéfcgsich events could have an adverse effect orbosiness, financi
condition, and results of operations.

We may incur significant costs because of the waiea we supply with our products and services.

With respect to our battery products, we typicalffer warranties against any defects due to prodwafunction or workmanship for a period up to omaryfron
the date of purchase. With respect to our comnatioics systems products, we now offer up to a tlyese-warranty. Previously, we had offered up tooarfeal
warranty. We provide for a reserve for these paemtarranty expenses, which is based on an anabfsigstorical warranty issues. There is no asswahat futur
warranty claims will be consistent with past histaapd in the event we experience a significant irsgea warranty claims, there is no assurance thateserves will b
sufficient. This could have a material adverse@fbn our business, financial condition and resefitoperations.

The loss of top management and key personnel cayhifisantly harm our business, and the ability td puplace a succession plan and recruit experieh@mpetel
management is critical to the success of the busines

The loss of top management and key personnel caighdficantly harm our business, and the abilitypit in place a succession plan and recruit expeeid
competent management is critical to the successiobusiness. The continuity of our officers amdautive team are vital to the successful implemgon of our busine:
model and growth strategy designed to deliver faitde, consistent profitability. A top managemepribrity has been the development and implementadiba forma
succession plan to mitigate the risks associatéfl tive loss of senior executives. There is no guaesthat we will be successful in our efforts tieetively implement ot
succession plan.

Because of the specialized, technical nature obasmess, we are highly dependent on certain mendie@ur management, sales, engineering and tealrstaffs.
The loss of these employees could have a mateha@rse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations. Our ability to effediveursue our busine
strategy will depend upon, among other factors,sthecessful retention of our key personnel, recreitirof additional highly skilled and experiencednagerial, sale
engineering and technical personnel, and the iatiEgr of such personnel obtained through businegsisitions. We cannot assure that we will be ableetain or recru
this type of personnel. An inability to hire safént numbers of people or to find people with tlesiced skills could result in greater demands beillaged on limite
management resources which could delay or impedexeution of our business plans and have otheznahtdverse effects on our business, financiatliton and resul
of operations.

Our supply of raw materials and components couldibeigted.

Certain materials and components used in our ptsdare available only from a single or a limitednier of suppliers. As such, some materials and coenie
could become in short supply resulting in limitacitability and/or increased costs. Additionally, wey elect to develop relationships with a singldiraited number ¢
suppliers for materials and components that areratise generally available. Due to our involvemerihwiupplying defense products to the governmentcawd receive
government preference to continue to obtain clisepplies to meet military production needs. Hoere¥f the government did not provide us with a gmment preferen:
in such circumstances, the difficulty in obtainisgpplies could have a material adverse effect anbasiness, financial condition and results of afiens. Although w
believe that alternative suppliers are availablsupply materials and components that could repiaaterials and components currently used and ithecessary, we wou
be able to redesign our products to make use df aliernatives, any interruption in the supply frany supplier that serves as a sole source coléy geoduct shipmen
and have a material adverse effect on our busiffiessicial condition and results of operations. We experienced interruptions of product dela®iy sole sour
suppliers in the past, and we cannot guaranteenthatill not experience a material interruption ofigries from sole source suppliers in the futubelditionally, we couli
face increasing pricing pressure from our suppliggendent upon volume due to rising costs by thapeliers that could be passed on to us in highees for our ra
materials, which could increase our cost of busirlesger our margins and have other materially adveféects on our business, financial condition eeslilts of operation
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Our customers may not meet the volume expectatiang isupply agreements.

We sell most of our products and services througiply agreements and contracts. While supply ageeés and contracts contain volulvesed pricing based
expected volumes, we cannot assure that such amjot will be made under current industry practipesing is rarely adjusted retroactively when cant volumes are n
achieved. Every effort is made to adjust futuregs accordingly, but our ability to adjust prigeggenerally based on market conditions and we nuype able to adju
prices in various circumstances.

Any inability to protect our proprietary and intetitual property could allow our competitors and oth& produce competing products based on our petary anc
intellectual property.

We believe our success depends more on the knowledigity, experience and technological expenrtiseur employees than on the legal protection ¢émiz an
other proprietary rights. We claim proprietaryhtig in various unpatented technologies, kriawy, trade secrets and trademarks relating to ptsdared manufacturir
processes. We cannot guarantee the degree otfwot¢hese various claims may or will afford, oattitompetitors will not independently develop otepé technologie
that are substantially equivalent or superior to teehnology. We protect our proprietary rightsomr products and operations through contractugatons, includin
nondisclosure agreements with certain employeesomess, consultants and strategic partners. Ttamebe no assurance as to the degree of protebise contractu
measures may or will afford. We have had patess#sdd and have patent applications pending in tBe &hd elsewhere. We cannot assure (1) that patéhtse issue:
from any of these pending applications, or thatdlaéms allowed under any patents will be suffitigiroad to protect our technology, (2) that amyemts issued to us v
not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented3)yras to the degree or adequacy of protectionpatgnts or patent applications may or will affolflwe are found to
infringing third party patents, we cannot assure Weawill not be subjected to significant damagesvitirbe able to obtain licenses with respect to spatents on accepta
terms, if at all. The failure to obtain necessé@gnses could delay product shipments or the dhiction of new products, and costly attempts tagiearound such patel
could foreclose the development, manufacture @ shproducts.

Our ability to use our Net Operating Loss Carryfordsin the future may be limited, which could in@e®aur tax liabilities and reduce our net income.

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately $62,152.8f and U.K. net operating loss carryforwards (“NO).'available to offset future taxable income.
continually assess the carrying value of this asased on the relevant accounting standards. Aszoémber 31, 2013, we reflected a full valuatiopwadince against o
deferred tax asset to the extent the asset ishieti@ be offset by future reversing temporaryetighces. As we continue to assess the realizabiliyir deferred tax asse
the amount of the valuation allowance could be redudn addition, certain of our NOL carryforwarde aubject to U.S. alternative minimum tax such teatyforward
can offset only 90% of alternative minimum taxalsleome. Achieving our business plan targets, paetity those relating to revenue and profitability,integral to oL
assessment regarding the recoverability of oudefgtrred tax asset.

We could be adversely affected by violations ofiBd-oreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), the U.IBribery Act or other anti-corruption laws.

The FCPA, U.K. Bribery Act and other anti-corruptiamk generally prohibit companies and their interiamées from making improper payments (to foreign
officials and otherwise) and require companies &pkaccurate books and records and maintain apptepniternal controls. Our training program andgies mandate
compliance with such laws. We operate in some ditise world that have experienced governmentalugtion to some degree, and, in certain circumstsnstrict
compliance with anti-bribery laws may conflict withkchd customs and practices. If we are found to tediéor violations of anti-corruption laws (eithewelto our own acts
or our inadvertence, or due to the acts or inadwnes of others, including employees of our thirdyppartners or agents), we could suffer from caill criminal penalties «
other sanctions, incur significant internal invgation costs and suffer reputational harm.

We are subject to foreign currency fluctuations.

We maintain manufacturing operations in North Amerigarope and Asia, and we export products to vamousitries. We purchase materials and sell ourymts
in foreign currencies, and therefore currency flatibns may impact our pricing of products sold araterials purchased. In addition, our foreignstiaries maintain the
books in local currency, and the translation ostheubsidiary financial statements into U.S. dslfar our consolidated financial statements coualdehan adverse effect
our consolidated financial results, due to charnigdscal currency relative to the U.S. dollar. Acdingly, currency fluctuations could have a matesidverse effect on ¢
business, financial condition and results of openatby increasing our expenses and reducing conie.
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We are subject to the contract rules and procedofdbe U.S. and foreign governments. These ruldgpascedures create significant risks and uncettamfor us that ar
not usually present in contracts with private pesti

We will continue to develop battery products, conmiwations systems and services to meet the needlseot).S. and foreign governments. We compe
solicitations for awards of contracts. The receipan award, however, does not always result énittmediate release of an order and does not geeram any way ar
given volume of orders. Any delay of solicitatiamrsanticipated purchase orders by, or future failef, the U.S. or foreign governments to purchaselymts manufactur
by us could have a material adverse effect on asiness, financial condition and results of opereti Additionally, in these scenarios we are tylpiceequired tc
successfully meet contractual specifications angass various qualificatiotesting for the products under contract. Our ilitgbio pass these tests in a timely fashior
well as meet delivery schedules for orders release@ér contract, could have a material adverse teffeour business, financial condition and resoitsperations.

When a government contract is awarded, there isvargment procedure that permits unsuccessful corpda formally protest such award if they beliekiey
were unjustly treated in the evaluation process.aA®sult of these protests, the government is pded from proceeding under these contracts urgilpfotests a
resolved. A prolonged delay in the resolution pfatest, or a reversal of an award resulting froichsa protest could have material adverse effettsuo business, financ
condition and results of operations.

The U.S. and foreign governments can audit our emtgrwith their respective defense and governmgeneies and, under certain circumstances, can adfjisseconom
terms of those contracts.

A significant portion of our business comes fromesadf products and services to the U.S. and forgey@rnments through various contracts. These actstiar
subject to procurement laws and regulations thatlatypolicies and procedures for acquiring goods services. The regulations also contain guidslifte managin
contracts after they are awarded, including conaitionder which contracts may be terminated, in whpla part, at the governmesttonvenience or for default. Failure
comply with the procurement laws or regulations @sult in civil, criminal or administrative proceads involving fines, penalties, suspension of paysieor suspension
disbarment from government contracting or subcatitrg for a period of time.

Any inability to comply with changes to the regidas for the shipment of our products could limit ability to transport our products to customersancos-effective
manner and reduce our operating income and margins.

The transportation of lithium batteries is regulbtey the International Civil Aviation OrganizatioflQAO”) and corresponding International Air Trans)
Association (“IATA”) Dangerous Goods Regulations ane International Maritime Dangerous Goods Code (“IMP&hd in the U.S. by the Department of Transpatas
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administra{i®HMSA”). These regulations are based on the United NationerRaendations on the Transport of Dange
Goods Model Regulations and the United Nations Manfidlests and Criteria. We currently ship our prdupursuant to ICAO, IATA and PHMSA hazardous gt
regulations. These regulations require companieseet certain testing, packaging, labeling angghg specifications for safety reasons. We hantdéncturred, and do n
expect to incur, any significant costs in ordecoonply with these regulations. We believe we compith all current U.S. and international regulatidasthe shipment «
our products, and we intend and expect to comply ity new regulations that are imposed. We havélegiad our own testing facilities to ensure thatasenply witt
these regulations. If we are unable to comply Withnew regulations, however, or if regulations ateotluced that limit our ability to transport ouogucts to customers
a costeffective manner, this could reduce our operatimgpine and margins, and have other material adwdfsets on our business, financial condition ansults o
operations.

We are subject to certain safety risks, including fisk of fire, inherent in the manufacture, usd mansportation of lithium batteries.

Due to the high energy inherent in lithium batteriesr lithium batteries can pose certain safetigssisncluding the risk of fire. We incorporate pedures i
research, development, product design, manufactyriocesses and the transportation of lithium hiatteéhat are intended to minimize safety riskg,voe cannot assure tl
accidents will not occur or that our products wit tve subject to recall for safety concerns. Alfjfowe currently carry insurance policies which cdess of the plant ar
machinery, leasehold improvements, inventory argin@ss interruption, any accident, whether at thaufacturing facilities or from the use of the prots, may result
significant production delays or claims for damagesilting from injuries or death. While we maintaihat we believe to be sufficient casualty lidpitoverage to prote
against such occurrences, these types of losséd @miuce our operating income and have other mahtmilverse effects on our business, financial tmrdand results
operation.
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We may incur significant costs because of knownuenrktiown environmental matters.

National, state and local laws impose various enwiremal controls on the manufacture, transportatgtarage, use and disposal of batteries and o&io
chemicals used in the manufacture of batteries. Us& and generate a variety of chemicals and dtaeardous byroducts in our manufacturing operations. T
environmental laws govern, among other things, missions, wastewater discharges and the handliotgget and release of wastes and hazardous sulssteBiceh lan
and regulations can be complex and change. Althawggbelieve that our operations are in substantiaipliance with current environmental regulationd Hrat, except
noted below, there are no environmental condittbas will require material expenditures for clegm-at our present or former facilities or at fawh to which we have s¢
waste for disposal, there can be no assurancetthages in such laws and regulations will not impeusstly compliance requirements on us or otherwiggest us to futu
liabilities. There can be no assurance that aufditi or modified regulations relating to the mawtidiee, transportation, storage, use and disposahaterials used
manufacture our batteries or restricting dispos$adatteries will not be imposed or how these regaoiet will affect us or our customers. Such charnigeggulations coul
reduce our operating income and margins and hawer ohaterial adverse effects on our business, ¢inhnondition and results of operations. We caunlclr substantii
costs, including clean-up costs, fines and sanstamd thirdparty property damage or personal injury claimsaagsult of violations of environmental laws. Eadl tc
comply with environmental requirements could alesult in enforcement actions that materially limitotherwise affect the operations of the factitiavolved. Unde
certain environmental laws, a current or previowser or operator of an environmentally contaminatiéel may be held liable for the entire cost of stigation, removal
remediation of hazardous materials at such propdrtys liability could result whether or not the cevror operator knew of, or was responsible for, ttesgnce of ar
hazardous materials.

The European Union’s Restriction of Hazardous Subkssu{’"RoHS") Directive places restrictions on the use of certamardous substances in electrical
electronic equipment. All applicable products soidttie European Union market after July 1, 2006 npass RoHS compliance. While this directive doesapgly tc
batteries and does not currently affect our defg@mgducts, should any changes occur in the diredtiat would affect our products, we intend and ekpecomply with an
new regulations that are imposed. Our commerciaigena are in compliance with this directive. Addit European Union Directives, entitled the Wastectleal anc
Electronic Equipment (“WEEE”) Directive and the Ditige "on batteries and accumulators and waste legt@nd accumulators”, impose regulations affeatingnon-
defense products. These directives require thatymers or importers of particular classes of eiegitigoods are financially responsible for spedifallection, recycling
treatment and disposal of past and future coveredygts. These directives assign levels of respditgito companies doing business in European Umiankets based
their relative market share. These directives@maléach European Union member state to enact egdbtiislation to implement the directive. As adutithl European Unic
member states pass enabling legislation our comg#iaystem should be sufficient to meet such rements. Our current estimated costs associatedowitttomplianc
with these directives based on our current markateshre not significant. However, we continue tdwate the impact of these directives as Europeanrmember stat
implement guidance, and actual costs could diffemfour current estimates.

The European Unios’Battery Directive "on batteries and accumulatos\easte batteries and accumulators” is intendedver all types of batteries regardles
their shape, volume, weight, material compositiomse. It is aimed at reducing mercury, cadmiwradland other metals in the environment by minimgizhe use of the
substances in batteries and by treating angsireg old batteries. The Directive applies to gilety of batteries except those used to protect EaroMember States' secur
for military purposes, or sent into space. To aehithese objectives, the Directive prohibits tlegkmting of some batteries containing hazardoustanbes. It establist
schemes aimed at high level of collection and rigoyoof batteries with quantified collection and yeling targets. The Directive sets out minimum sufer produce
responsibility and provisions with regard to labgliof batteries and their removability from equipmeRroduct markings are required for batteries aocimulators 1
provide information on capacity and to facilitaeuse and safe disposal. We currently ship ourymtsdpursuant to the requirements of the Directingr. current estimatt
costs associated with our compliance with these tilnec based on our current market share are naoffis@nt. However, we continue to evaluate the impzfcthes:
directives as European Union member states implegwedance, and actual costs could differ from aurent estimates.
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China’s “Management Methods for Controlling Poltuti Caused by Electronic Information Products Regna (“China RoHS”) provides a tweatep, broa
regulatory framework, including similar hazardoubstance restrictions as are imposed by the Europe@n’s RoHS Directive, and applies to methods for thetrod anc
reduction of pollution and other public hazardshte environment caused during the production, sedd,import of electronic information products (FE) in China affectin
a broad range of electronic products and partgre@tly, only the first step of the regulatory frework of China RoHS, which details marking and laigeliequiremen
under Standard SJT11364-2006 (“Marking Standard),in effect. However, the methods under China RobifBy apply to EIP placed in the marketplace
China. Additionally, the Marking Standard does apply to components sold to OEMs for use in othitsE Our sales in China are limited to sales tdV®EnNd t
distributors who supply to OEMs. Should our saleatsgy change to include direct sales to esers, we believe our compliance system is sufficte meet oL
requirements under China RoHS. Our current estinatests associated with our compliance with thisulegn based on our current market share are
significant. However, we continue to evaluate thpact of this regulation, and actual costs coutfitdfrom our current estimates.

A number of domestic and international communitiess @rohibiting the landfill disposal of batterierdarequiring companies to make provisions for pot
recycling. Of particular note are the European UridBatteries Directive and the New York State Rechatgeaattery Recycling law. We are committed to caegible
product stewardship and ongoing compliance withetteesd future regulations. The compliance costecésted with current recycling regulations are ngpexted to b
significant at this time. However, we continue W@aleate the impact of these regulations, and actwsts could differ from our current estimates additional laws could t
enacted by these and other states which entailegreasts of compliance.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2013, we own two buildings in Néwaew York comprising approximately 250,000 squaret,f which serve operations primarily in
Battery & Energy Products operating segment. Ouparate headquarters are located in our Newark, Nevk ¥cility. In addition, we lease approximat&y00 squal
feet in a facility based in Abingdon, England, segvthe operations in the Battery and Energy SesviReducts operating segment. We also lease appatedy 130,00
square feet in four buildings on one campus in 2hen, China, which serve operations in the BatfeBnergy Products operating segment. The ShenzBleima campt
location includes dormitory facilities. See not& Within our financial statements for further dission on the status of our China facility. We leapproximately 32,5(
square feet in a facility based in Virginia Beaclirgihia, which serve operations in the Communicagi®ystems operating segment. We also leaseaaesdministrativ
offices, as well as manufacturing and productionilifses, in India, which serves operations in thatt®ry & Energy Products operating segment. Oueaieh an
development efforts for our Battery & Energy Praguare conducted at our Newark, New York and ShenzBleina facilities, while our research and developreffurts
for our Communications Systems products are coeduict Tallahassee, Florida and at our facility imgifiia Beach, Virginia. On occasion, we rent additlomarehous
space to store inventory and noperational equipment. We believe that our faeBitare adequate and suitable for our current nésmsever, we may require additio
manufacturing and administrative space if demana®wo products and services continues to grow.

ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject to legal proceedings and claimsdtise in the normal course of business. Weebelithat the final disposition of such matters wik have
material adverse effect on our financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

Arista Power Litigation

On September 23, 2011, we initiated an action aga#nsta Power, Inc. (“Arista”yand our former senior sales and engineering emp|opavid Modee
(“Modeen”)in the State of New York Supreme Court, County of Wagindex No. 73379). In our Complaint, we allelgat tArista recruited all but one of the member#s
executive team from us, subsequently changed afickeged its business to compete directly with usibiyng our confidential information, and during themmer of 201.
recruited Modeen to become an Arista employee. Wsge that, as a result of actions by Arista and &od (i) Modeen has breached the terms of his Byeg
Confidentiality, Non-Disclosure, Non-Compete, NDisparagement and Assignment Agreement with usM@gleen has breached certain agreements, dutiesbdigdtion:
he owed us, including to protect and refrain froscllising our trade secrets and confidential angrtary information; (iii) Aristas employment of Modeen will inevitat
lead to the disclosure and use of our trade sebsetArista, in violation of Modees’ duties and obligations to us; (iv) Arista unlawfuhduced Modeen to breach
agreements with and duties and obligations to ud; (ap Arista’s recruitment and employment of Modeen has breaehedbcontract between Arista and us. We
damages as determined at trial and preliminarypemchanent injunctive relief. The defendants haxanered the allegations set forth in the Complaiithout asserting ar
counterclaims.

On December 5, 2011, Arista served us with a Compitifiled on November 29, 2011 in the State of New Y&ilpreme Court, County of Monroe (Int
No. 12-13896) against us, our officers, several of ouedrs, and an employee. In its Complaint, Ariseges that we and our named defendants have &tbthae terrr
of a Confidentiality Agreement with Arista and hawgairly competed against Arista by unlawfully apptiating Arista’s trade secrets and that as a result of such tgg
Arista has incurred damages in excess of $60,00&tafseeks damages, an accounting, and prelimarahpermanent injunctive relief.

On December 21, 2011, we and our officers, dire@ntgsemployee named in Arista’s Complaint filed aioroto dismiss Arista Complaint against our office
directors and employee as ArigaComplaint fails to state any cause of action rgaany of them and to dismiss the claim of fragdimst our officers, directors a
employee. Subsequently, Arista filed an Amended @aimt alleging essentially the same causes obadbiut adding additional factual allegations adgairs and ot
officers, directors and employee. In addition,sfaifiled a motion to disqualify our outside legalunsel representing us and our officers, direcaois employee in bo
Arista’s Complaint and our Complaint against Arista.response, we and our officers, directors anfleyee filed a new motion to dismiss Arisg&€Complaint against us
its entirety and seeking dismissal of the fraudntlagainst us. Arista’motion to disqualify our outside legal counsel wasied on February 10, 2012. On March 9, Z
the Court issued its decision on our motion to dsimngranting the motion to the extent of dismigsgome claims against us, but denying the motiodismiss th
individuals from the lawsuit at this preliminanage. On April 19, 2012, an Answer was filed on bebalis, our officers, directors and employee. Ont&aper 10, 201
Arista filed a Second Amended Complaint deletingradividual defendants except our named employeehich an Answer was filed on our behalf on Septen30e2012
Discovery has commenced with respect to the AriStgation and is ongoing.
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We initiated the September 23, 2011 Complaint agahnista Power to protect our customers, emplogeesshareholders from the unauthorized use antlidf
our investments in intellectual property, traderstcand confidential information by Arista anddtaployees. Protecting our collective intellectpradperty and knowrow,
developed at great cost to us to form our competjtiosition in the marketplace and create valuefwrshareholders, is a fundamental responsitufigll our employees.

We believe the November 29, 2011 Arista Complainetaliatory and without merit. Our developmenttioé foundation for the new product concept for
Arista claims we allegedly used its trade secretsirnenced in 2008, long prior to the departure ofs¢hindividuals who now constitute the executive teaf
Arista. Furthermore, we believe the purported damafg$60,000 being claimed by Arista is based sabelythe reduction in its market capitalization betwéNovembe
2009 and the filing date of the Complaint. This ketrvalue loss is totally unrelated to any actionsaccount of us, and claims for recovery of thismy other amount &
legally and factually baseless.

Accordingly, we will vigorously pursue our complaagainst Arista and defend what we believe to be dtlesr action on the part of Arista Power.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Market Information
Ultralife’s common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GloMsdrket under the symbol “ULBI.”
The following table sets forth the quarterly higiddow closing sales prices of our common stockrdu?012 and 2013:

Closing Sales Price

High Low

2012:

Quarter ended April 1, 201 $ 5.4t $ 4.0z
Quarter ended July 1, 20 5.17 3.6C
Quarter ended September 30, 2! 3.94 2.67
Quarter ended December 31, 2( 3.52 2.5¢
2013:

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 447 $ 2.94
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 4.24 3.4z
Quarter ended September 29, 2! 4.1C 3.47
Quarter ended December 31, 2( 4.47 3.3C

Holders

As of March 7, 2013, there were 351 registered hsldérecord of our common stock.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

None.
Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividemdsur capital stock. We intend to retain earsjri§ any, to finance future operations and expamsind
therefore, do not anticipate paying any cash didldein the foreseeable future. Any future paymehtividends will depend upon our financial conditiocapita
requirements and earnings, as well as upon othtréathat our Board of Directors may deem relevdhirsuant to our current credit facility, we areghuded from payir
any dividends.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

As a smaller reporting company, we are not requogatévide this information.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199fovides a "safe harbor" for forward-looking stages. This report contains certain forwdwdking
statements and information that are based on thefdef management as well as assumptions madmbyinformation currently available to managemértie statemen
contained in this report relating to matters that ot historical facts are forwafdeking statements that involve risks and uncetigsn including, but not limited to, ¢
reliance on certain key customers, reduced U.Sndefspending, including the uncertainty associai#idgovernment budget approvals, the successfuleercialization c
our products, future demand for our products, tetdgical innovations in the norechargeable and rechargeable battery industréagergl domestic and global econo
conditions, significant fluctuations in our periodiesults and stock price, the unique risks astatiaith our Chinese operations, the impairmenowf intangible asse
business disruptions, including those caused &g fiour resources being overwhelmed by our grondbpacts, residual effects of negative news relatezlr industrie:
loss of top management, raw material supplies, etitign and customer strategies, government andr@mmental regulations, the process of U.S. defgmeeuremen
finalization of nonbid government contracts, changes in our busirtesegy or development plans, capital deploymemd, @her risks and uncertainties, certain of wkitd
beyond our control. Although we base these forwaodihg statements on assumptions that we believeeasonable when made, we caution you that fonkaoking
statements are not guarantees of future performandehat our actual results of operations, finanobndition and liquidity and the development fd industries in whic
we operate may differ materially from those maderisuggested by the forwaldeking statements contained herein. In additimeneif our results of operations, finan
condition and liquidity and the development of theustries in which we operate are consistent withforwardlooking statements contained in this document,etresult
or developments may not be indicative of resultderelopments in subsequent periods. Given thelse aisd uncertainties, you are cautioned not toeplaiue reliance
these forward-looking statements. Any forwédmdking statements that we make herein speak anbf ¢he date of those statements, and we undentakéligation to upda
those statements or to publicly announce the iestiliny revisions to any of those statementsfteatsfuture events or developments. Comparisorresilts for current al
any prior periods are not intended to express amyré trends or indications of future performanaeless expressed as such, and should only be viewdudstorice
data. When used in this report, the words “anditgfy “believe”, “estimate” or “expect” or words efmilar import are intended to identify forwalabking statements. F
further discussion of certain of the matters désttiabove and other risks and uncertainties, sis& factors” in Item 1A of this annual report.

Undue reliance should not be placed on our forvao#fing statements. Except as required by law, iselaim any obligation to update any factors optiblicly
announce the results of any revisions to any ofdheard-looking statements contained in this anmapbrt on Form 1G to reflect new information, future events or o
developments.

The following discussion and analysis should be riadonjunction with the accompanying ConsolidatédaRcial Statements and Notes thereto appe
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

The financial information in this ManagemenDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition Regults of Operations is presented in thousandslizrd, excef
for share and per share amounts. All figuresepresl below represent results from continuing operat unless otherwise specified.

General

We offer products and services ranging from poetgidwer solutions to communications and electrosys¢ems to customers across the globe in the gowvatt
defense and commercial sectors. With an emphasitrong engineering and a collaborative approagirdblem solving, we design, manufacture, instadl araintain powe
and communications systems including: rechargeahl® nonrechargeable batteries, communications and eléctosystems and accessories and custom engil
systems. We sell our products worldwide throughasiety of trade channels, including original equgrn manufacturers (“OEMs”)industrial and defense sup
distributors and directly to U.S. and internatiodefense departments.

We report our results in two operating segmentsteBat& Energy Products and Communications Systefite Battery & Energy Products segment inclu
lithium 9-volt, cylindrical and various other n@aehargeable batteries, in addition to rechargdadieries, uninterruptable power supplies, chargirgjems and accessor
such as cables. The Communications Systems segnotudes: RF amplifiers, power supplies, cable endnector assemblies, amplified speakers, equipmennts, cas
equipment, integrated communication system kits @mmunications and electronics systems design.b®lieve that reporting performance at the groséitpevel is the
best indicator of segment performance. As suchepert segment performance at the gross profit lendloperating expenses as Corporate charges.
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We continually evaluate ways to grow, including opipoities to expand through mergers, acquisitions j@mt ventures, which can broaden the scope o
products and services, expand operating and mapietrtunities and provide the ability to enter neves of business synergistic with our portfolio &eangs.

On February 16, 2012, we announced our intentionviestiour RedBlack Communications, Inc. (‘RedBlgditisiness. As a result of managemgiorngoin:
review of our business portfolio, management hadrdehed that RedBlack offered limited opportunitieschieve the operating thresholds of our newrtassi model.

On September 28, 2012, we entered into and closedck $urchase Agreement to sell 100% of our capitatk in RedBlack to BCF Solutions, Inc. (
“Agreement”). In exchange for the sale of RedBlack, we receiv&833 as a purchase price, comprised of cash singlan the amount of $2,133, funds held in escrox
up to one year in the amount of $250, as well adD$d%e available for RedBlack employee retentiomgams. In addition, there was a customary plsting working
capital adjustment to the purchase price of $126red in 2013. The Agreement contains customamesentations and warranties that survive the datia closing for
period of two or three years. The Agreement alsdatos customary indemnification for breaches ofrémresentations and warranties identified in theeAgrent. Pursue
to the Agreement, we are prohibited from engagingaoticipating with any current customer of RedBlackany business, directly or indirectly, that congsewith thi
business conducted by RedBlack for two years. Yeeabso prohibited from hiring, soliciting, or reding any current employee, independent contraapiconsultant
BCF Solutions, Inc. or RedBlack for two years.

Commencing with the first quarter of 2012, the rsuf the RedBlack operations and related divestittosts have been reported as a discont
operation. Certain items included within incomenfrdiscontinued operations are based upon managentest estimates as of the date of sale and maygelshould ot
estimates be different from our actual experience.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, we elected notetoew the lease for its U.K. manufacturing facilityiethexpired on March 24, 2013, and to relocate sale:
and services operations to a smaller facility. aAesult of this decision, we were required to restbe facility back to its original condition perpaevious contractu
commitment. The estimated costs associated withetsteration total approximately $950 of which $2@8s recorded in fourth quarter of 2012 as generatiinistrativ:
expenses and $750 was recorded as discontinuediopsrd his liability was settled in the first quarof 2013 resulting in a gain from discontinueemgions of $241. |
addition, our decision to relocate is generatingsa@ings of approximately $500 on an annualizesisba

Currently, we do not experience significant seas@ads trends in any of our operating segmenthpadth sales to the U.S. Defense Department and
international defense organizations can be spotztied on the needs of those particular customers.

Overview

Consolidated revenues decreased by $22,822 or 22.9%8,835 for the yeanded December 31, 2013 compared to $101,657 dimngear ended December
2012. This decrease was caused by declining resenukoth our Battery & Energy Products and Commations Systems segments in 2013 when comparedl1®
primarily due to lower government and defense sasslting from budget and sequestration unceresntsross margin increased to 28.7% for the yeazceBeécember 3
2013, as opposed to 28.3% for the year ended Demre®ih 2012, due primarily to productivity improvents resulting from our Lean initiatives, increapeding for som
of our products and product mix.

Operating expenses decreased by $5,599 or 19.4%3t845 during the year ended December 31, 2013, a@dpo $28,844 during the year ended Decemb:
2012, reflecting the rightsizing of our businessedine with our revenues. The decreased spendiimgaply resulted from more focused spending in cesearch ar
development activities and our continued effortsetduce discretionary general and administratiygeages. Operating expenses as a percentage ntiesviecreased frc
28.4% in 2012 to 29.5% in 2013 due to the impadbwer revenues in the current year.

Net loss from continuing operations was $1,088, @0& per share, for the year ended December 31, 2@b3pared to a net loss from continuing operatiof

$1,128, or $0.06 per share, for the year ended DieeeBil, 2012. Net income from discontinued openatimet of tax, was $128, or $0.01 per share, fery#ar ende
December 31, 2013, compared to a net loss, nekafftf501, or $0.03 per share, for the year endeckinber 31, 2012.
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Adjusted EBITDA, defined as net income (loss) attéiile to Ultralife before net interest expense, miovi (benefit) for income taxes, depreciation
amortization, plus/minus expenses/income that wenaloconsider reflective of our continuing operasipamounted to $3,874 for the year ended DecemhePIL

compared to $5,054 for the prior period. See #wien “Adjusted EBITDA”beginning on page 29 for a reconciliation of AdjdsteBITDA to net loss attributable
Ultralife.

As a result of careful working capital management @ash generated from operations, our liquidity resaolid with total cash of $16,489, a $6,411 iayamen
over the cash position of $10,078 as of Decembe2@12. We had no debt as of December 31, 2013.ifMantory levels decreased by $4,317, or 14.20426,053 at tt
end of 2013 from $30,370 at the end of 2012 dumgmily to more focused inventory management andrpiey.

Outlook

For 2014, management expects raidgle digit organic revenue growth, despite anéitdd continued constraints on global governmentdipg. Based on tt
outlook for revenue growth and the improvements madke business model in 2013, management exfreatsrease operating profit for the year and gateea midsingle
digit operating margin.

Management cautions that the timing of orders dmghsents may cause variability in quarterly results
Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared With the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Year Endec Increase
12/31/201. 12/31/201. (Decrease
Revenue: $ 78,83t $ 101,65 $ (22,82
Cost of products sold 56,21« 72,92% (16,719
Gross margit 22,62: 28,73( (6,109
Operating expenses 23,24 28,844 (5,599
Operating income (los! (624 (1149 (510
Other expense, net (22E) (460) 23E
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforee (849 (574 (275
Income tax provision 23¢ 554 (315
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic (2,08¢) (2,129 40
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax 12¢ (501 62¢
Net loss (960) (1,629 66¢
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling inter 34 31 3
Net loss attributable to Ultralit $ (920 % (1,599 672
Net income (loss) attributable to Ultralife commdrares- basic
Continuing operations $ (0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0cC
Discontinued operations $ 0.01 $ (0.0 $ 0.04
Net income (loss) attributable to Ultralife commdraes- diluted
Continuing operation $ (0.0 $ (0.0 $ 0.0C
Discontinued operations $ 0.01 $ 0.09 $ 0.04
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 17,465,00 17,403,00 62,00(
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 17,465,00 17,403,00 62,00(

Revenues . Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@i@inted to $78,835, a decrease of $22,822, 662%om the $101,657 reported for the y
ended December 31, 2012.

Battery & Energy Products revenues decreased 814 19.7%, to $57,077 for the year ended Decer®be2013 from the $71,084 reported for the yemtee
December 31, 2012 due to the continued slowdown in gb8ernment and defense order rate for rechargeattlenonrechargeable batteries and charger systems,
sales of 9+olt batteries resulting from the selloff of themaining legacy products in the first quarter of 2@lith the introduction of our new battery design,well as larc
orders for our M-1 primary battery products dur@l2.

27




Communications Systems revenues decreased $8,828,8%, from $30,573 for the year ended Decembe812 to $21,758 for the year ended Decembe
2013. The year-oveyear decline reflects timing delays due to the gowent furloughs and shutdown, which has heightehedincertainty of converting Communica
Systems’sales opportunities as planned, as well as shipnedrB&TCOM units in the amount of approximately 840 a large prime contractor which services the
Department of Defense during the third quarter df2@nd the shipment of orders under a soldier nmizkgion program of an international allied militain the fourtt
quarter of 2012.

Cost of Products Sold. Cost of products sold decreased $16,713 or 22f@8%h $72,927 for the year ended December 31, 201%56,214 for the year enc
December 31, 2013. Consolidated cost of produdtkasoa percentage of total revenue decreasedlgligbm 71.7% for the year ended December 31, 20121.3% for th
year ended December 31, 2013. Correspondinglysatislated gross margin was 28.7% for the year efEdmber 31, 2013, compared with a gross margir892 fol
the year ended December 31, 2012. The increaseauigimis primarily attributable to productivity gei in both businesses resulting from our Leanatives and favorab
product mix.

In our Battery & Energy Products segment, the obgiroducts sold decreased $10,783, from $53,52thfoyear ended December 31, 2012 to $42,73héyea
ended December 31, 2013. Battery & Energy Prodgaiss margin for 2013 was $14,338 or 25.1%, a dseref $3,224 from 2012'gross margin of $17,562,
24.7%. Battery & Energy Products’ gross margiréased by 40 basis points for the twetmenth period ended December 31, 2013, primarily essalt of productivit
gains from reductions in labor and overhead spendird, to a lesser extent, receipts of propertytedits relating to prior years.

In our Communications Systems segment, the coptaxfucts sold decreased $5,930 from $19,405 foy¢lae ended December 31, 2012 to $13,475 for the
ended December 31, 2013. Communications Systerss grargin for 2013 was $8,283, or 38.1%, a decrefab2,885 from 201% gross margin of $11,168, or 36.5%.
160 basis point increase in gross margin year-gear-is due to more favorable product mix, proditgtimprovements, and the noreurrence of a reserve in 201:
approximately $200 related to a request by a gfieddly important customer for certain product ugdgs.

Operating Expenses.Operating expenses decreased by $5,599, or 19tdfr,$28,844 for the year ended December 31, 201%28,245 for the current peri
reflecting more focused spending in our researcth @evelopment activities, actions to reduce digmnary general and administrative expenses, andcestl sale
commissions. Overall, operating expenses as amege of revenues increased to 29.5% in 2013 fré#92 reported for the prior year, due to the immddower revenue
in 2013. Amortization expense associated with igitale assets related to our acquisitions was $482062 ($237 in selling, general and administraéxpenses and $2
in research and development costs), compared wifi2 $r 2013 ($179 in selling, general, and admiatéte expenses and $223 in research and develd
costs). Research and development costs were $B&5A.3, a decrease of $1,357 or 18.8%, over th2l$7reported in 2012. Selling, general, and agmative expenst
decreased $4,242, or 19.6%, to $17,386 for the geded December 31, 2013 from $21,628 for the yedea December 31, 2012, reflecting guing actions to redu
discretionary general and administrative expensdsaareduction in sales commissions from the pré@r period.

Other Income (Expense)Other income (expense) totaled ($225) for ther yemled December 31, 2013, compared to ($460)hryear ended December
2012. Interest expense, net of interest incomeredsed $237, from $436 during 2012 to $199 dwbB, as a result of no draws under our revolvirglicfacilities durin
the course of 2013 and a reduction in the unusedfée associated with our new Credit Facility with PEE herein defined. Miscellaneous expense amdunt&26 fo
2013, mainly unchanged from the $24 in 2012, andiasarily due to transactions impacted by chargdsreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar.

Income TaxesNe recorded a tax provision of $239 for the yeateehDecember 31, 2013 compared with a tax provisié®b54 for the same period of 2012. °
expense is primarily due to (a) the income repoftedour China operations during the periods, abgtfie recognition of deferred tax liabilities gested from th
amortization of goodwill and certain intangible dssfr tax purposes that cannot be predicted tersevfor book purposes during our loss carryforwaedods. Th
decrease year over year is also partially attridetéo a reduction in our effective tax rate in @hiThe effective consolidated tax rate for theyeaded December 31, 2(
and 2012 was:
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Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
Income (Loss) before Incomes Taxes $ 849 $ (579
Total Income Tax Provision (Benefit) ( $ 23¢ % 554
Effective Tax Rate (b/e 28.2% 96.5%

In 2013 and 2012, in the U.S. and the U.K., we contilougeport a valuation allowance for our deferred dasets that cannot be offset by reversing temy
differences. This results from the conclusion tihas more likely than not that we would not utdiour U.S. and U.K. NOIs' that had accumulated over time.
recognition of a valuation allowance on our deferraxl assets resulted from our evaluation of allilalie evidence, both positive and negative. Thseasment of tl
realizability of the NOLS was based on a number of factors including, @iofty of net operating losses, the volatility efr @arnings, our historical operating volatilityr
historical inability to accurately forecast earrsrfor future periods and the continued uncertaditthe general business climate as of the end ®820We concluded tr
these factors represent sufficient negative evideartd have concluded that we should record a flllati@n allowance under Financial Accounting StandaBdards
(“FASB”) guidance on the accounting for income taxéSee Notes 1 and 8 in the Notes to Consolidateahi€ial Statements for additional information.)

In addition, certain of our NOL carryforwards arebjmet to U.S. alternative minimum tax such thatryfarwards can offset only 90% of alternative mimim
taxable income. This limitation did not have arpant on income taxes determined for 2013 and 20h2 use of our U.K. NOL carryforwards may be limithe to th
change in the U.K. operation during 2008 from a nfiacturing and assembly center to primarily a disttion and service center.

Discontinued Operations Income from discontinued operations, net of tataled $128 for the year ended December 31, 28drBpared to a loss of $501 in
same period of 2012. The 2013 income is primatilg to lower than anticipated restoration costdedlto our decision to not renew the U.K. faciliase in the beginni
of 2013, offset slightly by working capital adjustmte related to the sale of the RedBlack operati@iscontinued operations for 2012 included the alisioued operatiot
of our U.K. and RedBlack entities. For more inforioat see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Stewesn

Net Loss Attributable to Ultralife Net loss attributable to Ultralife and net lossilatitable to Ultralife common shareholders per shaere $926 and $0.(
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 26@8ipared to net loss attributable to Ultralife amd loss attributable to Ultralife common sharehaldeer share
$1,598 and $0.09, respectively, for the year erldedember 31, 2012, primarily as a result of thesoea described above. Average common shares dlitsjamsed t
compute earnings per share increased from 17,403;02012 to 17,465,000 in 2013, mainly due to lstoption exercises and shares of common stock dsskueur non-
employee directors.

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations

In evaluating our business, we consider and usesteljl EBITDA from continuing operations, a nG#&AP financial measure, as a supplemental measuoeir
operating performance. We define Adjusted EBITDA froomtinuing operations as net income (loss) attablet to Ultralife before net interest expense, miovi (benefit
for income taxes, depreciation and amortizationsfohinus expenses/income that we do not considkrctiee of our ongoing continuing operations. Wes #sdjustel
EBITDA from continuing operations as a supplementabsure to review and assess our operating perfoereamt to enhance comparability between periods. M
believe the use of Adjusted EBITDA from continuing @i®ns facilitates investorsise of operating performance comparisons from get@operiod and company
company by backing out potential differences causgdariations in such items as capital structygffecting relative interest expense and stbaked compensati
expense), the book amortization of intangible @sgaffecting relative amortization expense), the ampd book value of facilities and equipment (dffer relative
depreciation expense) and other significant aperating expenses or income. We also present AdusBITDA from continuing operations because we belig ic
frequently used by securities analysts, investord ather interested parties as a measure of finaparformance. We reconcile Adjusted EBITDA fromntnuing
operations to net income (loss) attributable todlife, the most comparable financial measure utd8r generally accepted accounting principles (‘@G8AP”).
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We use Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operationiur decisiormaking processes relating to the operation of agirtess together with U.S. GAAP finan
measures such as income (loss) from operations.bié¥eve that Adjusted EBITDA from continuing opeoats permits a comparative assessment of our opg
performance, relative to our performance basedusroS. GAAP results, while isolating the effects epdeciation and amortization, which may vary fromigreto periot
without any correlation to underlying operating pemfiance, and of non-cash stock-based compensatibith is a norcash expense that varies widely amr
companies. We believe that by limiting AdjustedIEBA to continuing operations, we assist investorgaiming a better understanding of our business goirzg forwar
basis. We provide information relating to our Asted EBITDA from continuing operations so that sd@gianalysts, investors and other interestedgsattave the sar
data that we employ in assessing our overall operati We believe that trends in our Adjusted EBITDénf continuing operations are a valuable indicafasur operatin
performance on a consolidated basis and of ouityald produce operating cash flows to fund workirapital needs, to service debt obligations and tul foapite

expenditures.

The term Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operationsnist defined under U.S. GAAP, and is not a measurepefating income, operating performanc
liquidity presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. @djusted EBITDA from continuing operations has limigats as an analytical tool, and when assessing menating
performance, Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operaticshould not be considered in isolation or ashstitute for net income (loss) attributable to Uifeaor othe
consolidated statement of operations data preparaccordance with U.S. GAAP. Some of these limitatimtlude, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations does nofle (1) our cash expenditures or future requinetmefor capital expenditures or contrac
commitments; (2) changes in, or cash requiremenmtfir working capital needs; (3) the interest egee or the cash requirements necessary to sem@es
or principal payments, on our debt; (4) income $are the cash requirements for any tax payments;(&pall of the costs associated with operatinc

business

b. although depreciation and amortization are-cesh charges, the assets being depreciated andizzdooften will have to be replaced in the futuaegc
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations does ndlee any cash requirements for such replacem

c. while stocksased compensation is a component of cost of ptediotd and operating expenses, the impact onansuatidated financial statements compare
other companies can vary significantly due to daciors as assumed life of the st-based awards and assumed volatility of our comntmeks

d. although discontinued operations does not reflactcarrent business operations, discontinued opasitncludes the costs we incurred by exiting fentain o
our U.K. operations that were not transferred tofaailities in Newark, NY and divesting our RedBla€kmmunications business; a

e. other companies may calculate Adjusted EBITDA framntmuing operations differently than we do, limgiits usefulness as a comparative mea:

We compensate for these limitations by relying puiily on our U.S. GAAP results and using Adjusted HBA from continuing operations or
supplementally. Adjusted EBITDA from continuing opons is calculated as follows for the periods @nésd:

Years ended December 3.

2013 2012
Net loss attributable to Ultralit $ 92¢) $ (1,599
Add: interest expense, r 19¢ 43¢
Add: income tax provisio 23¢ 554
Add: depreciatior 2,957 3,28t
Add: amortization of intangible asst 40z 497
Add: stocl-based compensation expel 1,131 1,37¢
Add (less) : loss (gain) from discontinued operatjaret of tax (12¢) 501
Adjusted EBITDA $ 3874 $ 5,054
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows and General Business Matters
The following cash flow information is being pressthnet of continuing and discontinued operations.

As of December 31, 2013, cash and cash equivaletatted $16,066, an increase of $6,410 from theriméigy of the year. During the year ended Decemitis
2013, we generated $6,897 of cash from operatitigitees as compared to generating $4,768 of casttHe year ended December 31, 2012. In 2013,abk generatt
from operating activities was caused by our net &fst960 plus an add back of $4,562 for non-cagierses of depreciation, amortization, and stmerked compensatic
Working capital changes accounted for $4,169 ofajperating cash generation, due mainly to a deeraaccounts receivable and inventory reductioffset by a declir
in our accounts payable and other liabilities. €Tash from operating activities provided in 2012 wesnly attributable to our net loss of $1,629,sp&in add back of $5,3
for non-cash expenses of depreciation, amortizatiah stock-based compensation and a loss fromrdisced operations, net of tax of $50Approximately $823 of ca:
was generated from working capital due mainly to el@ees in our inventory due to the continued focugmproving inventory management, a decrease inirguranc
receivable relating to fires and a decrease inwatsareceivable. These cash generations were gfisgally by a decrease in our accounts payable.

We used $269 in cash for investing activities dyr2913 compared with $812 in cash used for invgsdictivities in 2012. In 2013, we spent $766 to purch
plant, property, and equipment and decreased striated cash by $2. Offsetting these outlays waasa inflow from our divestiture of RedBlack Commuations of $49
relating to the settlement of working capital adjustts. In 2012, we spent $2,685 to purchase pteiaperty and equipment and increased our restricésth by $26!
Offsetting these outlays was a cash inflow from duesture of RedBlack Communications of $2,133.

We received $12 and $115 in 2013 and 2012, resdytin funds from financing activities. The fingang activities in both years were solely due t® phoceeds
the issuance of our common stock in connection thighexercise of stock options by our employees.

Although we booked a full reserve for our deferred asset during and continued to carry this resasvef December 31, 2013 and 2012, we continue te
significant U.S. NOL'’s available to us to utilize @s offset to taxable income. As of December 31,32@one of our U.S. NOK’have expired. See Note 8 in the Not¢
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additioriarmation.

Inventory turnover for the year ended Decembe2B13 averaged 1.9 turns compared to 2.2 turnsdfd2 2 The decrease in this metric is due mainly to lovedes
year over year offset slightly by a reduction irege inventory over that same period.

Our order backlog at December 31, 2013 was appraglyn$6,316, lower than the $12,599 in prior yeansstly due to continued delays in government craex
the fulfilment of a large multirear order for RF amplifiers and accessories irpsttpof force modernization in a foreign country2@13. The majority of the backlog v
related to orders that are expected to ship through014.

As of December 31, 2013, we had made commitmentsrthase approximately $221 of production machinery equipment, which we expect to fund thro
operating cash flows.

Debt and Lease Commitmel

On May 24, 2013, we entered into a Revolving Cré8iitaranty and Security Agreement (the “Credit Agreeiieatd related security agreements with PNC E
National Association“PNC”) to establish a $20 million secured asset-Hasevolving credit facility that includes a $1 rioh letter of credit subfacility (theCredit
Facility”). The Credit Agreement provides that tbeedit Facility may be increased with PNGoncurrence to $35 million prior to the lastsignths of the term and expi
on May 24, 2017. The Credit Facility replacesphier credit facility with RBS Business Capitaldavision of RBS Asset Finance, Inc., which expireciatordance with i
terms on May 15, 2013, with no debt outstanding.

Our available borrowing limit under the Credit Fagifluctuates from time to time based on a bormgvbase formula equal to the sum of up to 85% igfteé
accounts receivable plus the least of (a) up to 85%e eligible inventory and eligible foreign fransit inventory, (b) up to 85% of the appraised orderly liquidatio
value of eligible inventory and eligible foreigniransit inventory, and (c) $7.5 million, in eactseaubject to the definitions in the Credit Agreeneerd reserves requir
by PNC.
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Interest is payable quarterly and will accrue otstanding indebtedness under the Credit Agreemethieadlternate base rate, as defined in the Chegitemen
plus the applicable margin or at the one, two cegéhmonth LIBOR rate plus the applicable margin &extzd by us from time to time and listed below.

Quarterly Average Undrawn Applicable Margin for Applicable Margin fo
Borrowing Availability Alternate Base Rate Loz LIBOR Rate Loan:
Greater than $8,000,0( 1.00% 2.00%
$5,000,000 up to $8,000,0! 1.25% 2.25%
Less than $5,000,0C 1.50% 2.50%

We must pay a fee on the Credit Faciltyinused availability of 0.375% per annum and enaty letter of credit fees in addition to variowslateral monitorin
and related fees and expenses.

In addition to customary affirmative and negatieee@nants, we must maintain a fixed charge coveraye as defined in the Credit Agreement of 1:15:keste
quarterly for the four-quarters then ended. As ofdbeber 31, 2013, we were in compliance with all cavis. The Credit Facility is secured by substiptidl our assets.

Any outstanding advances must be repaid upon eiqguiratf the term of the Credit Facility. Paymentssnbe made during the term to the extent outsta
advances exceed the maximum amount then permittee trawn as advances under the Credit Facilityframad the proceeds of certain transactions. Upenoccurrence
an event of default, the outstanding obligationy ima accelerated and PNC will have other custorremedies.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $e@rstanding under the Credit Facility, an applieaibterest rate of 2.17%, approximately $12,96%afowing capacity i
addition to our unrestricted cash on hand of $16,86d no outstanding letters of credit relateth&éoCredit Facility.

See Note 5 in the Notes to Consolidated FinanciaéBtants for additional information.
Other Matters

With respect to our battery products, we typicaffgowarranties against any defects due to prodwfunction or workmanship for up to one year frora thate c
purchase. With respect to our communicationsssmg products, we typically offer a thrgear warranty. We provide for a reserve for thesential warranty expens
which is based on an analysis of historical warrdasyies. There is no assurance that future waridaigns will be consistent with past history, andttie event w
experience a significant increase in warranty ciaithere is no assurance that our reserves woutdffieient. This could have a material adverse@fn our busines
financial condition and results of operations.

We are currently participating in and providingheical assistance in support of an investigationdoated by a downstream customer and regulatotyosities
with regard to a fire that occurred in the third geaof 2013 in an unoccupied and parked BoeingD&amliner aircraft.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The above discussion and analysis of our finarmmabition and results of operations are based oporonsolidated financial statements, which haentprepare

in accordance with generally accepted accountimgejpies in the U.S. The preparation of these fangrstatements requires management to make essraad assumptio
that affect amounts reported therein. The estisnael assumptions that require management’s nftisuttj subjective or complex judgments are ddsed below.
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Revenue recognition:
Product Sales + general, revenues from the sale of productseregnized when products are shipped. When produetshipped with terms that require trar
of title upon delivery at a customsrlocation, revenues are recognized on date ofetgli A provision is made at the time the reversigetognized for warrar
costs expected to be incurred. Customers, includistgibutors, do not have a general right of neton products shipped.

Technology Contracts We recognize revenue using the proportional methwehsured by the percentage of actual costs irttordate to the total estimated c
to complete the contract. Elements of cost incldidect material, labor and overhead. If a lossaaontract is estimated, the full amount of thes lizsrecognize
immediately. We allocate costs to all technologytecacts based upon actual costs incurred includimgllocation of certain research and developneest:
incurred.

Deferred RevenueFor each source of revenues, we defer recognitiaheéfvidence of an agreement does not exist,dlivery or service has not occurred, iii)
selling price is not fixed or determinable, or @gllectability is not reasonably assured.

Valuation of Inventory:
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtankith cost determined using the first-in, ficatt (FIFO) method. Our inventory includes raw matsyiwork ir
process and finished goods. We record provisiongxoess, obsolete or slow moving inventory basedhanges in customer demand, technology develogsnm
other economic factors. The factors that contritbateventory valuation risks are our purchasingctices, material and product obsolescence, accofesales ar
production forecasts, introduction of new produpi®duct lifecycles, product support and foreignutaions governing hazardous materials (see Item-Fisk
Factors for further information on foreign reguteis). \We manage our exposure to inventory valuatiks by maintaining safety stocks, minimum puszh#ots
managing product end-tife issues brought on by aging components or newdywt introductions, and by utilizing certain int@ty minimization strategies such
vendormanaged inventories. We believe that the accoumtatignate related to valuation of inventories fsritical accounting estimate" because it is sutibéptc
changes from period-tperiod due to the requirement for management toeneskimates relative to each of the underlyingofactanging from purchasing, to sa
to production, to aftesale support. If actual demand, market conditiangroduct lifecycles are adversely different frdmose estimated by management, inver
adjustments to lower market values would resultiedaction to the carrying value of inventory, acrease in inventory write-offs and a decrease tegnoargins.

Warranties:
We maintain provisions related to normal warrangimk by customers. We evaluate these reservetegyadased on actual experience with warrantynedatc
date and our assessment of additional claims irfiutuee. There is no assurance that future warralatyns will be consistent with past history, andhe event w
experience a significant increase in warranty clatimsre is no assurance that our reserves wouldfbeient.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:
We regularly assess all of our lotiged assets for impairment when events or circamsgs indicate their carrying amounts may not loevwerable. This
accomplished by comparing the expected undiscouiuenle cash flows of the assets with the respeatareying amount as of the date of assessment. 8
aggregate future cash flows be less than the carmaiue, a writedown would be required, measured as the differert@den the carrying value and the fair v.
of the asset. Fair value is estimated either thnahe assistance of an independent valuation theapresent value of expected discounted futurk laws. The
discount rate used by us in our evaluation appratés our weighted average cost of capital. If theeeted undiscounted future cash flows exceed theentive
carrying amount as of the date of assessment, paiiment charge is recognized.

Environmental Issues:
Environmental expenditures that relate to currgrgrations are expensed or capitalized, as apptepiia accordance with the Financial Accounting Stads
Board’'s (“FASB”) guidance on environmental remediation liabiliti€@emediation costs that relate to an existing d@mlicaused by past operations are acc
when it is probable that these costs will be incuemed can be reasonably estimated.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:
In accordance with the revised FASB guidance foirt®ss combinations, the purchase price paid taciffe acquisition is allocated to the acquired italeganc
intangible assets and liabilities at fair value. accordance with FASB’guidance for the accounting of goodwill and otiiangible assets, we do not amor
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite livest instead evaluate these assets for impairmdeast annually, or when events indicate that immpant exists
We amortize intangible assets that have definitesliso that the economic benefits of the intangilsieets are being utilized over their weighdgdrage estimat
useful life.
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The impairment analysis of goodwill consists firaaeview of various qualitative factors of thentiéed reporting units to determine whether it isnalikely thai
not that the fair value of a reporting unit exceddscarrying amount, including goodwill. This rewieincludes, but is not limited to, an evaluation thE
macroeconomic, industry or market, and cost faatelesvant to the reporting unit as well as finanpiaiformance and entity or reporting unit event thay affec
the value of the reporting unit. If this review Isad the determination that it is more likely thaot that the fair value of the reporting unit iggger than its carryi
amount, further impairment testing is not requireldwever, if this review cannot support a conclusibat it is more likely than not that the fair valoé the
reporting unit is greater than its carrying amouort,at our discretion, quantitative impairment stepe performed. Similarly, the analysis for indi&-ived
intangible assets consists of review of variouditptave factors to determine if it is more likeflgan not that the indefinitived intangible asset is not impaired.
conclusion that it is more likely than not that thdefinitelived asset is not impaired cannot be supportedtaur discretion, quantitative impairment stepe
performed.

The quantitative impairment test for goodwill cotsisf a comparison of the fair value of the repartiinit with the carrying amount of the reportingtda which i
is assigned. If the fair value of a reporting wexteeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reipgrunit is considered not impaired. If the cangiamount of
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a secong stethe goodwill impairment test shall be perforntedmeasure the amount of impairment loss, if afije
impairment test for intangible assets with indeéifives consists of a comparison of the fair vaitithe intangible assets with their carrying amoultitthe carrying
value of the intangible assets exceeds the faireyaln impairment loss shall be recognized in aouammequal to that excess. We determine the flirevof th
reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing bdsen a discounted cash flow model. We determinegahevalue of our intangibles assets with indegniitves
(trademarks) through the royalty relief income adion approach.

We conduct our annual impairment analysis for goticavid intangible assets with indefinite lives int@wer of each fiscal year. For 2013, we identifilecke
goodwill reporting units for analysis. We performadjuantitative analysis on all of our reportingtsiras of September 29, 2013 due to the early fest
McDowell — Communications Systems trademark in the third guart 2013 and due to the length of time lapsedunquantitative assessment of our remai
reporting units. This testing indicated no impainie

For 2013, we identified four trademarks for analy¥i&e performed an early impairment test on the McBlbw Communications Systems trademark and ar
quantitative tests on the remaining three trademayk impairment of any trademark tested was inidetaHowever, due to the narrow margin of passingehtng
in 2013, there is potential that the McDowellemmunications Systems trademark may become pariafully impaired in 2014 if the projected reuentarget
are not met. As of December 31, 2013, the McDowebm@unications Systems trademark had a carryingevafi$2,400.

Stock-Based Compensation:
We follow the provisions of FASB’s guidance on shbased payments, which requires that compensatishretating to sharbased payment transactions
recognized in the financial statements. The ceshéasured at the grant date, based on the faie \&l the award, and is recognized as an expengetios
employees requisite service period (generally the vestiegaqa of the equity award). We calculate expeateldtility for stock options by taking an averagk
historical volatility over the past five years amdomputation of implied volatility. The computatiof expected term was determined based on hiat@xperienc
of similar awards, giving consideration to the caotual terms of the stodkased awards and vesting schedules. The intetedoraperiods within the contracti
life of the award is based on the U.S. Treasury yiekffect at the time of grant. If required, aoarket based awards are valued using a Monte Qarldation.

Income Taxes:
We apply FASBS$ guidance in accounting for income taxes. Undes thethod, deferred tax assets and liabilities aterchined based on differences betv
financial reporting and tax basis of assets arilliies and are measured using the enacted tas eatd laws that may be in effect when the diffexeraze expect
to reverse.
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In 2013 and 2012, in the U.S. and the U.K., we cametihto report a valuation allowance for our deféniax assets that cannot be offset by reversingadeany
differences. This results from the conclusion th& more likely than not that we would not beeabd utilize our U.S. and U.K. Net Operating LossesdQtRs")
that had accumulated over time. The recognitiom efluation allowance on our deferred tax assetsltesl from our evaluation of all available evidenbott
positive and negative. The assessment of thezedmlity of the NOLS was based on a number of factors including, @iotty of net operating losses, the volat
of our earnings, our historical operating volagiliour historical inability to accurately forecasarnings for future periods and the continued uaa#y of the
general business climate as of the end of 2013 cWcluded that these factors represent sufficiegative evidence and have concluded that we shieotitd
full valuation allowance under FAS8guidance on the accounting for income taxes.cWeently carry a deferred tax asset in China weathave determined dc
not require a valuation allowance as we are moedylikhan not to fully utilize the NOL in China. Weentinually assess the carrying value of this abased o
relevant accounting standards.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

As a smaller reporting company, we are not requiogatovide this information.
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ITEM8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements and schedules listecem [t5(a)(1) are included in this Report beginningpage 37.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fin

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Ultralife Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheet of Ultralife Corporation as of December281,3, and the related consolidated statements exfatipns an
comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’ eqaityl cash flows for the year ended December 31, 20t8alife Corporations management is responsible for ti
financial statements. Our responsibility is to egsran opinion on these financial statements basedr audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stalsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@Wdited States). Those standards require that lewe gnc
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetathether the financial statements are free oer@tmisstatement. The company is not requireldatee, nor were w
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdntneer financial reporting. Our audit included cimesation of internal control over financial regog as a basis f
designing audit procedures that are appropriateercircumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the comsaimternal contrc
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we expresssuch opinion. An audit also includes examiningadest basis, evidence supporting the amountslastbsures in tr
financial statements, assessing the accountingipts used and significant estimates made by rmanagt, as well as evaluating the overall financtatesner
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredibove present fairly, in all material respedits, financial position of Ultralife Corporation as Bécember 31, 2013, a
the results of its operations and its cash flowstlier year ended December 31, 2013 in conformity aitbounting principles generally accepted in the ét¢hibtates «
America.

/sl Bonadio & Co., LLF
Pittsford, New York
March 14, 201«
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fin

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Ultralife Corporation
Newark, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheet of Ultralife Corporation as of DecemberZ1,2 and the related consolidated statement ofatipas an
comprehensive income (loss), stockholdesguity, and cash flows for the year ended Decembge2B12. These financial statements are the re#gbtysof Ultralife
Corporation’s management. Our responsibility isxpress an opinion on these financial statementscbas our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staisdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dited States). Those standards require that leu gnc
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetathether the financial statements are free deria misstatement. The Company is not requireldaee, nor were v
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdntneer financial reporting. Our audit included cimsation of internal control over financial regog as a basis f
designing audit procedures that are appropriathercircumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the Comigaimternal contrc
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we expresssuch opinion. An audit also includes examining,adest basis, evidence supporting the amountsliaatbsures in tt
financial statements, assessing the accountingipts used and significant estimates made by rmanagt, as well as evaluating the overall financtatesner
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeeferred to above present fairly, in all materégspects, the financial position of Ultralife Corption at December &
2012, and the results of its operations and itk €lasvs for the year ended December 31, 202 conformity with accounting principles generallgcapted in the Unite
States of America.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Troy, Michigan
March 15, 2013
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ULTRALIFE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amot

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivale
Restricted cas
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance dobtful accounts of $288 and $322, respecti
Inventories
Due from insurance compa
Deferred tax ass- current
Income taxes receivakt
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current asse
Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Security deposits and other long-term assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt and capital lease olidyes
Accounts payabl
Income taxes payakb
Accrued compensatic
Accrued vacatio
Deferred revenu
Deferred tax liability- current
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Debt and capital lease obligatic
Deferred tax liability- lonc-term
Other long-term liabilities
Total long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note €

Shareholders' equity:
Ultralife equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.10 per share, aztbdri, 000,000 shares; none issued and outsta
Common stock, par value $0.10 per share, authoA2¢2D0,000 shares; issu- 18,851,579 and 18,828,734, respecti\
Capital in excess of par vall
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li
Accumulated deficit

Less--Treasury stock, at co- 1,372,757 shares outstanding in each
Total Ultralife equity

Noncontrolling interest
Total shareholders' equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

December 31

2013 2012
$ 16,06 $ 9,65¢
42 422
14,23¢ 20,91
26,05: 30,37(
43C 728
91 12¢
0 28
1,357 1,59¢
58,65¢ 63,82
10,20; 12,418
16,41¢ 16,34«
4,64¢ 5,03¢
26¢ 08
21,33 21,48
$  9019¢ $ 97,71
$ - % -
7,05: 11,35
94 2
1,27¢ 2,04¢
62¢ 602
- 1,851
9 -
2,96( 4,03(
12,02 19,89;
4,24: 4,16(
282 21¢
4,52¢ 4,37C
1,88¢ 1,88¢
174,93 173,79:
(614) (620)
(94,809 (93,879
81,40; 81,17
7,65¢ 7,65¢
73,74 73,52:
(99 (69
73,645 73,45¢
$  9019: $ 97,71

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciakBtants are an integral part of these statements.
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ULTRALIFE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L&)
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amou

Revenues

Cost of products sold

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Research and development (including $223 and $2éfortization of intangible assets, respectiv:
Selling, general, and administrative (including $Hnd $237 of amortization of intangible assetspeetively)

Total operating expense:

Operating loss

Other income (expense)

Interest incom

Interest expens

Miscellaneou:

Loss from continuing operations before income taxe

Income tax provisior current
Income tax provision - deferred
Total income taxes provision

Net loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, rieto

Net loss

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling inter

Net loss attributable to Ultralife

Other comprehensive income (loss'
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Comprehensive income (loss) loss attributable to Uladife

Net income (loss) attributable to Ultralife common shreholders- basic

Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Total

Net income (loss) attributable to Ultralife common shreholders- diluted

Continuing operation
Discontinued operations

Total

Weighted average shares outstandin- basic
Weighted average shares outstandin- diluted

Years Ended December &

2013 2012
$ 7883 $ 10165
56,21 72,92
22,62: 28,73(
5,85¢ 7,21€
17,38¢ 21,62¢
23,24¢ 28,84:
(624) (119
39 4
(239) (440)
(26) (24)
(849) (574)
94 53¢
145 15
23¢ 554
(1,089 (1,129)
12¢ (501)
(960) (1,629
34 31
$ (9260 $ (1,599
6 36E
$ (920 $ (1,239
$ 0.06 $ (0.06)
$ 0.01 $ (0.09
$ 0.09 $ (0.09)
$ 0.0 $ (0.06)
$ 0.01 $ (0.09)
$ 0.09 $ (0.09
17,46¢ 17,40:
17,46t 17,40:

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciakBtants are an integral part of these statements.
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ULTRALIFE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUIT

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amot

Accumulated Other

Common Stock Comprehensivelncome (Loss
Capital in

Number excess of Foreign Currency Accumulated Treasury Noncontrolling

of Shares Amount Par Value Translation Adjustment Deficit Stock Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( 18,716,92 $ 1,87¢ $ 172,30¢ $ (985) $ (92,28 $ (7,65%) $ (34) $73,22¢
Net loss (1,599 (31) (1,629
Foreign currency translation adjustme 36& 36&
Stock-based compensation related to stock opt 1,07: - 1,07:
Shares issued to directc 83,81 9 29¢ 307
Shares issued under stock option exerc 28,00( 3 111 114
Balance as of December 31, 2012 18,828,73 $ 1,88¢ $ 173,79. $ (620 $ (93,879 $ (7,659 $ (65) $73,45¢
Net loss (92€) (34 (960
Foreign currency translation adjustme 6 6
Stocl-based compensation related to stock opt 774 - 774
Stock-based compensation related to restricted : 284 284
Shares issued to directc 19,84t 2 71 73
Shares issued under stock option exerc 3,00( - 12 12
Balance as of December 31, 2( 18,851,57 $ 1,88t $ 174,93. $ (614 $ (94,809 $ (7,659 $ (99) $73,64¢

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciakBtants are an integral part of these statements.
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ULTRALIFE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(Dollars in Thousands

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, netg

Adjustments to reconcile net loss from continuingrapionsto net cash provided by operating activiti

Depreciation and amortization of financing f
Amortization of intangible asse
Loss on lon-lived asset disposal and w-offs
Foreign exchange lo:
Non-cash stoc-based compensatic
Changes in deferred income ta:
Provision (gain) for the allowance for accounts reagle
Provision for inventory obsolescen
Provision for warranty charge
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Due from insurance compa
Income taxes receivak
Prepaid expenses and other current a
Income taxes payakb
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities from comitig operation
Net cash used in operating activities from discargthoperation
Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipm

Change in restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities from contiguaperation:

Net cash provided from (used in) investing actigifieom discontinued operatio
Net cash used in investing activiti

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Net cash used in financing activities from contiruaperation:
Net cash used in financing activities from discoumid operation
Net cash used in financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Change in cash and cash equival

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for income taxes

Years Ended December &

2013 2012
$ (960) $ (1,629
(12¢) 501

3,02¢ 3,467

40z 497

56 13

15 43

1,131 1,37¢

112 15

29 9

19 37¢

20 37C

6,69 1,18¢

4,39¢ 4,12:

31€ 1,01¢

29 194

(647) (75)

92 9)

(6,719 (5,619

7,89 5,86:

(99€) (1,09%)

6,89 4,768

(766) (2,685)

2 (260

(76§) (2,94%)

49¢ 2,13

(265) (812)

12 11¢

12 11E

12 11E

(230) 26E

6,41 4,33¢

9,65¢ 5,32(

$ 16,06t $ 9,65¢
$ 107 $ 237
$ 10C_ $ 357

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciakBtants are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Note 1 - Summary of Operations and Significant Accauting Policies
a. Description of Business

We offer products and services ranging from poegagbbdwer solutions to communications and electroeicgems. Through our engineering and collabor
approach to problem solving, we serve governmernfignde and commercial customers across the globe.d¥gign, manufacture, install and maintain powed
communications systems including: rechargeable reodrechargeable batteries, charging systems, comntiorisaand electronics systems and accessoriescastdn
engineered systems. We sell our products worldtid®igh a variety of trade channels, including iodgjequipment manufacturers (“OEMsifydustrial and defense sup
distributors, and directly to U.S. and internatibthefense departments.

b. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are preparextcordance with generally accepted accountingcimlies in the United States and include the acsooi
Ultralife Corporation, our wholly-owned subsidiariéfitralife Batteries (UK) Ltd. (“Ultralife UK”), ABLE New Energy Co., Limited, and its whollywned subsidiary ABL
New Energy Co., Ltd.“ABLE” collectively), and our majority-owned subsidia Ultralife Batteries India Private Limited (“IndidV”). Intercompany accounts &
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Operations of RedBlack Communications, Inc. (“RedBI® our divested company and certain components of UKraipns are reported as discontir
operations.

C. Management's Use of Judgment and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principlesurezs management to make estimates and assumjtiai
affect the reported amounts of assets and liasliéind disclosure of contingent assets and ligsilét year end and the reported amounts of regesmu expenses during
reporting period. Key areas affected by estimatelide: (a) reserves for deferred tax assetsesxand obsolete inventory, warranties, and batbd@f) profitability or
development contracts; (c) various expense acgr(djistock-based compensation; and,c@yying value of goodwill and intangible asse®ur actual results could diff
from these estimates.
d. Reclassifications

Certain items previously reported in specific finih statement captions have been reclassifiednéoem to the current presentation.
e. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of €&slis, we consider all demand deposits with finanizigtitutions and financial instruments with origl
maturities of three months or less to be cash edpiins. For purposes of the Consolidated BalametSthe carrying value approximates fair valueabse of the shc

maturity of these instruments.

Our cash balances may at times exceed federallyaddimits. We have not experienced any lossethése accounts and believe we are not exposedy
significant risk with respect to cash and cash eajaius.

f. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Aot®
We extend credit to our customers in the normaflsmof business. We perform ongoing credit evadnatiand generally do not require collateral. Tradeount
receivable are recorded at their invoiced amountt, of allowance for doubtful accounts. We evaludte adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accc

quarterly. Accounts outstanding longer than comfr@cpayment terms are considered past due andedi®wed individually for collectability. We maintareserves fc
potential credit losses based upon our loss higtndyspecific receivables aging analysis. Receg/hhlances are written off when collection is deeomdikely.
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Changes in our allowance for doubtful accountsrapthe years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 wéshosss:

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of ye $ 32z % 682
Amounts charged to expen 29 9
Uncollectible accounts writt-off, net of recoven (63) (370
Balance at end of year $ 28 $ 32z

The significant uncollectible accounts written affd012 relate to previously recorded bad debtaiohow discontinued Energy Services business.
g. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or ntankth cost determined under the first-in, fimit (FIFO) method. We record provisions for excedsolete ¢
slow-moving inventory based on changes in custaieerand, technology developments or other econcewtioffs.

h. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at déstimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings (years 10 - 20

Machinery and Equipment (yeal 5 -10

Furniture and Fixtures (year 3 -10

Computer Hardware and Software (yea 3 -5

Leasehold Improvemen Lesser of useful life or lease te

Depreciation and amortization are computed usingstteghtline method. Betterments, renewals and extraordingpairs that extend the life of the asset:
capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance costexpensed when incurred. When disposed, theacdsaccumulated depreciation applicable to asséted are remove
from the accounts and the gain or loss on dispwsii recognized in operating income (expense).

i Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Intangibles

We regularly assess all of our lotiged assets for impairment when events or circamsts indicate that their carrying amounts mayheotecoverable. F
property, plant and equipment and amortizable gitda assets, this is accomplished by comparingettgected undiscounted future cash flows of thetaswith th
respective carrying amount as of the date of assmss Should aggregate future cash flows be hems the carrying value, a writlswn would be required, measured as
difference between the carrying value and thevaiue of the asset. Fair value is estimated ettireugh the assistance of an independent valuatias the present value
expected discounted future cash flows. The discratetused by us in our evaluation approximatesa@ighted average cost of capital. If the expectediscounted futu
cash flows exceed the respective carrying amouof e date of assessment, no impairment is rezedniWe did not record any material impairmentbnfived asset
in the years ended December 31, 2013 or 2012.

In accordance with the Financial Accounting Stanslddard’s (“FASB”)guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets,do not amortize goodwill a
intangible assets with indefinite lives, but ingteaeasure these assets for impairment at leasaliypynor when events indicate that impairment exi#fe amortize intangib
assets that have definite lives so that the econbemefits of the intangible assets are beingzetiliover their weighted-average estimated usetul lif

The impairment analysis of goodwill consists firaaeview of various qualitative factors of thentiéed reporting units to determine whether it isnalikely thai
not that the fair value of a reporting unit exce@dscarrying amount, including goodwill. This rewiéncludes, but is not limited to, an evaluationtieé macroeconomi
industry or market, and cost factors relevant ®réporting unit as well as financial performance antity or reporting unit events that may afféw value of the reporti
unit. If this review leads to the determination titais more likely than not that the fair value tbe reporting unit is greater than its carrying amto further impairmeil
testing is not required. However, if this review cansupport a conclusion that it is more likely thaot that the fair value of the reporting unit ieater than its carryit
amount, or at our discretion, quantitative impaintngteps are performed. Similarly, the analysisifdefinitedived intangible assets consists of review of vasiqualitativ
factors to determine if it is more likely than ribat the indefinite-lived intangible asset is mapaired. If a conclusion that it is more likelyathnot that the indefinitéved
asset is not impaired cannot be supported, orradisaretion, quantitative impairment steps ardquered.
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The quantitative impairment test for goodwill cotsisf a comparison of the fair value of the repartiinit with the carrying amount of the reportingtda which it
is assigned. If the fair value of a reporting witeeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the réipgrunit is considered not impaired. If the camgyamount of a reportir
unit exceeds its fair value, a second step of thedgill impairment test shall be performed to measihe amount of impairment loss, if any. The impant test fo
intangible assets with indefinite lives consistsacdomparison of the fair value of the intangiblsets with their carrying amounts. If the carryindueaof the intangibl
assets exceeds the fair value, an impairment loal Be recognized in an amount equal to that excé&¥e determine the fair value of the reportingt for goodwill
impairment testing based on a discounted cash flodein We determine the fair value of our intangibhssets with indefinite lives (trademarks) throtighroyalty relie
income valuation approach.

There were no impairments of goodwill and intangéssets with indefinite lives in the years ended B 31, 2013 and 2012.

Based on the final valuations for amortizable igihte assets acquired in the AMTI acquisition dgritD09, and the ABLE and McDowell acquisitions dur@®6
we project our amortization expense will be appratigly $309, $229, $167, $122, and $86 for the ffigears ending December 31, 2014 through 2018, ctispdy.

- Translation of Foreign Currency

The financial statements of our foreign subsidmaee translated into U.S. dollar equivalents iretance with FASB guidance for foreign currency translat
with translation adjustments recorded as a compoofeatcumulated other comprehensive income. Exgidosses relate to foreign currency transactioniided in ne
loss for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2862 $15 and $43, respectively.
k. Revenue Recognition

Product Sales n general, revenues from the sale of productseregnized when products are shipped. When produwetshipped with terms that require trar
of title upon delivery at a customsrocation, revenues are recognized on the datielofery. A provision is made at the time the raweiis recognized for warranty cc
expected to be incurred. Customers, including itlistors, do not have a general right of return modpcts shipped.

Technology Contracts We recognize revenue using the proportional efftethod based on the relationship of costs incuoethte to the total estimated cos
complete the contract. Elements of cost includedalimaterial, labor and overhead. If a loss onoatract is estimated, the full amount of the lossrecognize
immediately. We allocate costs to all technologgteacts based upon actual costs incurred incluaimgllocation of certain research and developroests incurred.

Deferred Revenue For each source of revenues, we defer recognitiopdvidence of an agreement does not exisgdi)very or service has not occurred, iii)
selling price is not fixed or determinable, or @gllectability is not reasonably assured.

l. Warranty Reserves

We estimate future costs associated with expectedupt failure rates, material usage and servicésdoghe development of our warranty obligatiokgarranty
reserves, included in other current liabilities arier longterm liabilities as applicable on our ConsolidaBalance Sheets, are based on historical experignaarrant
claims. In the event the actual results of themmg differ from the estimates, an adjustment éonthrranty obligation would be recorded.

m. Shipping and Handling Costs

Costs incurred by us related to shipping and hagdire included in cost of products sold. Amoutigrged to customers pertaining to these costseflexted a
revenue.
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n. Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andretadied in selling, general and administrative eges in the accompanying Consolidated Stateme
Operations. Such expenses amounted to $413 and@58®& years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

o. Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are chasgguktations as incurred. The majority of reseamth development expenses pertain to salaries emefits
developmental supplies, depreciation and otheraoted services.

In 2011, we entered into a collaboration agreemetit Whe New York State Energy Research and Developratitority (‘NYSERDA”), to develop an
demonstrate a large hybrid gridnnected energy storage system. This agreementeraiated by NYSERDA in the second quarter of 20%3, the terms of tt
agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the agreemM®8ERDA reimbursed us for certain construction angjget research and development costs. During ¢ae gnde
December 31, 2013, there were no recoveries from NYZFERr construction costs and project research aenebpment. During the year ended December 31,
recoveries from NYSERDA for construction costs anujgmt research and development costs were $91 Hhd&spectively. Construction costs are refleatettie property
plant and equipment, net line on our ConsolidatethiBce Sheets and project research and developusts are reflected in the research and developfimenbn ou
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprifeeinsome (Loss).

We plan to continue this project internally with dimaform batteries which provide greater opportyrgind applicability in the markets we serve. Howedele tc
the termination of the NYSERDA agreement and theltiaguchange in scope of the project, we performeeview of the details of costs capitalized in cection with thi:
project to determine their future use. Those cadfisout an identifiable future use were written offtire second quarter of 2013 and totaled $56. Timairéng capitalize
costs were subjected to an impairment test based fgrecasted future cash flows, in accordance witihent accounting guidance. No impairment charge taken on tt
remaining capitalized costs.

p. Environmental Costs

Environmental expenditures that relate to currgrerations are expensed or capitalized, as apptepira accordance with FASB’guidance on environmer
remediation liabilities. Remediation costs thdateto an existing condition caused by past oeratare accrued when it is probable that these eafitbe incurred and ci
be reasonably estimated.

q. Income Taxes

The asset and liability method, prescribed by FAS@uidance for the Accounting for Income Taxes,seduin accounting for income taxes. Under this
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determbssid on differences between financial reportingtardasis of assets and liabilities and are measusing the enacted
rates and laws that are expected to be in effect Wieedifferences are expected to reverse.

A valuation allowance is required when it is moresljkthan not that the recorded value of a defetagdasset will not be realized. As of December2®11,3, wt
continue to recognize a valuation allowance in th®.dnd U.K. on our net U.S. deferred tax assetdaittent the differences and the U.S. and U.K. NOLsltreg in the
deferred tax asset are not able to be offset hyduteversing temporary differences, based on aistemt evaluation methodology that was used fo220lhe assessment
the realizability of the U.S. NOL was based on a nundfefactors including, our history of net operagfitosses, the volatility of our earnings, our histal operatin
volatility, our historical inability to accuratelprecast earnings for future periods and the caetihuncertainty of the general business climatef ake end of 2013. V
concluded that these factors represent sufficiegative evidence and have concluded that we shewglord a full valuation allowance under FASBjuidance on ti
accounting for income taxes. We also recordedw@atian allowance on our net deferred tax asseth®year ended December 31, 2012.

We have adopted the provisions of FASBjuidance for the Accounting for Uncertainty in Im@ Taxes. In 2013 and 2012, we had unrecognizetheaefit:
related to uncertain tax positions which have besgonded as a decrease in our NOL. We have notdedoany interest or penalty in regard to any urgeizec
benefit. Interest and penalties would begin tow@edn the period in which the NO& related to the uncertain tax positions are etilizOur policy regarding interest anc
penalties related to income tax matters is to reegsuch items as a component of income tax exp@enefit).
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r. Concentration Related to Customers and Suppliers

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012yadeone major customer, a large defense primaryraior, which comprised 25% and 21% of
revenues, respectively. There were no other cusithat comprised greater than 10% of our totaémeres during these years.

We have two customers who comprised 26% and 15%ec#eply, of our trade accounts receivable as ofebdger 31, 2013. We had two customers
comprised 22% and 12%, respectively, of our tram®ants receivable as of December 31, 2012.

Currently, we do not experience significant seastnesids in our revenues. Since a significant portf our revenues are based on purchases fromaddsalliec
country defense departments, the timing of oursseteild be impacted by delays in the governmengéugrocess and the decisions to deploy resouocespport militar
purchases of our products.

We generally do not distribute our products tooacentrated geographical area nor is there a g&gnif concentration of credit risks arising frongiiiduals o
groups of customers engaged in similar activitiesiyho have similar economic characteristics. WHikect and indirect sales to the U.S. Departmeiefense have be
substantial during 2013 and 2012, we do not conside customer to be a significant credit risk/e do not normally obtain collateral on trade actsuweceivable.

Certain materials and components used in our ptsdare available only from a single or a limitednier of suppliers. As such, some materials and coenie
could become in short supply resulting in limitagitgability and/or increased costs. Additionally, weyy elect to develop relationships with a singldiraited number ¢
suppliers for materials and components that areratise generally available. Although we believe #itgrnative suppliers are available to supply miateand componer
that could replace materials and components cuyrased and that, if necessary, we would be abledesign our products to make use of such alteestany interruptic
in the supply from any supplier that serves asla saurce could delay product shipments and hawatarial adverse effect on our business, finar@atlition and results
operations. We have experienced interruptiongadyct deliveries by sole source suppliers in tast.p

S. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

The FASB guidance for fair value measurements pesvid framework for measuring fair value and requegpanded disclosures regarding fair v
measurements. Fair value is defined as the prigevilould be received for an asset or the exit ptizg would be paid to transfer a liability in thengipal or mos
advantageous market in an orderly transaction letwearket participants on the measurement dates. d¢tounting standard established a fair valueatdby, whicl
requires an entity to maximize the use of observatputs, where available. The following summaritesthree levels of inputs required.

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical asset&bilities.

Level 2: Observable inputs, other than Level 1 prices, ssajuated prices for similar assets or liabilitigspted prices in markets that are not active; beoinputs the
are observable or that we corroborate with obseevatalrket data for substantially the full term of tielated assets or liabilities

Level 3: Unobservable inputs supported by little or no madativity that are significant to the fair valuetb® assets or liabilitie

FASB’s guidance for the disclosure regarding fair vabfefinancial instruments requires disclosure of estimate of the fair value of certain finan
instruments. The fair value of financial instrurteepursuant to FASB’ guidance for the disclosure regarding fair valfinancial instruments approximated their carg
values at December 31, 2013 and 2012. The fairevafucash, trade accounts receivable, trade acsqayable, accrued liabilities, and our revolvingdit facility
approximates carrying value due to the short-teatune of these instruments. The estimated famevalf other longerm debt and capital lease obligations approxis
carrying value due to the variable nature of therst rates or the stated interest rates appraxigneurrent interest rates that are availabledfst with similar terms.
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t. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

We have adopted the provisions of FASB’s guidance determining whether instruments granted in shased payment transactions are particip
securities. The guidance requires that all outstenunvested shateased payment awards that contain nonforfeitapletsito dividends or dividend equivalents (suc
restricted stock awards granted by us) be considea#ttipating securities. Because the restristedk awards are participating securities, we areired| to apply the two-
class method of computing basic and diluted eampeg share (the “Two-Class Method”).

Basic EPS is determined using the Two-Class Metiratlis computed by dividing earnings attributabléJttralife common shareholders by the weightegrag
shares outstanding during the period. The Timss Method is an earnings allocation formula thetermines earnings per share for each class mmom stock ar
participating security according to dividends desthand participation rights in undistributed eags. Diluted EPS includes the dilutive effect etuwrities, if any, ar
reflects the more dilutive EPS amount calculatedgithe treasury stock method or the Two-Class blthFor the years ended December 31, 2013 and Boft2the Two-
Class Method and the treasury stock method calonkfor diluted EPS yielded the same result.

The computation of basic and diluted earnings paresis summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
Net Loss from continuing operatioattributable to Ultralife $ (1,059 $ (1,097)
Net Loss from continuing operatioattributable to participating securities (unvegtestricted stock awards) (120,000 and -0- shares,
respectively) - -
Net Loss from continuing operatioattributable to Ultralife common shareholders (a) (1,059 (1,097
Net Income (Loss) from discontinued operatiattributable to Ultralife common shareholders (c) $ 126 $ (507
Average Common Shares Outstanc— Basic (e) 17,465,00 17,403,00
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Stock Options / Warrants - -
Average Common Shares Outstanding — Diluted (f) 17,465,00 17,403,00
EPS- Basic (a/e- continuing operation $ 0.06) $ (0.0¢)
EPS- Basic (c/e- discontinued operatior $ 0.01 $ (0.03)
EPS- Diluted (b/f)— continuing operation $ 0.06) $ (0.0¢)
EPS- Diluted (d/f)— discontinued operatior $ 0.01 $ (0.09)

There were 2,251,622 outstanding stock options,amésrand restricted stock awards as of December(3B, 2hat were not included in EPS as the effectld
have been antiilutive. No outstanding stock options, warrants eestricted stock awards were included in the dilutomputation for the year ended December 31, :
There were 2,211,488 outstanding stock options,amgsrand restricted stock awards as of December032, 2hat were not included in EPS as the effectldvbave bee
anti-dilutive. No outstanding stock options, wargaahd restricted stock awards were included in flaéah computation for the year ended December281,2.

u. Stock-Based Compensation
We have various stock-based employee compensaléms,pvhich are described more fully in Note 7. éow the provisions of FASB’s guidance on share-
based payments, which requires that compensatisnretating to sharbased payment transactions be recognized in tlaadial statements. The cost is measured

grant date, based on the fair value of the award,ismecognized as an expense over the emplsyeguisite service period (generally the vestiegqa of the equit
award).
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V. Segment Reporting

We report segment information in accordance with B/ASguidance on Disclosures about Segments of arrfiisie and Related Information. We have
operating segments. The basis for determiningoperating segments is the manner in which finariefatmation is used by us in our operations. Mpmaent operates a
organizes itself according to business units thaigrise unique products and services across geluigrimgations.

On February 15, 2012, we decided to divest our RemxlBICommunications business, which previously wgsorted in the Communications Syste
segment. Further, in Q4 of 2012, we elected noenew the lease for our U.K. manufacturing facility ethexpired on March 24, 2013. The results of tiseattinued Ul
operations were previously reported in the Battexy Bnergy Products segment. See Note 2 in these Mo@snsolidated Financial Statements for addifianfarmation.

W. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Hrésentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Wheree@perating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossd &
Credit Carryforward Exists.” With certain exceptiprASU 201311 requires entities to present an unrecognizedésmefit, or portion of an unrecognized tax benefi i
reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net opgydtiss carryforward, a similar tax loss or a teeddrcarryforward. The guidance is effective forenmn and annual perio
beginning after December 15, 2013 on either a pris@eor retrospective basis with early adoptiompéied. We do not expect adoption of this guidatechave a materi
impact on its consolidated results of operatiort farancial condition.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-05, “Pareattcounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustinapon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiarie
Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an tweent in a Foreign Entity.” ASU 2015 provides that the cumulative translation adjesttris released into r
income when a reporting entity ceases to have &albing interest in a subsidiary that is contrdlley a consolidated foreign entity. Further, thislate states that the sal
an investment in a foreign entity includes bothrgsethat result in the loss of a controlling finehénterest in a foreign entity, regardless of aatained investment, a
events that result in an acquirer obtaining corttimdugh a step acquisition. ASU 20@8-is effective prospectively for fiscal years bedng after December 15, 2013, v
early adoption permitted. We do not believe thaipdidn of this standard will have a material impactour consolidated results of operations anchfifed condition.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-@bligations Resulting from Joint and Several LidapilArrangements for Which the Total Amount of
Obligation is Fixed at the Reporting Date.” ASU 20 Brequires an entity to measure such obligatisrth@ sum of the amount that the reporting engitged to pay on tl
basis of its arrangement with co-obligors and aifgitional amount the reporting entity expects tg pa behalf of its cabligors. The guidance is effective for interim
annual periods beginning after December 15, 20180Rgective presentation for all comparative pesipdesented is required with early adoption peeditiWe do nc
expect adoption of this guidance to have a matempéct on its consolidated results of operatians fenancial condition.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, “Repgrof Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulated OtB@mprehensive Income.” ASU 2002- require
an entity to provide information about the amouetdassified out of accumulated other comprehensi@me by component as well as presentation, reitheéhe face of tt
financial statement or in the notes, of significantounts reclassified out of accumulated other celrgnsive income by the respective line items ofim@me but only
the amount reclassified is required under U.S. GAAPdaeclassified to net income in its entirety tie same reporting period. For amounts that areewptired to b
reclassified in their entirety to net income, anitgris required to cross-reference to other disates that provide additional detail about thoseuwrts. ASU 20132 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decembgr 2012. Adoption of this standard did not haveademal impact on our consolidated results of op@na and financii
condition.
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Note 2- Dispositions & Exit Activities
2012 Activity
Ultralife Batteries UK, Ltd.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, we elected noteteew the lease for our U.K. manufacturing facilityisthexpired on March 24, 2013, and to relocatesale:
and services operations to a smaller facility. Aesult of this decision, we were required to restbie facility back to its original condition perpsevious contractu
commitment.

The costs associated with the lease exit did nairbeadeterminable until late in the fourth quarte2®12. Accordingly, we recorded a liability as bétend of 201
for our the estimated costs to return the facitiyits original condition as well as other relatecpenses that resulted in $228 being charged tingelyeneral, ar
administrative costs related to operations transéeto our facilities in Newark, NY, and an additib815 being recorded as discontinued operationshfise operatiol
that were not transferred to our facilities in NekyadY. The termination of the lease led to no empéoyeductions or other termination costs, with tkReeption of th
aforementioned restoration costs. We paid thests ao$ull in the first quarter of 2013 and recadde gain from discontinued operations for the diffee between estima
and actual costs.

As a result, the Consolidated Statements of Compsie Income (Loss) herein exclude the discontiriukichlife Batteries UK, Ltd. operations from the risuof
continuing operations. The following amounts hagerbreported as discontinued operations for yeatsdeDecember 31, 2013 and 2012:

Years Ended December 3]

2013 2012
Net sales $ - 3 =
Gain (loss) from discontinued operatic 241 (815)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes - -
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 241 $ (815

RedBlack Communications, Inc.

On February 16, 2012, we announced our intentiorivestiour RedBlack Communications, Inc. (“RedBlgckUsiness in 2012. RedBlack was a wholly ow
subsidiary of ours based in Hollywood, Maryland, ttesigned, integrated and fielded mobile, modutal faxed site communication and electronic systei& determine
that RedBlack offered limited opportunities to @@ the operating thresholds of our new businesteino

On September 28, 2012, we entered into and closédcé Burchase Agreement (the “Agreemeid”sell 100% of our capital stock in RedBlack toBSolutions
Inc. In exchange for the sale of RedBlack, we remti$2,533 as a purchase price, comprised of dasbsing in the amount of $2,133, funds held iorew for up to on
year in the amount of $250, as well as $150 toJzlable for RedBlack employee retention programAsnounts charged to expense of $125 are due to roasjopost-
closing working capital adjustments that have bheeognized over the course of 2013.

The Agreement contains customary representationsaamcanties that will survive for a period of two three years. The Agreement also contains custc
indemnification for breaches of the representatem warranties identified in the Agreement.

Pursuant to the Agreement, we are prohibited fromagimg or participating with any current customerR&dBlack in any business, directly or indirectlya
competes with the business conducted by RedBlactwimyears. We are also prohibited from hirindjciting, or recruiting any current employee, inéeplent contractc
or consultant of BCF Solutions, Inc. or RedBlacktfwo years.

Commencing with the first quarter of 2012, the hssof the RedBlack operations and related divetitosts have been reported as a discontinuedtaper
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As a result, the Consolidated Statements of Opetond Comprehensive Income (Loss) herein excludeRédBlack operations from the results of contig
operations. The following amounts have been regaas discontinued operations for years ended Desre®ih 2013 and 2012:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
Net sales $ - 3 3,404
Loss from discontinued operatio (125) @)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes - 174
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations, neagf $ (125 % 167
Prior Activity

As it relates to our operations closed prior to 204€ reported income of $12 and $147 for the yeade@ December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. lado
both years is due entirely to adjustments to resethiat were established as of the closure of téss as our actual experience has differed fnanexpectations at tt
time.

Note 3 - Supplemental Balance Sheet Information
a. Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or ntaskth cost determined under the first-in, first-gbtFO) method. The composition of inventories was:

December 31

2013 2012
Raw materials $ 16,23¢ $ 15,02¢
Work in proces: 2,41% 4,86:
Finished products 7,402 10,48

$ 26,05: % 30,37(

b. Property, Plant and Equipment
Major classes of property, plant and equipment isted of the following:

December 31

2013 2012

Land $ 12z $ 12z
Buildings and Leasehold Improveme 7,41% 7,381
Machinery and Equipmel 47,40¢ 46,60¢
Furniture and Fixture 1,86¢ 1,81(
Computer Hardware and Softwe 4,247 4,10:
Construction in Progress 1,07: 1,27¢

62,12¢ 61,29¢
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 51,92/ 48,88:

$ 10,20 $ 12,41¢

Estimated costs to complete construction in pragessof December 31, 2013 and 2012 were approxiyred&R and $1,154, respectively.
Depreciation expense was $2,957 and $3,306 for thes ynded December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

C. Impairment of Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Longeld Assets
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We applied the provisions of FASB ASC Topics 3Dand 820 during the annual goodwill impairmerdlgsis performed in October 2013. The first, opdilpiste)
of the goodwill analysis is to determine if it is radikely than not that the fair value of the idéatl reporting units exceeds the respective cagyialue. This qualitatiy
analysis includes but is not limited to, an evabrabf the macroeconomic, industry or market, aost éactors relevant to the reporting unit as \aslfinancial performan
and entity or reporting unit events that may aftbet value of the reporting unit. We elected tefm the qualitative assessment on all three ofdeetified reporting unit
If the conclusion that it is more likely than nbat the fair value of the reporting unit exceedsérrying value cannot be supported, or if thergpg unit is not subjected
the qualitative assessment, the fair value of éperting unit is determined using a quantitativéeasment. The fair value for our reporting unitsjestted to this quantitati
test could not be determined using readily avadlaploted Level 1 inputs or Level 2 inputs that walseervable in active markets. Therefore, we useid@me approac
to estimate the fair value of the reporting uniising Level 3 inputs. To estimate the fair valdettee reporting unit, we used significant estimasesl judgmenti
factors. The key estimates and factors used ivdhetion model included revenue growth rates aonfitpnargins based on internal forecasts, as veeihdustry and mark
based terminal growth rates, inputs to the weiglateztage cost of capital used to discount futuré flasvs, and earnings multiples. As a result ofgbedwill impairmen
tests performed during 2013 and 2012, no impairmestindicated.

Similar to goodwill, we applied the provisions of FBSopics 350-30 and 820, during the annual indefitived intangible asset analysis performed in Septa
and October 2013. The first, optional, step of thalysis is to determine if it is more likely thaotrthat the fair value of the indentified indeferived intangible asse
exceeds the respective carrying values. This quizkét analysis includes but is not limited to, amleation of the macroeconomic, industry or marleetgl other facto
relevant to the indefinite-lived intangible asséie elected to forego the qualitative assessmeatldaur identified indefinitdived intangible assets. If a conclusion that
more likely than not that the fair value of theeéfidite-lived intangible asset cannot be suppoaei this optional step is not applied to the ifidite-lived intangible asse
the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangibleset is determined using a quantitative assessmiatfair value for our indefinitéved intangible assets subjected to
quantitative test could not be determined usingitgavailable quoted Level 1 inputs or Level 2 utp that were observable in active markets. Theeefve used a roya
relief approach, to estimate the fair value of itigefinite-lived intangible assets, using Levehuts. To estimate the fair value of the indeéifiited intangible asset, v
used significant estimates and judgmental factdise key estimates and factors used in the valuatiodel included revenue growth rates, as well dastry and mark
based terminal growth rates, inputs to the weiglategtage cost of capital used to discount futurl fasvs, and determined royalty rates. As a resthe impairment tes
performed during 2013 and 2012, no impairment wdicated.

During 2013 and 2012, we also evaluated certairdfa@sets for impairment utilizing valuation methdiukst are classified as Level 3 inputs. Based uperresult
of this evaluation, no material impairment was iaticl.

d. Goodwill

The following table summarizes the goodwill activiity segment for the years ended December 31, 204 2@12:

Battery & Communications Discontinuec
Energy Products Systems Operations Total
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 4,83t $ 11,49 $ 2,02¢ $ 18,35¢
Sale of RedBlacCommunication: (2,025 (2,025
Effect of foreign currency translations 13 - - 13
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 4,851 $ 11,49 $ -$ 16,34
Effect of foreign currency translations 75 - - 7E
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 4,92¢ $ 11,49 $ -$  16,41¢
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e. Other Intangible Assets
The composition of intangible assets was:

December 31, 201
Accumulated

Gross Asset  Amortization Net
Trademark $ 3,56¢ $ - 8 3,56¢
Patents and technoloi 4,511 3,941 57C
Customer relationshig 4,03: 3,562 471
Distributor relationship 39: 35€ 37
Non-compete agreements 21€ 21€ -
Total intangible assets $ 12,720 $ 8,07 $ 4,64¢€

December 31, 201
Accumulated

Gross Asset  Amortization Net
Trademark $ 3,56¢ $ - 8 3,56¢
Patents and technoloi 4,49¢ 3,70z 792
Customer relationshig 3,99¢ 3,36¢ 632
Distributor relationship 38( 33C 50
Non-compete agreements 217 217 -
Total intangible assets $ 12,65 $ 7,61t $ 5,03¢

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $4@P$497 for the years ended December 31, 2013G®] Bespectively.
The change in the cost value of total intangibketsis a result of the effect of foreign curreegghange rate fluctuations.
Note 4 - Operating Leases

We lease various buildings, machinery, land, autuites and office equipment. Rental expenses fop@érating leases were approximately $1,029 an@i1g1fo
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, resgdgctuture minimum lease payments under non-dabkeoperating leases as of December 31, 2013sdmlaws:

201¢
201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 2017 and beyon
$ 707 $ 394 % 201 % 71 3 4

Note 5 - Debt
Credit Facilities

On May 24, 2013, we entered into a Revolving Créglitaranty and Security Agreement (the “Credit Agreefieatd related security agreements with PNC E
National Association“PNC”) to establish a $20 million secured asset-Hasevolving credit facility that includes a $1 rioh letter of credit subfacility (theCredit
Facility”). The Credit Agreement provides that Beedit Facility may be increased with the PH@bncurrence to $35 million prior to the last signths of the term a
expires on May 24, 2017. The Credit Facility repkthe prior credit facility with RBS Business Qapia division of RBS Asset Finance, Inc., whichiesgh in accordanc
with its terms on May 15, 2013, with no debt outsiag.
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Our available borrowing limit under the Credit Fagifluctuates from time to time based on a bormgvbase formula equal to the sum of up to 85% igfteé
accounts receivable plus the least of (a) up to 85%e eligible inventory and eligible foreign iransit inventory, (b) up to 85% of the appraised orderly liquidatio
value of eligible inventory and eligible foreigniransit inventory, and (c) $7.5 million, in eactseaubject to the definitions in the Credit Agreeneerd reserves requir
by PNC.

Interest is payable quarterly and will accrue otstanding indebtedness under the Credit Agreemethieadlternate base rate, as defined in the Chggitemen
plus the applicable margin or at the one, two cegéhmonth LIBOR rate plus the applicable margin &exged by us from time to time and listed below.

Quarterly Average Undrawn Applicable Margin for Applicable Margin fo

Borrowing Availability Alternate Base Rate Loz LIBOR Rate Loan:
Greater than $8,000,0( 1.0% 2.0(%
$5,000,000 up to $8,000,0! 1.25% 2.25%
Less than $5,000,0¢ 1.5(% 2.5(%

We must pay a fee on the Credit Faciktyinused availability of 0.375% per annum and cnaty letter of credit fees in addition to variouslateral monitorin
and related fees and expenses.

In addition to customary affirmative and negatieeenants, we must maintain a fixed charge coveratie as defined in the Credit Agreement of 1:15:89Dkeste
quarterly for the four-quarters then ended. As ofddeber 31, 2013 we were in compliance with all com&alhe Credit Facility is secured by substantiall our assets.

Any outstanding advances must be repaid upon eiqguiralf the term of the Credit Facility. Paymentssnbe made during the term to the extent outsta
advances exceed the maximum amount then permittee trawn as advances under the Credit Facilityframad the proceeds of certain transactions. Upenoccurrence
an event of default, the outstanding obligationy ima accelerated and PNC will have other custorremedies.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $e@rstanding under the Credit Facility, an applieaibterest rate of 2.17%, approximately $12,96%afowing capacity i
addition to our unrestricted cash on hand of $16,86d no outstanding letters of credit relatetheoCredit Facility.

Note 6 - Commitments and Contingencies
a. Indemnity

Our organizational documents provide that our diecor officers will be reimbursed for all expensesthe fullest extent permitted by law arising ofi theil
performance.

b. Purchase Commitments
As of December 31, 2013, we have made commitmemgsrithase approximately $221 of production machiaeiy equipment.
C. Royalty Agreements

Technology underlying certain of our products isdzhin part on noexclusive transfer agreements. In 2003, we entatedan agreement with Saft Groupe S
to license certain tooling for battery cases. Titensing fee associated with this agreement isdbagsea percentage of the sales price of the indalithattery case, up tc
maximum of one dollar per battery case. The tatghlty expense reflected in 2013 and 2012 was &hah year. This agreement expires in the year.201

d. Government Grants/Loans

In conjunction with the City of West Point, Missigsi, we applied for a Community Development Block @rg'CDBG") from the State of Mississippi {
infrastructure improvements to our leased facilitst is owned by the City of West Point, Mississipphe CDBG was awarded and as of December 31, 20ffigxamatel
$480 has been distributed under the grant. Undegesement with the City of West Point, we agreeeinploy at least 30 fulime employees at the facility, of which 5
of the jobs had to be filled or made availabledw lor moderate income families, within three yearsahpletion of the CDBG improvement activities. dddition, wi
agreed to invest at least $1,000 in equipment ant#ting capital into the facility within the first the years of operation of the facility. While wevéaet to receive form
notice from the applicable government agency conifig the closure of the grant, we believe that ldtthese commitments were satisfied as of March.241d, therefor
have not recorded an accrual with respect to amgnpiat liability for the grant amounts received enthe CDBG.
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In conjunction with Clay County, Mississippi, we &pgd for a Mississippi Rural Impact Fund Grant (FR3”) from the State of Mississippi for infrastruct
improvements to our leased facility that is owngdhe City of West Point, Mississippi. The RIFG waagarded and as of December 31, 2011, approxim$i&9 has bet
distributed under the grant. Under an agreemeitit @iay County, we agreed to employ at least 30tfiuie employees at the facility, of which 51% of fobs had to t
filed or made available to low or moderate incoraenilies, within two years of completion of the RIFGpimvement activities. In September 2010, we reckiax
extension for this commitment to March 31, 201d.adldition, we agreed to invest at least $1,00@uipnent and working capital into the facility withthe first three yea
of operation of the facility. While we have yetreceive formal notice from the applicable governtregency confirming the closure of the grant, wiebe that both ¢
these commitments were satisfied as of March 20@1tarrefore, have not recorded an accrual withewsp any potential liability for the grant amosineceived under t
RIFG.

e. China

Our operating facility in China presents risks imtthg, but not limited to, changes in local regutgteequirements, including changes in labor lawsal wage law:
environmental regulations, taxes and operatingndies, compliance with U.S. regulatory requiremeimisipding the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, undeties as t
application and interpretation of local laws anfloecement of contract and intellectual propertyhtgy eminent domain claims, labor disputes, rapahges in governme
economic and political policies, and other varigostingencies that are outside of our control. Aogh event could depress our earnings and haee wthterial adver:
effects on our business, financial condition arsiiits of operations.

f. Employment Contracts

We have an employment contract with Michael D. Pepieour President and Chief Executive Officer, ahétays in effect until terminated by either parfhis
agreement provides for a base salary, as adjustaddreases at the discretion of our Board of Daes; and includes incentive bonuses based upamiient of specifie
quantitative and qualitative performance goalsisTagreement also provides for severance paymanitsei event of specified events of termination wipyment. i
addition, this agreement provides for a lump sugmpent in the event of termination of employment@mnection with a change in control.

As part of our employment commencement process, @reps are required to enter into agreements prayiftir confidentiality of certain information ante
assignment of rights to inventions made by thememaihployed by us. These agreements also contdaircapncompetition and nonsolicitation provisi@iective durin
the employment term and for varying periods theezafepending on position and location. There andassurance that we will be able to enforce thgs=ements. All «
our employees agree to abide by the terms of a @bdethics policy that provides for the confidelitia of certain information received during the cse of thei
employment.

g. Product Warranties

We estimate future costs associated with expectedupt failure rates, material usage and servicesdoshe development of our warranty obligatiokfgarranty
reserves are based on historical experience of mtgrcéaims and generally will be estimated as a@etage of sales over the warranty period. In temtethe actual resu
of these items differ from the estimates, an adjesit to the warranty obligation would be record€thanges in our product warranty liability during thears ende
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of ye $ 607 $ 83¢
Accruals for warranties issut 20 37C
Settlements made (1149 (602)
Balance at end of year $ 51z $ 607
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h. Post Audits of Government Contracts

We had certain “exigent”, nobid contracts with the U.S. government, which wergjestt to audit and final price adjustment, whichuiesd in decreased marg
compared with the original terms of the contrads. of December 31, 2012, there were no outstandiigert contracts with the U.S. government. As péritsdue
diligence, the U.S. government has conducted godits of the completed exigent contracts to enthatinformation used in supporting the pricingeafgent contracts d
not differ materially from actual results. In Sepiber 2005, the Defense Contracting Audit Agency (“DCAgresented its findings related to the audits oée¢hof th
exigent contracts, suggesting a potential pricidigistment of approximately $1,400 related to reidinst in the cost of materials that occurred priotite final negotiation «
these contracts. In addition, in June 2007, weivedea request from the Office of Inspector Genefahe Department of Defense (“DoD IG8geking certain informatic
and documents relating to our business with the Deygent of Defense. We cooperated with the DCAA audit BoD IG inquiry by making available to governmr
auditors and investigators our personnel and fhingsthe requested information and documents. DBAA Audit and DoD IG inquiry were consolidated and tHg
Attorney’s Office represented the government in connectioh thiegse matters. Under applicable federal law, we naag been subject up to treble damages and pe=
associated with the potential pricing adjustmentlight of the uncertainty, we decided to enter idiscussions with the U.S. AttorneyOffice in April 2011 to negotiate
settlement that would be in the best interests ofcastomers, employees and shareholders. On Apri2@11, we were advised by the government thaethas a $2,7:
settlement-irprinciple to resolve all claims related to the c¢aots, subject to final approval by the Departmdniustice. As a result, we recorded a $2,730 chasgi
reduction in revenues for the first quarter of 200n June 1, 2011, we entered into a Settlement Agreewith the United States of America, acting tigtothe Unite
States Department of Justice and on behalf of tepaBiment of Defense that required us to pay & ¢6t&2,700 plus accrued interest thereon at the o0& 2.625% pe
annum. Under the Settlement Agreement, we were rehtarmake principal payments of $1,000, $567, $&6d $566 being due on June 8, 2011, December 1, 200é 1
2012 and December 1, 2012, respectively. Eachipghpayment was accompanied by a payment of addnierest. As of December 31, 2012, we had madeaillirec
payments.

i Legal Matters

We are subject to legal proceedings and claimsatiaé in the normal course of business. We beltbat the final disposition of such matters wibt mave
material adverse effect on our financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

Arista Power Litigation

On September 23, 2011, we initiated an action agadnsta Power, Inc. (“Arista”)and our former senior sales and engineering emploZavid Modee
(“Modeen”)in the State of New York Supreme Court, County of Wafindex No. 73379). In our Complaint, we allelgat tArista recruited all but one of the member#s
executive team from us, subsequently changed afickeged its business to compete directly with usibiyng our confidential information, and during themmer of 201.
recruited Modeen to become an Arista employee. Wsge that, as a result of actions by Arista and &wod (i) Modeen has breached the terms of his Byeg
Confidentiality, Non-Disclosure, Non-Compete, NDisparagement and Assignment Agreement with usM@gleen has breached certain agreements, dutieshéigdtion:
he owed us, including to protect and refrain froscllising our trade secrets and confidential angrtary information; (iii) Aristas employment of Modeen will inevitat
lead to the disclosure and use of our trade sebretarista, in violation of Modees’ duties and obligations to us; (iv) Arista unlawfuhduced Modeen to breach
agreements with and duties and obligations to ud; (ap Arista’s recruitment and employment of Modeen has breaehedbcontract between Arista and us. We
damages as determined at trial and preliminarypegmchanent injunctive relief. The defendants haxanered the allegations set forth in the Complaiithout asserting ar
counterclaims.

On December 5, 2011, Arista served us with a Compiaiiféd on November 29, 2011 in the State of NewR/Supreme Court, County of Monroe (Index No. 11-
13896) against us, our officers, several of ouedaors, and an employee. In its Complaint, Aridkegas that we and our named defendants have wibtate terms of
Confidentiality Agreement with Arista and have unfaicbmpeted against Arista by unlawfully approprigtirista’s trade secrets and that as a result of such tgcthviiste
has incurred damages in excess of $60,000. Arsiessdamages, an accounting, and preliminary amdgment injunctive relief.
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On December 21, 2011, we and our officers, directodseanployee named in Arista’s Complaint filed a imoto dismiss Arista Complaint against our office
directors and employee as ArigaComplaint fails to state any cause of action regaany of them and to dismiss the claim of fragdimast our officers, directors a
employee. Subsequently, Arista filed an Amended Complaint atiggessentially the same causes of action but gddifditional factual allegations against us anc
officers, directors and employee. In addition,sfaifiled a motion to disqualify our outside legalunsel representing us and our officers, direciois employee in ba
Arista’s Complaint and our Complaint against Arista.response, we and our officers, directors anfleyee filed a new motion to dismiss Arisg&€Complaint against us
its entirety and seeking dismissal of the fraudntlagainst us. Arista’motion to disqualify our outside legal counsel wasied on February 10, 2012. On March 9, Z
the Court issued its decision on our motion to dsmgranting the motion to the extent of dismigsgome claims against us, but denying the motiodismiss th
individuals from the lawsuit at this preliminanage. On April 19, 2012, an Answer was filed on bebalis, our officers, directors and employee. Ont&aper 10, 201
Arista filed a Second Amended Complaint deletingradividual defendants except our named employeehich an Answer was filed on our behalf on Septen30e2012
Discovery has commenced with respect to the Arisgation and is ongoing.

We initiated the September 23, 2011 Complaint agjainista Power to protect our customers, emplogeesshareholders from the unauthorized use antdhetn
investments in intellectual property, trade seceetd confidential information by Arista and its eoy#es. Protecting our collective intellectual pdp and knowhow,
developed at great cost to us to form our competjtiosition in the marketplace and create valuefwrshareholders, is a fundamental responsitufigdl our employees.

We believe the November 29, 2011 Arista Complainetsliatory and without merit. Our developmentttedé foundation for the new product concept for w
Arista claims we allegedly used its trade secretsirnenced in 2008, long prior to the departure ofs¢hindividuals who now constitute the executive teaf
Arista. Furthermore, we believe the purported damafg$60,000 being claimed by Arista is based sabelythe reduction in its market capitalization betwéNovembe
2009 and the filing date of the Complaint. This ketrvalue loss is totally unrelated to any actionsaccount of us, and claims for recovery of thismy other amount &
legally and factually baseless.

Accordingly, we will vigorously pursue our complaimgaanst Arista and defend what we believe to be atlassiaction on the part of Arista Power.

9-Volt Battery Litigation

In July 2010, we were served with a summons and antgfiled in Japan by one of oun®it battery customers. The complaint alleged dasaassociated wi
claims of breach of warranty in an amount of appraately $1,100. A trial was held on May 25, 2012,apah before a panel of three judges, after whietptrties agre«
to settle the matter for approximately $125, whiels been reflected in our cost of products solddib22 The terms of the settlement agreement inahadiegal liability ol
our part and the plaintiff abandoning all othelimlgagainst us.

Note 7 - Shareholders' Equity
a. Preferred Stock

We have authorized 1,000,000 shares of prefermedk stvith a par value of $0.10 per share. At DecerBtieR013, no preferred shares were issued or odisg
b. Common Stock

We have authorized 40,000,000 shares of commok,sigth a par value of $0.10 per share.

In August 2013, we issued 15,272 shares of comnumk $6 our noremployee directors, valued at $57. In Novembe320k issued 4,573 shares of our com
stock to our non-employee directors, valued at $16.

In February 2012, we issued 16,271 shares of ounmmmstock to our noemployee directors, valued at $77. In May 2012jssaed 17,473 shares of our comi
stock to our non-employee directors, valued at #f7August 2012, we issued 24,311 shares of ourntmmstock to our noemployee directors, valued at $77.
November 2012, we issued 25,758 shares of our conshogk to our na-employee directors, valued at $77.

C. Treasury Stock

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had 1,372,75&slvditreasury stock outstanding, valued at $7,658.
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d. Stock Options

We have various stock-based employee compensatos, for which we follow the provisions of FASB'’s gaitte on sharbased payments, which requires
compensation cost relating to shéa@sed payment transactions be recognized in thadial statements. The cost is measured at timt dadée, based on the fair value of
award, and is recognized as an expense over thioyeefs requisite service period (generally thetingsperiod of the equity award).

Our shareholders have approved various equity-bplsed that permit the grant of stock options, ret&td stock and other equibased awards. In addition,
shareholders have approved the grant of stock mptiatside of these plans.

In June 2004, shareholders adopted the 2004 Long-Trcentive Plan (“LTIP")pursuant to which we were authorized to issue upsh0D0 shares of comm
stock and grant stock options, restricted stock dsyastock appreciation rights and other stbaked awards. Through shareholder approved ametsitoetne LTIP il
2006, 2008, 2011, and 2013, the total number dfaited under the LTIP increased to 2,900,000.

Stock options granted under the LTIP are eitheemtivge Stock Options (“ISOs”) or Non-Qualified Stocktidps (“NQSOs”). Key employees are eligible
receive ISOs and NQSOs; however, directors and conssiléae eligible to receive only NQSOs. Most ISOd weser a three- or fivgear period and expire on the sixtt
seventh anniversary of the grant date. All NQSOsedso nonemployee directors vest immediately and expire ibmee the sixth or seventh anniversary of the ¢
date. Some NQSOs issued to ranployees vest immediately and expire within threary; others have the same vesting characterastioptions given to employees. A:
December 31, 2013, there were 2,035,688 stock optiststanding under the LTIP.

On December 19, 2005, we granted our former PresatehChief Executive Officer, John, D. Kavazanjian option to purchase 48,000 shares of commak st
$12.96 per share outside of any of our egbéged compensation plans, subject to shareholgeowgd. Shareholder approval was obtained on Jyrg9@6. The stoc
option was fully vested and expired on June 8, 2013.

On March 7, 2008, in connection with his becoming leygd by us, we granted our Chief Financial Offiaed Treasurer, Philip A. Fain, an option to purc
50,000 shares of common stock at $12.74 per shas@le of any of our equity-based compensationspldrhe option is fully vested and expires on MatcR015.

On December 30, 2010, pursuant to the terms of hiayment agreement, we granted our President amef Ekecutive Officer, Michael D. Popielec, opticim
purchase shares of common stock under the LTIBIksvE: (i) 50,000 shares at $6.42, vesting in ahm@ements of 12,500 shares over a fgear period commencil
December 30, 2011; (ii) 250,000 shares at $6.42inged annual increments of 62,500 shares overayfear period commencing December 30, 2011; (iii),200 share
at $10.00, with vesting to begin on the date tbeksteaches a closing price of $10.00 per sharéSdrading days within a 3@ay trading period, with such vesting in ani
increments of 50,000 shares over the four annivemates of that date; and (iv) 200,000 share<5t0, with vesting to begin on the date the steelches a closing pri
of $15.00 per share for 15 trading days within add@-trading period, with such vesting in annual émecents of 50,000 shares over the four anniversatgsdof the
date. All such options in items (i) and (ii) shetipire on December 30, 2017. All such options img¢iii) and (iv) shall expire as of the later oé&mber 30, 2017 and f
years after the initial vesting commences, butdrement later than December 30, 2020. The optiehosth in items (ii), (iii) and (iv) were subjetd shareholder approy
of an amendment to the LTIP, which approval was aktaon June 7, 2011.

On January 3, 2011, pursuant to the terms of hid@mment agreement, we granted our President andf ERexutive Officer, Michael D. Popielec, an optia
purchase 50,000 shares of common stock at $6.58 el LTIP. The option vests in annual increments2,500 shares over a foyear period commencing December
2011. The option expires on December 30, 2017.

In conjunction with FASB'’s guidance for sharesed payments, we recorded compensation cosédeiatstock options of $774 and $1,073 for the yesmde
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of Dbee 31, 2013, there was $669 of total unrecognipedpensation costs related to outstanding stodkroptwhich it
expected to be recognized over a weighted averaysdpsf 1.41 years.

We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model toneste fair value of stockased awards. The following weighted average assomsptvere used to val
options granted during the years ended Decembe&(3B and 2012:
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Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012
Risk-free interest rat 0.7¢% 0.5€%
Volatility factor 61.9% 63.59%
Dividends 0.0(% 0.0(%
Weighted average expected life (yee 4.0€ 3.91
Forfeiture rate 12.3% 15.0(%

We use a Monte Carlo simulation option-pricing mddeestimate the fair value of market performastmekbased awards, of which there were no new awa
the years ended December 31, 2013 or 2012.

We calculate expected volatility for stock optidnstaking an average of historical volatility owée past five years and a computation of impliethdy. The
computation of expected term was determined basehistorical experience of similar awards, givinghsideration to the contractual terms of the stoaked awards a
vesting schedules. The interest rate for periodsimvthe contractual life of the award is basedlm W.S. Treasury yield in effect at the time of grdrorfeiture rates a
calculated by dividing unvested shares forfeitedbleginning shares outstanding. The yesting forfeiture rate is calculated yearly andié&ermined using a histori
twelve-quarter rolling average of the forfeitureesat

The following tables summarize data for the stogtiams issued by us:

Year Ended December 31, 201

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Remaining Aggregate
Number Price Contractual Intrinsic
of Shares Per Share Term Value
Shares under option at beginning of y 2,211,48: $ 7.47
Options grante: 228,00( 3.6C
Options exercise (3,000 3.91
Options cancelled (304,86¢) 7.94
Shares under option at end of year 2,131,62.  $ 6.9¢ 432 $ 35
Vested and expected to vest at end of year 1,961,17¢  $ 7.1¢€ 42 $ 29
Options exercisable at end of year 1,107,111 $ 6.32 344 3 12
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Year Ended December 31, 201

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Number Price
of Shares Per Share
Shares under option at beginning of y 2,356,221 $ 8.3
Options grante: 303,15( 3.6:
Options exercise (28,000 4.0¢
Options cancelled (419,890 9.8¢
Shares under option at end of year 221148 % 7.41
Options exercisable at end of yt 1,013,090 $ 7.64
The following table represents additional inforroatabout stock options outstanding at December (B113:2
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Number of Average Number

Outstanding Remaining Weighted- Exercisable Weighted-

Range of at December 31 Contractual Average at December 31 Average
Exercise Prices 2013 Life Exercise Price 2013 Exercise Price
$3.22 - $3.79 197,83« 5.7t $ 3.4: 42,19. $ 3.22
$3.80 - $3.91 241,00( 4.1C $ 3.8¢ 166,000 $ 3.91
$3.92 - $4.41 254,75( 4.1¢ $ 4.17 150,75: $ 4.217
$4.42 - $4.69 293,00( 49¢ $ 4.4z 195,33: $ 4.4z
$4.70 - $5.46 85,80( 3.7C $ 5.1¢ 68,60. $ 5.1Z
$5.47 - $6.42 300,00( 4.0t $ 6.4z 150,000 $ 6.4z
$6.43 - $10.55 412,16t 3.8t $ 8.9¢ 187,16¢ $ 8.1C
$10.5¢ - $12.74 91,57: 147 $ 12.4(C 91,57 $ 12.4(
$12.7¢ - $13.22 21,00( 1.4¢8 $ 13.2Z 21,00 $ 13.22
$13.2¢ - $15.00 234,50( 53C $ 14.7 34,50 $ 13.4%
$3.22 - $15.00 2,131,62: 432 $ 7.1¢€ 1,107,111 % 6.3Z

The weighted average fair value of options grawhading the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2043 W#0 and $1.67, respectively. The total inicivalue
of options (which is the amount by which the stocke exceeded the exercise price of the optiontherdate of exercise) exercised during the yeads@ecember 3
2013 and 2012 was $1 and $29, respectively.

FASB'’s guidance for shargased payments requires cash flows from excessetae(fits to be classified as a part of cash flowmffmancing activities. Excess 1
benefits are realized tax benefits from tax dedwstifor exercised options in excess of the defaar@sset attributable to stock compensation dossuch options. We ¢
not record any excess tax benefits in 2013 or 2@&sh received from option exercises under owkdtased compensation plans for the years ended Dece3itb201
and 2012 was $12 and $114, respectively.

e. Restricted Stock Awards

On January 29, 2013, we granted 120,000 contingsiicted stock units to our President and Chiefdixive Officer, Michael D. Popielec, subject to sfalde
approval, which was obtained on June 4, 2013, whash as follows: (i) 30,000 shares of our commonksteitl vest on the later of January 1, 2014 or tla¢edwhen ot
common stock first reaches a closing price of $480share for 15 trading days in a 30 trading pyod; (i) 30,000 shares of our common stock wélt on the later
January 1, 2014 or the date when our common stestkréaches a closing price of $5.00 per shard3arading days in a 30 trading day period; (00 shares of o
common stock will vest on the later of January@12or the date when our common stock first reaehessing price of $4.00 per share for 15 tradiagsdin a 30 tradir
day period; and (iv) 30,000 shares of our commoaokswill vest on the later of January 1, 2015 ordlage when our common stock first reaches a clgsing of $5.00 p¢
share for 15 trading days in a 30 trading day pkrio
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The restricted stock units described in (i) anijl Kiad achieved their closing price condition piorshareholder approval and were valued at théngjgeice on th
date of grant. The restricted stock units describe(ii) and (iv) had not yet achieved their clagiprice conditions and were valued utilizing a Mo@rlo simulation t
determine fair value and the derived service perfd@ weighted average inputs utilized were:

Year Ended
December 31, 201
Risk-free interest rat 0.21%
Volatility factor 59.0¢%
Dividends 0.0(%

The restricted stock units had the following values

Year Ended
December 31, 201
Number of shares awa 120,00(
Weighted average fair value per share $ 3.62
Aggregate total valu $ 434

No restricted stock was awarded during the yearsceBgeember 31, 2012.
The activity of restricted stock grants of comméutk for the years ended December 31, 2013 and B0diEmmarized as follows:

Number  Weighted Average
of Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Unvested at December 31, 2C 1,21¢ $ 11.3:
Grantec - 0.0C
Vestec (1,219 11.3¢
Forfeited - 0.0C

Unvested at December 31, 2C -$ 0.0C
Grantec 120,00 $ 3.62
Vestec - 0.0C
Forfeited - 0.0C

Unvested at December 31, 2013 120,00 $ 3.62

We recorded compensation cost related to restrittezk grants of $284 and $8 for the years endextDber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of Deeerdb
2013, we had $150 of total unrecognized compensabiqrense related to restricted stock grants. Tted tair value of these grants that vested durimg years endt
December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $0 and $5, respegctivel
f. Reserved Shares

We have reserved 2,860,723 and 2,911,723 shamsmohon stock under the various stock option plasrants and restricted stock awards as of Decefth
2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Note 8 - Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes exgee(benefit) consists of:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
Current— Continuing Operations
Federa $ -3 -
State - -
Foreign 94 53¢
94 53¢
Current— Discontinued Operation
Federa $ - $ -
State - -
Deferred- Continuing Operations
Federa 22( 22(
State - -
Foreign (75) (20%)
14% 15
Deferred- Discontinued Operation
Federa - (179
State - -
- (A74
Total $ 23¢ $ 38C

We reflected a tax expense of $239 for the yeae@ridecember 31, 2013. The 2013 tax provision iscfpally a result of the increase in the net deféra
liability related to deferred tax liabilities gem#ed from goodwill and certain intangible assetst ttannot be predicted to reverse for book purpasegsgg our los
carryforward periods. In addition, we incurred fgreincome taxes in 2013.

We reflected a tax expense of $380 for the yeae@rdecember 31, 2012. The 2012 tax provision iscfpally a result of the increase in the net deféna
liability related to liabilities generated from ghwill and certain intangible assets that cannot tedipted to reverse for book purposes during oss loarryforwar
periods. In addition, we incurred foreign incomeetin 2012.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effetenfporary differences between the carrying amoohéssets and liabilities for financial reportingrposes and tl
amount used for income tax purposes. Significantmonents of our deferred tax liabilities and asae¢ as follows:

62




Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipme $ 23z % 45C
Intangible assets and ott 4,24z 4,27z
Other 94 -
Total deferred tax liabilities 4,56¢ 4,72z
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar 18,90: 18,50¢
Intangible assel 4,26t 4,66¢
Accrued expenses, reserves and other 3,37¢ 3,76¢
Total deferred tax assets 26,53¢ 26,93:
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (26,13) (26,257
Net deferred tax asse 40¢ 682
Net deferred tax liability $ (4,160 $ (4,040

The $4,160 net deferred tax liability for the yeaded December 31, 2013 is comprised of a curefetrred tax liability of $9 and a lortgrm deferred tax liabilii
of $4,242, offset partially by current deferred &sset of $91. The $4,040 net deferred tax lighfdit the year ended December 31, 2012 is compn$edongterm deferre
tax liability of $4,160, offset partially by curredeferred tax asset of $120.

In 2013 and 2012, in the U.S. and the U.K., we contiiougeport a valuation allowance for our deferred dasets that cannot be offset by reversing temy
differences. This results from the conclusion tihas more likely than not that we would not utdiour U.S. and U.K. NOIs' that had accumulated over time.
recognition of a valuation allowance on our deferraxl assets resulted from our evaluation of allilalie evidence, both positive and negative. Thseasment of tl
realizability of the NOLS was based on a number of factors including, @iofty of net operating losses, the volatility efr @arnings, our historical operating volatilityr
historical inability to accurately forecast earrsrfor future periods and the continued uncertaditthe general business climate as of the end ®820We concluded tr
these factors represent sufficient negative evidemd have concluded that we should record a &lllation allowance under FAS8guidance on the accounting for incc
taxes. In 2013 and 2012, we did not record a Vauoallowance for the Chinese deferred tax assetseadetermined that it was more likely than not thay would b
realized. We continually assess the carryingevalfithis asset based on relevant accounting stdsida

As of December 31, 2013, we have foreign and domeéé@dt’'s totaling approximately $62,152 available to reddature taxable income. Foreign |
carryforwards of approximately $12,390 can be cdrf@ward indefinitely. The domestic NOL carryforwantl $49,762 expires from 2019 through 2033. Theestic
NOL carryforward includes approximately $2,949 for etha benefit will be recorded in capital in excelspar value when realize

For financial reporting purposes, income (losshfreontinuing operations before income taxes iolsvis:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
United State: $ 875 $ 82¢
Foreign 26 (1,409
Total $ (849 % (574

There are no undistributed earnings of our foreigipsidiaries, at December 31, 2013 or 2012.

As of December 31, 2011, the tax holiday for our @eeoperations expired and the full corporateab25% became effective. In 2013, our tax rate iin& wa:
reduced to 15% due to the successful applicationdtain tax designations.

The provision for income taxes eliff from the amount of income tax determined byhapg the applicable U.S. statutory federal incorme itate to income (los
from continuing operations before income taxeso#ews:
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Years Ended December 31

2013 2012

Provision/(benefit) computed using the statutoisg (34.(%) (34.%)
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc

Foreign 1.2 127.¢

Valuation allowanct 20.2 (119.9

Equity compensatic 38.€ 55.¢

Expiration of capital loss carryforwa - 59.€

Other 2.1 7.2
Provision (benefit) for income tax 28.2% 96.5%

In 2013 and 2012, the provision for income taxes higber than what would be expected if the statutatg were applied to pretax income. This is duth¢
continuation of reflecting a full valuation allowanfor our U.S. and U.K. deferred tax assets, certamdeductible expenses for tax purposes, anijfosarnings.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Ta

Our unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain gositions at December 31, 2013 relate to Fedamdl various state jurisdictions. The following l&
summarizes the activity related to our unrecogntaedenefits:

Years ended December 3.
2013 2012

Balance at beginning of the ye $ 7,50¢ $ 6,77¢
Increases related to the current year tax posi - 72¢
Increases related to prior year tax positi -
Decreases related to prior year tax positi (212) -
Expiration of statute of limitations for assessmefiaxes -
Settlement: - -
Balance at the end of the year

$ 7,29¢  $ 7,50¢

The total unrecognized tax benefit balances at Dbeel, 2013 and 2012 are comprised of tax bertbfts if recognized, would result in a deferreddaget and
corresponding increase in our valuation allowanke.a result, because the benefit would be offsedrbincrease in the valuation allowance, there wbeldo effect on ol
effective tax rate.

We are not required to accrue interest and pesaiighe unrecognized tax benefits have been red@sla decrease in our NOL. Interest and penaltiekl begit
to accrue in the period in which the NGLrelated to the uncertain tax positions are etilizWe do not expect our unrecognized tax benefithange significantly over t
next twelve months.

As a result of our operations, we file income taxima$ in various jurisdictions including U.S. fedeta.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. We aretirely subjec
to examination by taxing authorities in these wasigurisdictions. Our U.S. tax matters for the ge2001 through 2013 remain subject to examinatiprhe Interne
Revenue Service (“IRSYue to our NOL carryforwards. Our U.S. tax matterstiie years 2001 through 2013 remain subject &néxation by various state and local
jurisdictions due to our NOL carryforwards. Our taratters for the years 2007 through 2013 remainesuilip examination by the respective foreign taxsgictior
authorities. The IRS has completed the examinatioour 2009 US Federal income tax return, with neulttng material effect to our financial position @sults o
operations. The IRS has informed us that the 201 Fétferal income tax year will be examined commenitirgarly 2014
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Note 9 - 401(k) Retirement Benefit Plan

We maintain a defined contribution 401(k) plan aavg substantially all employees. Employees cartrdmute a portion of their salary or wages as piibsdrunde
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code anljestito certain limitations, we may, at the disicne of our Board of Directors, authorize an emplogentribution base
on a portion of the employees' contributions. 8idanuary 2010, we have matched 50% on the firstafsibuted by an employee, or a maximum of 2%hefémployee
income. For 2013 and 2012, we contributed $99 &4@ $respectively, to the 401(k) plan.

Note 10 - Business Segment Information

On February 15, 2012, we decided to divest our RaedBlCommunications business, which previously wagsorted in the Communications Syste
segment. These results have been classified asntiisued since the first quarter of 2012. See Note these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesnfemtadditione
information.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, we elected noteteew the lease for our U.K. manufacturing facilityisthexpired on March 24, 2013, and to relocatesale:
and services operations to a smaller facility. aAsesult of this decision, we are required to mestbe facility back to its original condition parprevious contractt
commitment. This facility previously served our ®ay and Energy Segments business. A portion cfettedsts were classified as a discontinued operatitime fourt
quarter of 2012. See Note 2 in these Notes to Culadet Financial Statements for additional inforiorat

Segment information previously reported has beelassified to conform to the current year preséomat

We report our results in two operating segmentsteBat& Energy Products and Communications Systefite Battery & Energy Products segment inclu
lithium 9-volt, cylindrical and various other neeehargeable batteries, in addition to rechargedblgeries, uninterruptable power supplies, chargggtems ar
accessories. The Communications Systems segmelnti@s: RF amplifiers, power supplies, cable ancheotor assemblies, amplified speakers, equipmemintepcas
equipment, integrated communication system kits @mmunications and electronics systems design.b&lleve that reporting performance at the groséitdevel is the
best indicator of segment performance. As suchepert segment performance at the gross profit landloperating expenses as Corporate charges.

2013

Battery &

Energy Communications  Discontinuec

Products Systems Operations Corporate Total
Revenue: $ 57,077 $ 21,75¢ $ - 8 - % 78,83t
Segment contributio $ 14,33¢  $ 8,28:¢ - (23,245 (624)
Interest expense, n (299 (299
Miscellaneous (26) (26)
Income taxe-current (29 (29
Income taxe-deferrec (220 (220
Income from discontinued operatic 12¢ 12¢
Noncontrolling interes 34 34
Net income attributable to Ultralif (926)
Total asset 40,85 30,06¢ - 19,27t 90,19¢
Capital expenditure 63E 131 - - 76€
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,07¢ 127 - 1,15¢ 3,35¢
Stock-based compensatic 20 12 @) 1,10¢ 1,131
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=
N

Battery &
Energy Communications  Discontinuec
Products Systems Operations Corporate Total
Revenue: $ 71,08 $ 30,57¢ $ -3 - $ 101,65
Segment contributio $ 17,56: $ 11,16¢ - (28,849 (119
Interest expense, n (436€) (43€)
Miscellaneous (24) (24)
Income taxe-current (539 (539
Income taxe-deferrec (15) (15)
Loss from discontinued operatio (502) (502)
Noncontrolling interes 31 31
Net income attributable to Ultralif (1,599
Total asset 54,60¢ 29,58t - 13,527 97,71¢
Capital expenditure 2,81 32C - - 3,13:
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,471 362 2C 1,132 3,98¢
Stock-based compensatic 22 13 8) 1,352 1,37¢
Geoaraphical Information
Revenues Long-Lived Assets

201z 201z 201z 201z
United Kingdom $ 558t $ 11,858 $ - 8 71
China 2,50¢ 4,20¢ 2,201 2,24:
Hong Kong 847 1,49¢ - -
India 43C 351 40 49
Europe, excluding United Kingdo 8,88¢ 9,41¢ - -
Japar 1,15(C 1,011 - -
Singapore 162 89 - -
Canad: 867 77€ - -
Australia 6,53¢€ 10,567 - -
Other 2,331 2,39¢ - -
Total Nor-U.S. 29,31t 42,17: 2,241 2,36:
United States 49,52( 59,48¢ 7,961 10,05:
Total $ 78,83t $ 101,65 $ 10,20: $ 12,41¢

Long-lived assets represent the sum of the net bahle of property, plant and equipment.
Note 11 - Fire at Manufacturing Facility

In June 2011, we experienced a fire that damagedicenventory and machinery and equipment atfacility in China. The fire occurred after busiad®urs an
was fully extinguished quickly with no injuries, atieée plant was back in full operation shortly theteafvith no significant disruption in supply or giee to customers. V
maintain adequate insurance coverage for this Gpara

The total amount of the loss pertaining to assedisthe related expenses was approximately $1,588.nTajority of our insurance claim is related te thcovery ¢
damaged inventory. Through payments received e 2012 and April 2013, we have received approxim&ai&|286 as a partial payment on our insurancenclaihict
resulted in no gain or loss being recognized. ABecember 31, 2013, we reflect a receivable froeitisurance company relating to this claim of $18&ich is net of ot
deductible of approximately $132, and representhtiadal proceeds to be received. The deductiblerge was expensed in the second quarter of 201teéledted as
component of cost of products sold in the Constdid&tatements of Operations and Comprehensive e¢bass).
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Note 12 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the end of the year, we received fanmial notice from the landlord of our China fatilithat we may not be able to extend our lease it
expiration in October 2014 due to possible zonihgnges in the village. We, have not received forutice from the village regarding these changesvéder, we ar
evaluating our options regarding relocation andsixds impacts upon our manufacturing operations.dé/@ot have an estimate at this time regardingcaisys to move

possible impact to our production, if any.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCO UNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation Of Disclosure Controls And Procedures- Our president and chief executive officer (principaecutive officer) and our chief financial officanc
treasurer (principal financial officer) have evaediour disclosure controls and procedures (asel@fin Securities Exchange Act Rule 113e)) as of the end of the per

covered by this annual report. Based on this ewialn, our president and chief executive officed amief financial officer and treasurer concludédttour disclosul
controls and procedures were effective as of suth da

Changes In Internal Controls Over Financial Reportirg —There has been no change in our internal contret émancial reporting (as defined in Securi
Exchange Act Rule 13a5(f)) that occurred during the fourth quarter lod fiscal year covered by this annual report ttzst imaterially affected, or is reasonably likel
materially affect, our internal control over finaalareporting.

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting— Our management team is responsible for establisimuigmaintaining adequate intel
control over our financial reporting. Our interr@ntrol over financial reporting is a process desijto provide reasonable assurance regardingetiabitity of financia
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with geneaaitepted accounting principles. Because ofrtherent limitations «
internal control systems, our internal control ofirancial reporting may not prevent or detect t@igsments. Also, projections of any evaluation fiéaiveness to futu
periods are subject to the risk that controls magoime inadequate because of changes in conditiorthat the degree of compliance with policies avcedures me
deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of eunahtontrol over financial reporting as of Decenid® 2013. In making this assessment, we usedritesic
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiof the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) in Inter@aintroldntegrated Framework. Based on our assessme
concluded that, as of December 31, 2013, our inteorarol over financial reporting was effective bdon those criteria.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
The information required by Part lll, other thanset forth in Item 12, and each of the followingniteis omitted from this report and will be presentedul
definitive proxy statement (“Proxy Statementd) be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, not lateartil20 days after the end of the fiscal year cal/éne this report, i
connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Sharekoddwhich information included therein is incorated herein by reference.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVER NANCE

The sections entitled "Election of Directors”, "Exéve Officers", "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownersiiteporting Compliance" and "Corporate Governanaehd
Proxy Statement are incorporated herein by referenc

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The sections entitled "Executive Compensation”rébiors Compensation”, “Employment Arrangemertsti "Compensation and Management Committee " i
Proxy Statement are incorporated herein by referenc
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNER S AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The section entitled “Security Ownership of CertBaneficial Owners” and “Security Ownership of Managathén the Proxy Statement is incorporated herei
reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to Weighted-average available for future issuance under
be issued upon exercise exercise price of equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan Categonr (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 2,081,62. $ 6.8t 255,67¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by secu
holders 50,00( 12.7¢ -
Total 2,131,62. $ 6.9¢ 255,67¢

See Note 7 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statésrfer additional information.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTION S, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The section entitled "Corporate Governance - Géheréhe Proxy Statement is incorporated hereindfgrence.
ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The section entitled "Proposal to Ratify the Setecof Independent Registered Accounting FirRrincipal Accountant Fees and Services" in the yPRmtement

incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 15.

@

(b)

Exhibit
Index

2.1
3.1

3.2
4.1

10.1*

10.2*
10.3*

10.4t
10.5t
10.6t
10.7t
10.8t
10.9t

10.10%

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Documents filed as part of this répor

Financial Statemen

The financial statements and schedules requirgtisytem 15 are set forth in Part Il, Item 8 otheport.

Exhibits The following exhibits are filed as a part ofsthéeport:

Description of Document

Stock Purchase Agreement by and between BCF Solutiomsand Ultralife
Corporation

Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Amended and Restated By-laws
Specimen Stock Certificate

Technology Transfer Agreement relating to Lithiumttries

Technology Transfer Agreement relating to Lithiumttries
Amendment to the Agreement relating to rechargeladieries

Ultralife Batteries, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan

Ultralife Batteries, Inc. Amended and Restated 2D64g-Term Incentive
Plan

Amendment No. 1 to Ultralife Batteries, Inc. Amendel Restated 2004
Long-Term Incentive Plan

Amendment No. 2 to Ultralife Batteries, Inc. Amendel Restated 2004
Long-Term Incentive Plan

Amendment No. 3 to Ultralife Batteries, Inc. Amendettl Restated 2004
Long-Term Incentive Plan

Employment Agreement between the Registrant aner FetComerford

Employment Agreement between the Registrant andh&&icD. Popielec
dated December 6, 2010
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Incorporated By Reference from:

Exhibit 2.1 of the Form 10-Q for the quarter en&egptember 30, 2012,
filed November 8, 2012

Exhibit 3.1 of the Form 10-K for the year ended &waber 31, 2008, filed
March 13, 2009

Exhibit 3.2 of the Form 8-K filed December 9, 2011

Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 10-K for the year ended &waber 31, 2008, filed
March 13, 2009

Exhibit 10.19 of our Registration Statement onmnr&-1 filed on October
7, 1994, File No. 33-84888 (the “1994 Registratitat&nent”)

Exhibit 10.20 of the 1994 Registration Statement

Exhibit 10.24 of our Form 10-K for the fiscal yearded June 30, 1996
(this Exhibit may be found in SEC File No. 0-20852)

Exhibit 99.1 of our Registration Statement onrfk@-8 filed on May 15,
2001, File No. 333-60984 (the “2001 Registratioat&nent”)

Exhibit 99.2 of our Registration Statement onrr@-8 filed on July 26,
2004, File No. 333-117662

Exhibit 99.3 of our Registration Statement onrir@-8 filed August 18,
2006, File No. 333-136737

Exhibit 99.4 of our Registration Statement onrr@-8 filed November
13, 2008, File No. 333-155349

Exhibit 99.5 of our Registration Statement onrr@-8 filed November
13, 2008, File No. 333-155349

Exhibit 10.30 of the Form 10-K for the year end@tember 31, 2009,
filed March 16, 2010

Exhibit 10.40 of the Form 10-K for the year end#tember 31, 2010,
filed March 15, 2011




10.11%

10.12

10.13%

10.14%

10.15

10.16%

10.17%

10.18%

21

23.1
23.2
311
31.2

32
100.INS
100.SCH
100.CAL
100.LAB
100.PRE
100.DEF

Revised definition of “Change in Contrdir Ultralife Corporation Amende
and Restated 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Settlement Agreement between the Registrant and thiedJBtates of
America dated June 1, 2011

Amendment No. 4 to Ultralife Corporation Amended &wesbtated Long-
Term Incentive Plan

Amendment No. 5 to Ultralife Corporation Amended &webtated Long-
Term Incentive Plan

Revolving Credit, Guaranty, and Security Agreememwben Ultralife
Corporation and PNC Bank, National Association, daleg 24, 2013

Retirement and Consulting Agreement, Release angaief All Claims,
between Ultralife Corporation and Peter F. Comerfdeded May 28,2013

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between Ultralife Coaion and Michael
D. Popielec. Dated June 4, 2013

Amended No. 6. to Ultralife Corporation Amended arestated Long-Term
Incentive Plan

Subsidiaries

Consent of Bonadio & Co.,LLP

Consent of BDO USA, LLP

CEO 302 Certifications

CFO 302 Certifications

906 Certifications

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomoy Extension Schema Document
XBRL Taxonomoy Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomoy Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomoy Presentation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomoy Definition Document

* Confidential treatment has been granted as taiceportions of this exhibit.

t Management contract or compensatory plan ongement.
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Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2011
Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2011

Exhibit 4.5 of the Registration Statement on F&®& filed on January 3(
2012, File No. 333-179235

Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2011

Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 10-Q for the quarter ehdene 30, 2013, filed
August 9, 2013

Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 10-Q for the quarter ehdene 30, 2013, filed
August 9, 2013

Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 10-Q for the quarter ehdene 30, 2013, filed
August 9, 2013

Appendix A of Form DEF 14A filed on April 22, 2013

Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith
Filed herewith




SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regigthas duly caused this report to be signed dreitsif by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
ULTRALIFE CORPORATION

Date: March 14, 2014 By: /s/ Michael D. Popielec
Michael D. Popiele
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf of the Registaand in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: March 14, 2014 /sl Michael D. Popielec
Michael D. Popiele
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 14, 2014 /s/ Philip A. Fain
Philip A. Fain
Chief Financial Officer and Treasut
(Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 14, 2014 /sISteven M. Anderson
Steven M. Anderson (Directo

Date: March 14, 2014 /sl Thomas L. Saeli
Thomas L. Saeli (Directo

Date: March 14, 2014 /s/ Robert W. Shaw |l
Robert W. Shaw Il (Directol

Date: March 14, 2014 /sl Ranijit C. Singh
Ranijit C. Singh (Director

Date: March 14, 2014 /sl Bradford T. Whitmore
Bradford T. Whitmore (Directot
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Index to Exhibits

21 Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Bonadio & Co., LL

23.2 Consent of BDO USA, LLI

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Buant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchamef 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 30Beof
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Buant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchagef 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 3GBef
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

32 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS XBRL Instance Documet

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Documer
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES

We have a 100% ownership interest in Ultralife Béte(UK) Ltd., incorporated in the United Kingdom.

We have a 100% ownership interest in ABLE New Energy Omited, incorporated in Hong Kong, which has(®% ownership interest in ABLE New Energy Co., Ltd,
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.

We have a 100% ownership interest in Ultralife Ene3gyvices Corporation, incorporated in Florida.

We have a 51% ownership interest in Ultralife Bageifindia Private Limited, incorporated in India.



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémd¢ke Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (R83:60984, 333-114271, 333-117662, 333-136737,1883-38, 333-

155347, 333-155349 and 3339235) of our report dated March 14, 2014 on tivesolidated financial statements of Ultralife Cagdon for the year ended December
2013, which appear in this Form 10-K.

/sl Bonadio & Co., LLP

Pittsford, New York
March 14, 201«




Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémd¢ke Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (R83:60984, 333-114271, 333-117662, 333-136737,1883-38, 333-

155347, 333-155349 and 3339235) of Ultralife Corporation of our report dafddrch 15, 2013 relating to the consolidated finanstatements, which appear in this F
10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Troy, Michigan
March 14, 201«



Exhibit 31.1

I, Michael D. Popielec, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report omi-10-K of Ultralife Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to make the st
made, in light of the circumstances under which statements were made, not misleading with respedbetperiod covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects the fici!
condition, results of operations and cash flowsefregistrant as of, and for, the periods presentéus report:

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitiieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defined in Exchi
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal robraver financial reporting (as defined in Exchan§ict Rules 13a-15(f) and 18ib(f)) for the
registrant and havi

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tesigned under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissmade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whichstiheport is being prepare

Designed such internal control over financial reipgrt or caused such internal control over finangigborting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riemgtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsmrdisclosure controls and procedures and presentetiis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #@psnt based on such evaluation; i

Disclosed in this report any change in the regissanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmost recent fisc
quarter (the registrarst’fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to materially affec
the registrar’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internakrob over financial reporting, to t
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of regis’s board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

a)

b)

Date: March 14, 201

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessgeghe design or operation of internal control ofieancial reporting which are reasone
likely to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significgatin the registrans’ internal contrc
over financial reporting

/sl Michael D. Popiele
Michael D. Popiele
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

I, Philip A. Fain, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report omi-10-K of Ultralife Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to make the st
made, in light of the circumstances under which statements were made, not misleading with respedbetperiod covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects the fici!
condition, results of operations and cash flowsefregistrant as of, and for, the periods presentéus report:

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitiieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defined in Exchi
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal robraver financial reporting (as defined in Exchan§ict Rules 13a-15(f) and 18ib(f)) for the
registrant and havi

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tesigned under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissmade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whichstiheport is being prepare

Designed such internal control over financial reipgrt or caused such internal control over finangigborting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riemgtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsmrdisclosure controls and procedures and presentetiis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #@psnt based on such evaluation; i

Disclosed in this report any change in the regissanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmost recent fisc
quarter (the registrarst’fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to materially affec
the registrar’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internakrob over financial reporting, to t
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of regis’s board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

a)

b)

Date: March 14, 201

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessgeghe design or operation of internal control ofieancial reporting which are reasone
likely to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significgatin the registrans’ internal contrc
over financial reporting

/sl Philip A. Fain
Philip A. Fain
Chief Financial Officer and Treasul




Exhibit 32
Section 1350 Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted gutrsa Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2082ction 906”),Michael D. Popielec and Philip A. Fain,

President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Raial Officer and Treasurer, respectively, of UlfealCorporation, certify that (i) the Annual Report Form 10K for
the year ended December 31, 2013 fully complies thighrequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934 and (ii) the infation contained i
such report fairly presents, in all material respgethe financial condition and results of openagiof Ultralife Corporation.

A signed original of this written statement requitedSection 906 has been provided to Ultralife @oafion and will be retained by Ultralife Corporatiand furnished 1
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its sfadh request.

Date: March 14, 2014 /sl Michael D. Popiele
Michael D. Popiele
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: March 14, 201 /s/ Philip A. Fain
Philip A. Fain
Chief Financial Officer and Treasul

This certification is being furnished as requirgdRule 13a-14(b) under the Securities ExchangeofA&034, as amended (the “Exchange Adtf)d Section 1350 of Chap
63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, and shailbe deemed “filedfor purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Acttbevise subject to the liability of that Secti
This certification shall not be deemed to be incoaped by reference into any filing under the Sidieisr Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Acigpt to the exte
that we specifically incorporate this certificatioy reference



